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It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents, fostering the vision of a familyji'iendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. " 

Website: http://pontiac.mi.us/council/meeting agendas and minutes/index.php 

FORMAL MEETING 
February 18, 2020 

6:00P.M. 
140th Session of the 10th Council 

The National Pan Hellenic Council Pontiac Chapter Anisha D. Hannah, President will present a Unity Quilt to 
the City of Pontiac on behalf of the Chapter after approval of the minutes. 

Call to order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

Approval of the Minutes 
1. February 11, 2020 

Subcommittee Reports 
2. Finance- January 14, 2020 

3. Law/50th District- January 28, 2020 

4. Public Safety- January 10, 2020 

Special Presentations (Presentations are limited to 10 minutes.) 
5·, Financial Report: Study of Appropriation Decisions Regarding Underfunded Line Items 

Presentation Presenter: Chief Financial Officer, Irwin Williams, Plante Moran. 
(This presentation was deferred from the February 4, 2020 Meeting as Budget Deficits/Pontiac Youth 
Recreation and Enrichment Center (PYREC) Lease/and Roll-overs) 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., Interim City Clerk 
Office of the City Clerk 47450 Woodward Pontiac, Michigan 48342 Phone (248) 758-3200 
Website: http ://pontiaccityclerk.com 



6. Medical Marihuana Application Review Process and Status of Professional Expert Agreements Update 
Presentation Presenter: Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

7. City of Pontiac, Phoenix Center Parking Garage Business Plan. 
Presentation Presenters: Irwin Williams, Interim Chief Financial Officer/Plante Moran; Mayor Watem1an, 
Dan Ringo, Interim DPW Director, and John Balint, DPW 

Recognition of Elected Officials 

Agenda Address 

Discussion 
8. 10th City Council Rules Amendments 

Communication 
Department of Public Works (DPW) 

9. Report Regarding City Council's Request on Budget for Expanded Snow Plowing Services 

City Clerk 
10. March 10, 2020 Presidential Primary Election 

Resolutions 
Building 

11. Resolution to authorize the Mayor to provide for Amazon's accelerated construction schedule by entering into 
an additional Service Agreement with Wade Trim. 

City Clerk 
12. Resolution to approve a budget amendment for fiscal year 2019/2020 to establish account 101-191-731.003 

computer equipment in the Elections Dept budget; and to transfer $13,000.00 from account 101-191-702.000 
salaries and wages in the Elections Dept budget to account 101-191-731.003 computer equipment to cover the 
cost of purchasing 25 new laptops for the Electronic pollbook at voting precincts 

City Council 
!3, Resolution for Ella "Sis J" Louise Jemagin 

Community Development 
14. Resolution to approve the reprograming of the PY Year 2016 CDBG funds in the amount of $9,225.18 from 

the Senior Center HV AC project to the Door and Flooring Replacement project for the Ruth Peterson Senior 
Center in order to improve access and safety; and for reprograming of PY 2019 CDBG funds in the amount of 
$9,226.00 to fund services for youth 13-19 from low income household through the Pontiac Youth 
Assistance. 

Department of Public Works (DPW) 
15. Resolution to authorize the Mayor to enter into an agreement with DMC Consultants, Inc. at an amount not to· 

exceed $548,685.00 for the replacement of City Hall windows. 

soth District Court 
16. Resolution to approve the Michigan Indigent Defense Commission (MIDC) FY 2020 Grant Contract with an 

authorized total budget of $1,052,015.00 

17. Resolution to approve Managed Assigned Counsel Coordinator agreement between the City of Pontiac and 
Paulette Michel Loftin not to exceed $45,000.00 



Mayor's Office 
18. Resolution to authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract agreement with Detroit Regional Convention Authority 

in. the amount of $19,000 for the operation and maintenance of the Parking Deck of the Phoenix Center 
commencing March 1st 2020. 

Planning 
19. Resolution to approve, as recommended by the Planning Commission, the Specially Designated Distributer 

(SDD) and Specially Designated Merchant (SDM) 'Bistro' Licenses as requested by the petitioner, The Platt 
Pontiac's Little Art Theatre, 47 N. Saginaw St, and further recommends this application be considered for 
approval by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

Mayoral Monthly Reports 
20. Staff Changes Report 

(The January report was not submitted by the Mayor's Office. This item was brought back from the_ 
February 4, 2020) 

21. City Credit Card Statement 
· (The December and January credit card statement were not submitted by the Mayor's Office. This 

item was brought back from the February 4, 2020) 

Upcoming Special Presentations 
March 3, 2020 
1. Pontiac Public Schools Bond and Sinking Fund 
2. Election 2020 

Public Comment 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 

Adjournment 





February 11, 2020 Study 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

139th Session of the Tenth Council 

Call to order 
A Study Session of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday, 
February 11, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Roll Call 
Members Present: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams and K Williams. 
Members Absent: Carter. 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 
20-63 Excuse Councilmember Randy Carter for personal reasons. Moved by Councilperson 
G. Williams and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams and K. Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Council President Pro-Tern Randy Caiier arrived at 6:04 p.m. 

Amendments to the Agenda 
20-64 Motion to remove items #4 through #16 from the agenda. Moved by Councilperson G. 
Williams and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Pietila, Tylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Approval of the Amended Agenda 
20-65 Approval of amended Agenda. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by 
Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Approval of Minutes 
20-66 Approve meeting minutes for February 4, 2020. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and 
second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 
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February 11, 2020 Study 

Ayes: Waterman, G. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Abstain: K. Williams 
Motion Carried. 

20-67 Approve correction to the approved meeting minutes for January 21, 2020 due to 
scrivener's error. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Communication 
Community Development Block Grant Reprogramming 

Public Hearing 
Council President Kermit Williams opened up public hearing for Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Reprogramming PY 2016 and PY 2019 at 6:11 p.m. 

Seven (7) individuals addressed the body during the public hearing. 

1. Mike McGinnis 26 Union, Pontiac, MI 
He spoke in support of block grant funding for Pontiac Youth Assistance. The organization is a 
partner with the school district. This is a wise investment. 

2. Melanie Rutherford 1018 Argyle, Pontiac, MI 
Pontiac Youth Assistance allowed her daughter to attend Little Lakes Summer Camp and 
Cranbrook. Ms. Rutherford spoke in support of Youth Assistance. 

3. Billie Swazer 1619 MarshbankDr., Pontiac, MI 
Item #1 has no price. I am in total support of Pontiac Youth Assistance. 

4. Tom Swiebowa 60 Parkhurst, Pontiac, MI 
Mr. Swiebowa is from the Pontiac Youth Assistance Program. We are asking that you endorse 
the funding. 

5. Mark Holland 1518 Pebble Beach Dr, Pontiac, MI 
Public service youth service is great. I would like to see checks and balances. I would like to see 
some funds allocated to fix the Ewalt Center. Stop tearing down Oakland County homes and use 
funds to fix Pontiac homes. Residents need furnaces and hot water tanks. The funds can be used 
to assist residents. 
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February 11, 2020 Study 

6. Gladys Smith Pontiac, MI 
She is senior specialist at the Ruth Peterson Center. I am in support of the dollars allocated for 
the Ruth Peterson Center. 

7. Minister Katha lee James 1579 Marshbank Dr, Pontiac, MI 
I suppo1i the proposed CDBG plan. I would like to see more money for direct services as oppose 
to demolition. I like to see funds allocated for the parks and Ewalt Center. We need a whole 
community center in the city of Pontiac. 

Council President Kermit Williams closed public hearing at 6:20 p.m. 

Public Comment 
Twelve (12) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 

Adjournment 
Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 7:01 p.m. 
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FINANCE SUBCOMMITTEE NOTES 

January 14, 2020 

In attendance: 
Council members: Chairperson Patrice \v'aterman, George \v'illiams and Gloria 1i1iller 
Mayor: Deirdre Waterman 
Deputy Mayor Jane Bias-DiSessa 
Plante Moran, CPA: Inv:in Williams 

Start time: 3:35 p.m. 
New Business 

1. Year End Audit Results 
There is a $1.1 million dollar surplus in the general fund due to higher than anticipated revenues coupled with 
lower than expected expenditures. 

2. Phoenix Settlement Payment has been made 
There was $700,000 paid on November 1, 2019 for the Phoenix Center settlement obligation. 

Suggested: Some landlords are putting evicted tenants items on the street and on the lawn, so there there should 
be an ordinance that would allow fees to be generated and the generated money should be placed into a special 
fund that would be used to pay for the clean-up. A signal needs to be sent to these landlord's that this will not 
be tolerated. 

The Council asked for two security cameras but agreed to one, so where is the City ·with purchasing the security 
camera? The question to be referred to the DP\v' subcommittee, which will meet on \v'ednesday, January 15, 
2020. 

3. Discussion ofYTD results for the Four Months Ended November 30, 2019 
The current balance sheet as of 11/30/2019 is reporting an increase in the fund balance of approximately $4.64 
million resulting in a fund balance of $23.22 million. The increase is due to greater than expected receipts of 
income taxes and property taxes that were collected, as well as state revenue sharing prior to November 30, 
2019 coupled with lower than expected expenditures. Of this, $6 million is committed or assigned, leaving a 
reported unassigned fund balance of $17 .19 million. 

Income tax collections current fiscal year vs prior fiscal year. Income taxes collected thm November 30, 2019 
were $5,390,549 compared to $5,027,211 on November 30, 2019 an increase of$363,338.00. 

Property tax collections as ofN ovember 30, 2019 reflects a total amount of City millages, plus fees and penalties 
collected as $11,620,108 vs $13,429,841 billed which is approximately 86.5% 

Expenditures for the first four months are tracking witlun the budget. 

4. Discuss of Budget to Actual for Quarter Ended December 31, 2019 
a. Local Streets: total expenditures for local streets is 47% instead of 41 %. The expenditures carried over and 
have not been approved. 
b. Youth Rec: total expenditures are 45% instead of 41 % as the City is leasing for $26,000 per month vs 
purchasing. 
c. Drug Enforcement Fund: the total expenditures are at 51 % due to overtime being higher than anticipated, 
10% over. 
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d. Capital Improvement Fund: the total expenditures are 17.3% and total revenues are at 98%. This is a 
timing issue with renovations at the Court. 
e. District Court: the total expenditures are at 18% and total revenues 24%. 

o The general fund is under 40% which is right on target. 
o The City would like to offer affordable housing and has a rehabilitation program. 

Rehabilitation agreements provide: If you are a resident of the City you can purchase a foreclosed home 
without a deposit. If you are a non-resident and would like to purchase a foreclosed home, a bond is required. 
You have six-months to make repairs to the home (rehab agreement). The City will work with people as long 
as they are moving forward. 

5. FAQ Questions Regarding Phoenix Center 

#19. What will the settlement agreement cost 

The total estimated cost is $19,385,039-$17,385,039 for the renovation of the parking garage and an 
additional $2,000,000 to repair the amphitheater. Improvements to the Phoenix Center must be in 
compliance with the Michigan Building Code. Requires $6 million over ten years for maintenance and 
improvements, but this is not enough to bring the parking structure into compliance with the 
Michigan Building Code. The improvements must be made by November 1, 2020. 

Currently, Ottawa Towers has been taking care of the maintenance contract. Detroit Regional will be corning 
with a contract to do the maintenance and parking revenue. It will be less than what Ottawa Towers is paying. 

-
Amazon: 
o 3.8 million square feet at Center Point. The Silver Dorne will hand over the property to Amazon within 6-7 
rnontl1s. They will be working 24/7. This will also require double the size of the inspection team, so the fiscal 
plan to be provided by \v'ade Trim which and will require a revision to tl1e contract. 

o The 2nd phase of Amazon will be equivalent to 66 football fields as there will be 4 floors. Amazon hopes to 
be operational by December 2021. 

#8. The other options aside from bonding include: 
public/private partnership, sale, default, bonds, default and bring back EM. 

#11. If the City defaults on its settlement agreement could it have a financial impact on the taxpayer? 

It depends on the court's judgment, potential default on the settlement could cost taxpayers $19.3 
million, it could add over $770 to each taxpayer's tax bill. Also punitive damages due to non­
compliance with settlement agreement of $20-$30 million would eliminate the City's General Fund 
balance and place the City into bankruptcy and/ or add over $1,500 to each taxpayer's tax bill. 

#15. What type of bonds may be issued? Capital improvement bonds could be issued for this type of 
project 

The Clerk's legal and financial experts have not been approved. The legal expert was an elected official, so iliere 
was request for a campaign contribution disclosure and a request that botl1 agree to not to represent clients 
that have applied for medical rnarihuan~ for two years. 

Adjourned: 4:12 pm 
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LAW /S0TH DISTRICT SUB-COMMITTEE NOTES 

January 28, 2020 

In attendance: 
Council members: Chairman Gloria j\,filler 
Chief Judge 50th District Court: Cynthia Walker 
Court Administrator: Lynette \Vard 
Deputy Jl.fayor Jane Bias-Disessa 
Managed Assigned Counsel Executive: Ashley Johnson 

Start time: 4:10 a.m. 
Michigan Indigent Fund 

o In the next phase of IYIIDC, video arraignments at the jail. 
o On Council's agenda for today is the Interlocal Agreement for Mandated Ivlichigan Indigent Defense 
Commission for Appointments of Arraignment-Only Attorneys at the Oakland County Jail. 
o The agreement was reviewed and approved by the City Attorney. 
o The agreement provides that the County will invoice the City of Pontiac an amount not to include 65% of 
the Funding Units FY2020 grant, this amount was determined to be due to the Oakland County Jail IYIIDC 
implementation starting March 2, 2020 due to construction delays. The remaining 35 % will carry-over. 
o Oakland County will apply for future grants from the MIDC, receive all MIDC Arraignment grant funding 
and will act as the grant administrator for all local funding units within the County only for the purpose of 
complying with MIDC Standards. 
o There will be a one week trial, starting March 1, 2020. 
oThe trial run will include the 50th District Court and the 52's. Attorneys will have to get to court around 7:30 
a.m. in order to talk with the defendants before court starts. 
o The agenda for Council's next study session will include a resolution for formal approval of the MIDC FY20 
Grant Contract and budget. There are no changes, everything will remain the same and there is 100% 
compliance with the State. 
o The renovations at the Court should be completed by the end of February. 
o There are still issues with the gate. 

Blight Court 
o The Administration has prepared the rules, procedures and forms, talked with other cities and with the Chief 
Judge. 
o The Administration has done its part. The Court would not be impacted if Blight Court is up and running as 
the only cases effected are nuisance cases. However, most nuisance cases are dismissed upon compliance. 
o The Mayor has to make the time to appoint an attorney/ attorneys or a magistrate. 

Landlord Tenant Cases 
o Landlord tenant cases are heard on Mondays and Fridays. 
o Code Enforcement and Building and safety have been working with apartment complexes to assist with code 
compliance and this is making a difference. 

Downtown Snow Removal 
o The business owners need to be accountable for snow removal just like the residents. 
o 50th District Court needs to have snow removed properly as someone is going to possibly fall. 

Adjourned: 4:32 p.m. 
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2495 Crescent Lake Road., Waterford, MI 48329 
Phone: 248.673.0405 "Fax: 248.674.4095 

wvvw.waterfordmi.gov 
Matthew J. Covey Fire Chief .. Carl J. Wallace Deputy Fire Chief 

MONTHLY FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT 
For the City of Pontiac 

December 2019 
Total Pontiac Fire Station calls - month: 417 Average Response Time 5.08 per call 

Total calls for Pontiac Stations - YTD: 5490 

City Calls: Fires: 10 EMS: 217 False Alarms: 29 Other: 101 

Pontiac YTD, Fires: 219 4.57% EMS: 2953 61.57% False Alarms: 383 7.99% Other: 1241 Total: 4796 

Month Count Response Times YTD average YTD Count 

FS-6 Fires -2 5.41 48 

EMS-46 5.21 601 

FS-7: Fires -3 5.43 103 

EMS-88 4.46 1260 

FS-8: Fires - 3 5.30 38 

EMS-SO 5.11 619 

FS-9: Fires -2 5.09 24 

EMS-33 4.08 466 

Fire Injuries to personnel: 0 Fire Injuries to civilian: 0 

Incidents for month: 
Comparing to 2018: Fire Calls are down by 19.71%. Total call volume !m year to date by 6.95% 

Notable Event: 

• Fire Department participated in the annual Holiday Extravaganza 

• Fire Fighter participated with the Shop with a Hero program over 100 Children 



AVERAGE RESPONSE TIMES BY ZIP CODE 

Nov-18 18-Dec Jan-19 Feb 20-19 19-Mar Apr-19 May-19 19-Jun 

48340 6 5.5 5.5 5.4 5.2 5.3 5.1 5 
48341 5 5 5 5 5 4.9 4.9 4.9 
48342 5 5 5 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.8 4.8 

48343 5 4.8 4.9 4.8 4.9 · 4.8 

Monthly 5.25 5.07 5.1 5.025 5 4.95 4.93 4.9 

Jul-19 19-Aug Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 19-Dec 

48340 4.9 4.8 4.8 4.7 4.9 4.9 
48341 5 5.1 5.2 5.1 5 5.1 
48342 4.8 4.8 4.7 4.8 4.9 4.9 
48343 

Monthly 4.9 4.9 4.9 4.8 4.93 4.96 
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DISPATCH Jan-19 Feb-19 19-Mar Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 1-Jul Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 19-Dec 

Abdominal Pain 31 31 36 32 36 30 28 35 34 17 42 53 

airmedical transport 1 1 0 0 0 

Allergies 8 7 6 6 7 9 8 4 4 5 0 8 

ALTERED MENTAL STATUS 12 15 9 12 16 12 9 14 8 9 7 4 

Animal bites 1 2 2 1 1 5 2 0 1 1 1 

Assault 20 29 31 30 40 55 51 29 43 24 32 27 

Invalid assist 2 6 2 3 5 4 3 1 2 8 5 5 

Pedestrian struck by Auto 0 0 0 1 

Back Pain 9 14 17 12 12 13 13 6 10 12 5 14 

Breathing Problems 115 130 127 126 165 118 115 143 146 112 102 71 

Burns 2 2 1 2 3 4 2 2 3 0 2 

Cardiac Arrest 15 7 11 9 13 13 14 11 13 14 18 

Chest pain 77 77 69 76 86 67 72 101 66 69 64 52 

Choking 3 2 4 1 1 8 4 6 2 4 2 

CO poisoning 2 0 4 5 1 1 1 0 1 0 1 

Seizures 49 29 39 67 49 45 51 58 42 58 51 124 

Diabetic Issues 22 17 20 25 24 20 27 25 31 21 23 28 

Drowning 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 

Electrocution 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Eye issues 0 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 0 3 

Fainting 0 0 0 0 0 

Fall Victim 76 73 58 65 58 60 69 72 49 75 71 61 

Fever 0 0 6 0 0 0 3 

Fire 1 2 3 1 3 2 0 0 0 1 

Headache 8 6 7 5 5 9 3 4 0 2 3 4 

Heart Problems 12 5 5 15 7 12 3 7 14 12 8 11 

Heat/Cold Exposures 0 1 2 6 0 0 3 

Hemorrhage from Laceration 16 12 9 15 20 16 25 17 17 15 20 18 

Industrial Accident 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Medical alarms 5 19 13 19 21 23 20 27 12 12 9 12 

MCI 0 0 0 0 0 

Ingested Poison 0 0 0 0 7 

Non Emergent requests 15 19 3 4 0 



Overdose 49 32 27 31 47 51 34 42 31 36 41 39 
Pregnancy/Childbirth 24 4 4 6 13 12 13 4 13 13 12 5 

Psychiatric Problems 32 36 32 32 36 56 30 45 47 30 42 43 

Respiratory Arrest 0 0 0 0 0 

"Sick" Person 164 123 156 189 164 228 190 182 245 217 217 224 

Standby 3 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 

stab/Gunshot Wound 3 4 5 7 10 1 6 8 3 6 3 

Stroke/CV A 19 12 16 19 16 17 13 12 17 22 13 14 

Traffic Accidents 38 35 35 28 54 86 64 so 49 55 52 33 

Palliative care 21 13 26 27 29 31 28 24 43 31 34 31 

Traumatic Injury 18 14 9 18 21 17 17 12 11 13 14 15 
Unconscious/unknown cause so 20 51 60 72 52 49 59 45 42 37 44 

UNKNOWN 14 0 7 28 25 23 32 30 29 8 21 13 
"Person DOWN" 0 0 33 16 11 3 0 0 20 0 
Sexual Assault 0 0 0 0 0 

Wei! Person Ck 0 1 3 3 2 5 2 1 2 0 1 

total 937 800 874 991 1058 1113 1009 1036 1043 963 961 989 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor, City Council President and City Council Members 

Irwin Williams, Interim Finance Director 
through the Office of Deputy Mayor Jane Bais DiSessa, 

February 12, 2020 

Study of Appropriation Decisions Regarding Underfunded Line Items 

The attached presentation is a study of financial appropriation decisions regarding 
underfunded line items in the FY2019-2020 adopted budget. As noted, budgetary cuts 
were made to the recommended budget across various departments reflecting reductions 
in numerous line items. 

During budget sessions and prior to adoption of the current budget, the Finance 
Department advised that these cuts would cause additional expenditures to accrue in 
order to remain solvent and meet the City's required financial obligations. 

For example, full-time staffing levels were removed at the Pontiac Youth Recreation & 
Enrichment Center (PYREC). Adopted staff reductions caused additional increases in 
personnel costs. Despite the budget cuts, appropriate staffing levels must be maintained 
for the safety of our children. These staffing levels had to be paid at an excessive 
overtime rate because the originally agreed upon salary rate was arbitrarily removed. 

As a point of clarification, the previous presentation listed $700,000 as a legal fee. It is a 
fee to fulfill our obligation for the Phoenix Center Settlement. $700,000 is our legally 
bound obligation to remain compliant with Judge Obrien's ruling. 

IW 

Attachment 



Study of Appropriations Regardi1ng Underfunded Line Items 

As of December 31, 2019 
expenditures in all funds are under 
budget year to date except for: 
-Local Streets 
-Youth Rec 

-Capital Improvements 
-Drug Enforcement 
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Local Streets Fund 

Budget amendment rollover of $700,929 
for Local Roads Projects under contract and 
partially completed in prior year has not 
been approved. 



Youth Rec Fund 
• Delay in approving the purchase 

of the PYREC Center, resulted in 
unbudgeted lease payments of 
$26,000 per month {$312,000 
annual'ly) 

• Excess expenditures for overtime 
due to unfilled staff positions 



Capital Improvements Fund 

-
f01d Motor Co Capital El}lfflfitlns (Qu.rta1y} 

Capital 
Expend·t,v 

'I 

• Emergency replacement of 
boilers in 3 fire stations 
unbudgeted. 

• Repairs to mausoleum Ottawa 
Cemetery $28,000 unbudgeted. 

• soth District Courthouse 
renovation expenses completed 
earlier than expected. 



Drug Enforcement Fund 

Under budgeted Cellular Phone Usage 



General Fund Expenditures 

• All Departments in the General 
are under budget except for the 
City Attorney's Department 
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City of Pontiac 
General Fund Expenditures 

For 6 Months Ending December 31, 2019 
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Explanation •Of Over Budget Legal Expenditures 

• City Attorney's FY 2020 budget was reduced by 50%. 
• Phoenix Center Htigation line item of $100,000 was eliminated 

from the Parking Fund, despite substantia l ongoing legal 
matters. These unbudgeted expenditures are now recorded in 
the General Fund. 

• The CPREA litigation created substantial additional and 
unbudgeted expenditures. 

• Higher than anticipated MIDC representation of defendants at 
all levels of prosecution has created substantially more 
prosecution- related costs than budgeted. 

• Amazon $250,000,000.00 development has created 
unbudgeted legal costs. 
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City of Pontiac City Clerk 
Medical Marihuana Application Review 

Process and Status of Profession a I Experts 
Agreements Update 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., CNP, Interim City Clerk 
February 18, 2020 

http://www.pontiaccityclerk.com 



Provisioning Center Application 
& Review Process 



Provisioning Center Application 
Districts wi ll e rev·ewed in the 

following order 
1. Cesar Chavez (17 applications) 

2. Downtown (23 applications) 

3. Non-Overlay (48 applications) 

4. Walton Blvd (15 applications) 

Total = 103 applications 

*order subject to change 



0 

0 

83 
(j) 

of Pontiac A Hcation Review Process for Provlslonln 
he Office of the City Clerk will divide all applications into one of four distncts. Applicants will be scored and ranked b 
istrict. 

he City Clerk will check with the following departments to ensure that the applicant is not in default with the City. 

50th District Court Review, to 
be completed by City Clerk Income Tax Treasury 

The Scoring Team will consist of the City Clerk, Professional Expert - Planning Advisor, Professional Expert- Finanoa 
lt\dvisor to the City Clerk and the Professional Expert-Legal Advisor to the City Clerk. 
City Clerk, Professional Expert - Planning Advisor and Professional Expert-Financial Advisor will score the relevan1 
!sections of the application. 
lfhe Scoring Team will meet after all the applications in a district have been scored by the City Clerk, Professional Expe11 

Planning Advisor and Professional Expert-Financial Advisor to tally the total score and rank the applications (The 
lscoring team will meet at least four times.) 
lfhe Legal Advisor will complete a compliance review of scored provisioning center applications to ensure aitena have 
been consistently applied by members of the scoring team. 

The legal Advisor will conduct the criminal background checks of the top 5 ranked applicants by district 

tThe City Clerk will announce the application rankings after each dlstrict is scored. 

[The City Clel1c will refer the applications of the top 5 ranked applicants to the following. 

Building Fire 
Sheriff DPW Planning 

• sec. 9(bX1) • Sec. 8(c)(31) 
• Sec. 8(c)(17) • Sec. 8(c)(21) 

• Sec. 9(b)(3) 
• Sec. 9(b)(2) -s= 9{bX1) 

rrtle City Clerk will award permits to the top 5 applicants from each district after they have received 9(b )( 1 ) dearancE 
Jrom Building and Fire, 9{b)(2) clearance from Planning. and 9(b)(3) dearance from Building. 

I 



I Medical Marlhuana AppRcatton Review I Roles and Responslbllllfes 

I City Clerk I I Mavor I I 
I I SpeciaJ Assinant to t:M I Responsible for acceptin1 appl!clttions; r<!'Viewin1 City04'f1il: 

1row~r .. p.roce:ssor, Siecure tran..s.poner, and safety 
compli1tnc.. applications; 1twan:f1ne- M"'2i.ca1 I 
M a rihtJana pe:rmiu and ap_point.in.t a hear-ins office-r I City Departments I to h~ar appe•ats. 

I 

The City Cler1< will score the rouowtng Provlslonin& Plannin,c 
Centtt AppUca-tion sections.: 5-ection 
Content and Sufficiency of tnformation 

9/bl 12 1 Medical 8ae1<&round lnform,nion subate,cory 9(fl 11) I City Attorney CommuniTy o-lopmen,: subatecorv 9 (f) (11 Marihuana I 
PhilanthrOj)ic and Community lmprove,rnent :9(f) {7) Building 

Commission Se-ction 
The City Cle rk may engaae professi onal ex~ 9(bl Ill 
assisRJnc~ in perlor-ming the Cte:rtt's duties, arn:t Section 
re:sponsibiUti6 Undlll!_r this on:financ~ (O rdinance 9 (b)C21 
235 7(81 section 9(Jl) 

I 

Flre 

section 
8(c) (31) 

Section 
:9(b) ( 1) 

Professional Experts I 
I 

Shfflff 
St!c:tion 
8(c) (17) 

I I 
Financial Advisor 

Planning Adviscw Legal Advisor 
Finanoal Adv\sor to the City Oerlc Sherman J . Taylor . Lepl AdYis<>r to the City Oert< Ro !>en Hutti 
JO CPA. SRT Consultme.. UC Planni nc AdVisor to the City Oertc (TSO) Esq_ Kiri<. Huth uonce & 6adalamenu. Pt.C 

Application sections to Rt!Yie.w Application Sections; £0 ftrvlew 
Appia~ Sections to Review 

Conte nt an d Sufficiency Con~n1: and S1.1fficie-ncy of Information 
Cont.,,n and Sufficiency 

Financial Bad<ground subcatecory 91fJ Cl) F.acility subcat~ory :9(0 (11 
Patient EdlJcation s.ubcatt&ory 9(0 Cl) 

Econom,c Bene1".u subon~ory 9 (0 Ill Lltnd Use 9(0 121 
Manaeertal ReS<>UTces 9{0 (41 Communi'ty lmpaa :9[fl (3) 

Compllance Review 
Finanaal Resources 9 (() (SI Physical Improvements 9(f) (8 ) 

Oevelop Polic;a •nd Proc«ct1.mes ror Heari11& 
Job Creanon 9{f) (61 Oflk.,rs 



Status of Professional Expert 
Agreements 

1. Sherman J. Taylor, JD CPA, SRT Consulting,. LLC 
Status: Contract approved by City Counci l and Signed by Mayor Waterman 

2. Legal Advisor to the City Clerk 
Robert Huth, Esq. Kirk, Huth, Lange & Badalamenti, PLC 
Status: Under Review 

3. Planning Advisor to the City Clerk 
TBD 

4. Building Consultant to the City Clerk 
The Clerk is proposing to enter into a separate contract with Wade Trim for a designated person 
to serve in this capacity at the same hourly rate for current Building Services $71.07. This will 
enable Wade Trim current staff assigned to the City to focus on the Mayor's priorities and serving 
the residents of Pontiac. 



CITY OF PONTIAC MEDICAL IIARIHUANA PROVJSIONING CENlc.RS 
SCORING CRITERIA GUID5 

Applicants seeking a license to operate a me(fteal marihuana prOYiSioning c:enter Milin Ille Cil}t of Ponliac wl.1 
be evaluated and sax-ed according lo -..era! aileria set out In the City of Pontiac Medical Marihuana Facilities 
Ordinance. 

Each applicant will be scored In each of the lolowing eiQtll categories: 

Maximum Appficable 
Cat.gory Possible Ordinance 

Polnls Section 
1 Cont&nt and SutrJClency 

Subcaleoories 

• Baclqyound lnlama/Jon (up lo 5 J)Clinls) . Financ;,a/ 8acJr.grOllld (IC> 1o 10 points) . Economic Benefits (up lo 10 points) 50 §9(1)(1) 
• Ccmmmity Development (up to 10 points) 

"scored using ~lly Bener11s Scoring . Pfallfllflg (Facility) (up lo 10 point,s) . Patient Education'"- lo 5 M'-lsl 
2 Land Use 20 §9(1X2) 
3 Communltv lnmact 10 SQ(ll(J) 
4 Man-rial Resovn;es 10 §9(1)(4) 
5 Financial Resources 10 l;~I)@_ 
6 Job Creation 10 '>!!11116) 
7 Philanthrople and Community lrnprowment 10 §9(1)(7) 

I--
-.-...-., CGmmun•v Bonerds ~_..... 

8 Phvsical lnulrovements 10 §9(1)(8} 
TOTAL POSSIBLE SCOR£ 130 

In a category ln which an applicant can earn a maximlffl o41iYe (5) points, awficants win receiw: 
• One ( 1 ) poinl if their submission is Very Dflficknt, or 
• Five (5) points if~ submission is Satisfactory. 

In a categ01y In Which an appicanl can eam a maximum ol len (10) pc,s,ls. applicants wil recelw: 
• One ( t) point if lheir Stlbmission is Very Def'tclent. 
• Five (5) points if their submission is Somewhat D&liclent. a,-

• Ten (10) points V lhelr sUbmission is Satisfactory. 

In lt1e calego,y in which an applicant can eam a maximum cl twenty (20) points, applcants wil receive: 
• One (1) poin( If lheinubmisslon Is Very DeficJent, 
• Ten (10) points if !heir submission IS Somewhat Oer1elenr.. °' 
• Twenty (20) points W lheir submissxin is S.11$/actwy. 

A submission will be deemed Satlsfactory in a partJaJlar category if ii satisfies the aiteria set oul for that 
category, as applicable. 

A submissioo will be deemed Somewhat Deficient ill a parlicular categoiy ,f it partialy satisfies 1he aileria set 
out lof lhat category but fails to satisfy all aileria, as applicable .. 

A submission will be deemed Very Deficient In a par1iaAar categofy if ii sigrmcanlly fails to sallsly 1he aileria 
set out for that calog<lry, as appicable. 



In ~der to niceive the maximum amount of points for pflH!uallflcatton with lhe State of Midiigan In the 
categories of Managltl'lal Resources and Financial Resources. the applicant mu&t have reoeived Its p,e­
qualiflcation prior to submitting its Provisioning Cenlff Application to the City of Pontiac. 

Community Benefits Scoring 
In lhe Community Development SWcategory of Content and Sufficieocy (~ lo 10 points} and lhe Philanthropic 
and Community Improvement Calego(y (up to 10 poinls), applicants will be scored based on !he community 
benefits pledged in the City. Community benefds points "''ill be awarded, as determined by the City Clerk., based 
on !he commitment, quaity. duralion and C0n1frllrily suppor1 of such pledged benefits. 

If an applicant does noC pledge community benefits, such appl!cant wll teeeMt a zero {0) srore for such 
Community Development Subcategory and Philantlwopic and CommlJRty Improvement Ca!egocy. 

In •each Community Benefits Scoring category in which an applicant can earn a maJCimum of three (3) points. 
applicants will receive; 

• One (1) point ii lheiT submission Is Ve,y Deficient, or 
• Three (3) poinlS If theff submi:ssiOll is 5atislactory. 

In each Community Benefits Scoring category in which an applicant can earn a maximum of fcu (4) points, 
awricants wil receive: 

• One ( 1) point If lheir submlssioo Is Very Deficient, or 
• Four (4) points if lheit soomiSsioo is Satisfactory. 

The Total Possible Score lor an appicalioo is 130 points 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 



ower, Processor, Secure 
Transporter & Safety Compliance 

Application & Review Process 



Secure Transporter Application 
Bleus, LLC 

Donald Bleuestein, submitted a secure transporter application for 
review on August 9, 2019. As of February 14, 2020, Bleus, LLC 
application has not been reviewed. Mr. Bleuenstein has requested a 
refund due to the City's inability to review his application. The City has a 
policy that the application fee is non-refundable. 

I am in support of Mr. Bleuenstein receiving a refund since we have not 
began to review his application that was submitted six months ago. 



G) 
Official City of Pontiac Application Review Process for Grower, 

Processor Secure Trans orter and Safe Com liance A licants 
he Office of the City Clerk will review all applications to make sure all information and exhibits hav 
en submitted. 1..---------------------------------------' 

r::\ The City Clerk will check with the following departments to ensure that the applicant is not in defaul 
\.!:,_) ·th the City. 

50th District Court Review, to 
be completed by City Clerk Income Tax Treasury 

0 e legal Advisor to the City Clerk will conduct the criminal background checks of the applicants. 

G) ~ he City Clerk will refer the applications to the following. I 
Building Fire Financial L~I 

Advisor to City Sheriff Finance OPW Advisor City Clerk 
• Sec. 9(b)( 1) Planning 

Sec. 8(c)(31) Clerk • Sec. 8(cXrn Sec. 8(cK25 Sec. 8(C)(21 • Sec 8(cX5J • Sec. 
• Sec. 9(b)(3) 

• Se-c. 9(bl(2) 
• Sec. 9(b)(1) • sec. 8(el(6}(13) •Sec 8 lc\114' 8(c)(15}-(16) 

• Sec. a(c)(22). • Sec. 
(241 8(c)(25) 

~ The City Clerk will award permits to applicants that have satisfactorily met all requirements o 
~ Ordinance 2357(b} and have received 9(b)(1) clearance from Building and Fire, 9(b)(2) clearance from 

Planning, and 9(b)(3) clearance from Building. 



The em ers oft e Scoring Team and any city staff or contractor that 
reviews any portion of the application will have to sign both of the 

following: 

1) Conflict of Interest 

2) Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure Form 



V) 
V') 
Q) 
u 
0 
L. 

0.. 
-ro 
Q) 
Cl. 
Cl. 
<( 



Appeal Process 

• An applicant denied a permit may appeal to the City Clerk, who shall appoint a hearing 
officer to hear and evaluate an appeal and make a recommendation to the City Clerk. 
Such appeal would be taken by filing a written statement of appeal with the City Clerk, 
within fourteen (14) days after notice of the denial. 

o The City Clerk would review the report and recommendation of the hearing officer 
and make a decision on the matter. 

• The City Clerk's decision may be further appealed to the Medical Marihuana 
Commission by written appeal no later than thirty (30) days after the City Clerk's 
decision. 

• The Medical Marihuana Commission shall only overturn a decision or finding of the clerk 
if it finds such decision or finding to be arbitrary or capricious and not supported by 
material, substantial, and competent facts on the whole record considered by the clerk 
in arriving at such decision or finding (Ordinance 23578). 



PROCESS FOR APPEAL 

Pontiac Crty Clerk makes doclst0n on application 

Applant aubmt\S wnllon appeal to 
Pontiac C1!y Clerk wltNn 1• daY$. 

PootlllC City Clel1<. B?l)OllllS heanng ofr,cer to hear 
and evaluate appeal 

A4);>1,c:al'I( can pr8$8lll ~dillotlal cl~ng 
lnfonnaOon or avl~r,c:e U-.al tile aPPti(:ent 

believes should be conslce,ed In UM!Ulng IIS 

Heanng otricer conducts heating on appeal and 
mak• recornmendallon 10 Pont111C City Cler1c, 

wno makes a decision on the maur. 

Appllcan< maysu1>,M furtherwnuen appeal to 
medical mamuana commlss,oo Wlth,n 30 days. 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

By evol~ii:,g the parkin.9 progr~m to fit withii:i overall downtown objectives, the Plan preates 
opportunities to better ahgn parking and econom1c development, delivers a more comprehensive and 
sust~inable approach fo communitv access strategies, and establishes more collaborative 
relationships w1th related agencies and community partners. 
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SECTION ONE: 
BUSINESS OVERVIEW 

MISSION STATEMENT AND ORGANIZATIONAL VALUES 

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS 

ORGANIZATIONAL Values 

ALIGNMENT WITH CITY GOALS 

SUMMARY OF KEY TRENDS AND CHALLENGES LIKELY TO IMPACT THE BUSINESS WITHIN THE 

NEXT Five YEARS 

RELATIONSHIP OF SERVICE ACTIVITIES TO 

OTHER DEPARTMENT'S AND AGENCIES' ACTIVITIES 
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MISSION STATEMENT 

The mission of Parking Services is to own, operate, and 
maintain an off-street parking facility, the Phoenix Center 
Parking Garage (PCPG) that meets the transportation, 
planning, development and financial goals of the City of 
Pontiac. 

ORGANIZATIONAL VALUES 

In order to achieve its mission, The City of Pontiac Parking Enterprise Fund strives to attain the following: 

1) Provide quality service with an emphasis on customer service for all individuals and 
groups including those with specific needs, unique situations, and physically challenges. 

2) Operate and maintain a parking garage that is sound, safe, efficient, and aesthetically pleaslng, 

while ensuring smooth transitions among different modes of transportation. 

3) Maintain a climate of fiscal integrity. 

4) Provide financial integration to support overall transportation objectives of the City, including 
transit, bicycle, pedestrian and parking. 

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS 

Completed in the 1980's as part of an urban renewal plan for the City of Pontiac, the Phoenix Center is a 
three-story, approximately 874,000 square foot parking garage which can fit up to 2,500 vehicles. The top 
level of the garage includes a garden and entertainment plaza with a covered amphitheater. This plan, 
was implemented as a logical response to: 

1. The private sector's desire to finance and build a parking facility in the downtown core 
2. The desire to Intercept commuters before they enter the core 
3. The need to minimize traffic congestion In the downtown core 

The Phoenix Center is a unique and readily identifiable focal point in the City. A portion of Orchard Lake 
Road runs underneath it. 

The Phoenix Center cost approximately $23 million dollars to construct In 1980. 

The parking garage connects two eight-story commercial buildings named the Ottawa Towers. The two 
buildings are owned by Michigan-based Ottawa Towers II L.L.C and north Bay Drywall Inc. Profit Sharing 
Plan and Trust. Each building has a 1 ,400-person capacity. Only 800 spaces are available for public 
parking. 
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ALIGNMENT WITH CITY GOALS 
The Phoenix Center Parking Garage impacts and is impacted by several adopted City Goats and 
expectations. 

Maintain the physical infrastructure to ensure a healthy, vital and safe City 

• Available resources must first be focused on maintaining and improving the City's existing physical 
Infrastructure rather than building or acquiring new infrastructure. The City will invest In new 
infrastructure only when those investments are essential for meeting critical City goals and where 
funding can be identified. 

• The City will coordinate infrastructure improvements with other development planning and 
implementation efforts in order to avoid unnecessary costs and disruptions. As we plan our 
infrastructure improvements, the City will consider the important role transit and physical and 
technological infrastructure plays in supporting a strong vital community. 

Create an environment that maximizes economic development opportunities within The City of 
Pontiac focusing on the City's physical and human assets. 

• City government will serve as a community catalyst for business development, job creation 
and transit access. The City's physical infrastructure will support our economic development 
policies and facilitate access to jobs and services. More specifically, the City will support 
building capacity within the business community, in order to strengthen the business 
community's ability to attract new businesses and foster entrepreneurship. 

Deliver consistently high quality City services at a good value to our taxpayers 

• The City of Pontiac will develop a culture of customer service within City government. We will 
make City services more accessible and user•friendly and will make our processes clear and 
understandable. City government will deliver all services in an effective and cost.efficient manner. 

• The City of Pontiac will continue to find ways of improving upon the way we do business. City 
departments will work together to seek out and address opportunities for improving service 
delivery. 

• The City of Pontiac will explore strategies and technologies that measure service delivery. These 

tools will be used to determine where resources are most needed and what services the City 

should deliver. 
Strengthen City government management and enhance community engagement 

• The City will focus on enhancing productivity and creating a customer service-oriented culture. We 
will create a work environment where employees can excel, by building employee skills and 
Improving employee diversity. Better information and analysis will be used to allow for more 
informed decision-making at both the elected and staff levels. We will develop and maintain a long­
term, sustainable financial plan for the City. Special focus will be given to engaging our employees 
and the community in how we address and communicate these financial challenges. Elected 
officials and departments will hold themselves accountable to City goals, policies and plans. 
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KEY TRENDS AND CHALLENGES LIKELY TO 
IMPACT PARKING SERVICES IN THE NEXT S YEARS 

The key trends and challenges that are likely to Impact Phoenix Center Parking Garage over the next 
five years include market conditions, ability to incorporate new technology, the viability of the Parking 
Fund, and addressing aging equipment and infrastructure. 

Market Conditions 
• As the downtown core expands, the parking facilities value increases along with their revenues as 

demand for parking increases. 
• The private sector will continue to leverage the economic benefits of new projects to reduce and/or 

avoid costs associated with construction of new parking facilities 
• Downtown office vacancy rates significantly affect the demand for parking. 
• Increased congestion in the downtown core. 

New Technology Opportunities 
• The use of technology and centralization could reduce expenses and improve service. Examples 

include utilizing automated pay stations that could reduce staffing levels in ramps, electronic fund 
transfers (EFT) that could reduce check handling costs, and alternative payment methods such as web­
based payments, payroll deductions, or auterpay that could improve customer service. 

Parking Fund Vlablllty 
• The mid-term and long-term viability of the Phoenix Center Parking Garage depends on reinvestment in 

the system assets. 

Aging equipment and infrastructure 
• The parking industry standard for revenue control updates Is every 5-7 years. The current ticket 

dispensers and card readers now require excessive maintenance and are in need of replacement. 
• A reserve fund could and should be established for equipment upgrades. 
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RELATIONSHIP OF SERVICE ACTIVITIES TO 
OTHER DEPARTMENT'S AND AGENCIES' ACTIVITIES 

SERVICE ACTIVITY #1 : OFF-STREET PARKING 

Contractor Operations: 
Utilizing city employees to operate parking facilities would be prohibitively expensive based on the 24 
hour per day, seven days per week nature of parking facilities and city employee labor rates and 
contracts. As a result, the City would contract with private parking companies to operate parking 
ramps. 

Per the current contracts, primary contractor responsibilities include, but are not limited to: 

• Fiduciary: efficient collection and safeguarding of collected funds; bookkeeping and accounting; 
contract maintenance for monthly parking 

• Security: safeguarding of customers and their property; safeguarding of City assets (facilities, 
equipment) 

• Maintenance: facility (i.e. janitorial, snow removal); facility equipment (i.e. revenue control 
equipment, security systems, HVAC, fire protection equipment) 

City of Pontiac Operations: 
Primary Parking Services responsibilities include, but are not limited to: 

• Contractor Oversight: proper oversight of all contractor personnel; contract maintenance 
and enforcement 

• Fiduciary: analysis of City and operator expenses; analysis and adjustment of parking rates; 
analysis of facility utilization; audit of revenue control procedures; preparation of operating 
and capital budgets; customer service reviews 

• Facilities: major repair/ restoration work on existing facilities; preventative maintenance 
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SECTION Two: 
Finance & Technology Plan 

FINANCE PLAN 

TECHNOLOGY PLAN 
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FINANCE PLAN 

Assumptions in financial calculations 

Taking into account all the factors that influence pricing, the hourly parking rates In the off-street public 
parking garages have been fairly constant averaging between $.25 to $,.50 per hour. 

S0.60 

so.so 

$0.40 

S0.30 

$0,.20 

So.io 

S-

Hourly Rates of Area Parking Garages 

Rcyal Oak La1a.,.ette A•,e 316 E Eleven 180 E 3rd St JBn E 5th St 
Parldn i hrl'1n E Mlle Rel Parldn g Parkin i 

Parklni 

10 

Lot 7 200 S Troy 



Average monthly contract rates have been increasing ranging between $35 a month and $60 a month. The 
monthly parking rate at the Mclaren Hospital in Pontiac Is $35 per month 

Monthly Rates of Area Parking Garages 
...... -.. 
:: 1 .. . _ ... 

, . . .. .. ... . 

5;. : . .:: 

I I I 
Mc~arer, Lafc1yette 316 E El t!Ven 180 E 31 d ',t 180 ES th St lot 7 200 S Troy 
Hospital A\Je Par<d 1g Mlle Rd Pandng Park.l··,g 
(Po:-1tlac) Pc1rkl 1g 

11 



City of Pontiac 
Phoenix Center Parking Garage 

5 Year Proiections 

v .. r1 

Ravenu•s 

Short Term P.ir1dna Income (Mon,Tu11s,Wed,Thurs, Friday, Satfrcm 9:00 AM to S PM 24,960 

Short Term Parking Income (Thursday, Friday, Sat6:00 to Midnight 117,000 
Lon11 Term ParkJng 8,400 

Erebus Income 55,000 

Event Income 

Toul Revenue, . 20S1360 

EJCl)•nses: 

subcontracted Services: 

Subcontracted Atttendants Day 32,120 
Subcontracted Atttendants Evening 32,120 
Subcontracted Maintenance Worker 50,000 
Adrnlnlstration Fae 10!000 

124,240 

Suppl II!$ $12,000 

Utilities: 

Electricity 75,000 
Water & Sewer 15,000 

Gas/Heat 1,200 

91,200 
Maintenance: 

Building Equipment Maintt!n~ce 35,000 
Bulld[ng Supplles 12,000 
Building Malntenane 25,000 

72,000 
Property Insurance 30,000 
Socurity Guards 87,600 

Total hpanst11 417,040 

Net Income (Loss) frorn operations before non_operatlng costs (2.11,680) 

Non-Oper•tlnc Cost& 

Net Income {Loss) Before Transfers & Depreciation (211,680) 

Transfers In From General Fund 211,680 

Net Income ( Loss) Before Depreciation 

Depreciation (866,000) 

Net Income ( Loss) 1a&s10001 

12 

Yt•r Z Year! YNr4 v,ars 

46,800 62,400 124,800 UA,800 

156,000 195,000 273,000 312,000 

42,000 63,000 73,500 312,000 

SS,000 SS,000 55,000 ss,ooo 
20,000 30,000 50,000 60,000 

319)100 405,400 S76,300 863,800 

32,120 32,120 32,120 32,120 

32,120 32,120 32,120 32,120 

50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 
10,000 10!000 10,000 l0,000 

124,240 124,2.40 124,2.40 124,240 

$12,000 $13,000 $14,000 $15,000 

75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 

15,000 15,000 1S,000 15,000 
1,200 1,200 11200 l,200 

91,200 91,200 91,200 91,200 

36,050 37,132 98,245 39,393 

12,000 13,000 14,000 1S,000 

25,000 251000 25,000 2S,000 
73,050 75,132 77,245 79,393 

30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 
87,600 87,600 87,600 87,600 

418,090 421,172 424,285 427,433 

(98,290) (15,772) 152,015 436,367 

(98,290) (15,772) 1S2.,015 436,367 

981290 15,772 

152,015 436,367 

(866,000) (866,000) (866,000) 1866,000) 

1866,0001 1as&,O®l 171!.9851 142916331 



Assumptions Year 5 

•Short Term Parking Income (Mon,Tues,Wed,Thurs, Friday, Sat from 9:00 AM to 5 PM 
400 cars per day daytime, 2 hours-average stay 2 hours@ $.50 HR 

•Short Term Parking Income (Thursday, Friday, Sat 6:00 to Midnight 
400 cars per day day, 3 nights-5.00 per night 

• Long Term Parking Income 
400 cars @ $65 per month 

• Attendants and maintenance worker positions will be subcontracted 
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Other Potential Revenue Streams 

There are other revenue streams that could be generated. However, at this time finance has insufficient data 
and information available to make any projections. Some areas that could generate additional revenues 
Include 

1.Retail Shops on the amphitheater level 
...... -

' .•. f- ~ . . 
. I I . . ~ ·,-
~ l'l, -: ... 

. l~ r; , \. . 
I I ., ... , I _,,., ·.-., I 

J/1'/)/, /f/111I //////(1 11 I I I 1111 \", I\ 
Dyn.unic PLu:a P..llttem-; Colo~ 

~~J&onnl St,ucturaf'I Fonr, - Ughl · lco,1ic 
-· -r--_ --

lnve1tli1tu Arcllilrt:tu,.. 
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2.Building access ramp on North side of the parking garage 
•To give public easy access to Amphitheatre 
•To give vendors the needed access to provide supplies for events 

3.Urban Farming 

Urban farming can take a variety of fo'rms but, conceptually speaking, it refers to crop 
production within cities and surroundings. Urban farming (also known as urban agriculture) 
takes advantage of every inch of private or public space and can involve anything from rooftop 
farming to balcony gardening, from farming in parking lots to farming along roadsides. Urban 
farming plays a large part in contributing to sustainable urban development. As more and 
more people are living in cities, urban agriculture is emerging as an attractive means of 
supplying urbanites with food. At the same time, urban farming is an important strategy for 
reduction of hunger and poverty, improvement in resident health, and climate change 
mitigation and adaptation. 
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TECHNOLOGY PLAN 

Parking Technical Requirements Issues 

The City of Pontiac Phoenix Center Parking Garage has unique business requirements that many times 
drive decisions for computer hardware. There are very few vendors that have parking software and/or 
hardware solutions that the City of Pontiac can use to install in new parking ramps or for replacement of 
obsolete equipment in existing parking ramps. Many of these vendors' software solutions are tied to 
specific computer hardware that may not match the established City standard computer hardware. 

Turnkey Solutions 
When a vendor's software requires specific hardware to function, the system is called a Tumkey system, 
which means the City needs to procure the entire system as a solution rather than the hardware separate 
from the software. This means that with a turnkey system for a parking ramp, the solution would not work if 
the Parking Garage was required to procure City standard computer hardware. 

For this reason, the Parking Garage should be exempt from the requirements of purchasing the City 
standard computer hardware. 

The most efficient method of operating and maintaining large systems, whether it is a security surveillance 
system, or revenue control system, is to standardize on one particular type of system. This typically means 
that a single provider is necessary in order to keep the equipment consistent throughout ell of the facilities. 
The philosophy of standardizing on certain technologies for the following systems is described below: 
Automation, Revenue Control, and Security. 

I. Automation 

The current trend in parking facility operation is to reduce the number of on-site staff by automating the act of 
paying for the right to park. This concept was initiated in Europe several years ago, and has now made its 
way to the United States. 

There are several manufacturers of automated parking equipment, but all utilize a device called a pay station 
to accomplish the payment process. Instead of a cashier in a parking booth processing customers' tickets, 
users insert their tickets into a machine which calculates their fee, and after payment is made via cash or 
credit card, validates their ticket, which when presented at the exit gate will allow them to leave the facility. 
The machines are extremely reliable, accurate, and greatly reduces the need for personnel at the ramp. 

These systems also permit central management and operation, in which multiple facilities are controlled by 
a central processor, further reducing on-site equipment and staff requirements. 

11. Security 

Originally, security systems, including cameras and call-for-assistance(CFA) stations were used for security 
monitoring. Now, with the fiber optic backbone able to transmit video and audio back to a central command 
center, cameras can be monitored from a single location. The City wi ll move to a digitally based video 
recording system. This will allow high resolution images to be recorded on computer hard drives, which will 
provide convenient access to critical recordings. This will eliminate the need to store bulky video tapes for 
extended periods of time, and reduce maintenance by eliminating the time-lapse video recorders. 

Ill. Revenue Control 

The reconciliation of revenue collected from parking operations is heavily dependent upon 
computerized accounting systems. 

17 
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Additional Items to be added to Pontiac City Council Rules and Procedures 

Page 4 
Disorderly Conduct Change Title to Conduct of Council Members 

The members or Council should exhibit behavior that is courteous and respectful and act as a model for 
the public. The president may cull to order any member who is being disorderly by speaking out of order. 
failing to be gennane, ;;penking V\llgarities, or otherwise disrupting the proceedings. 

Page 6 
Abstentions 
Except as otherwise specified in the City Charter or in matters relating to a direct financial conflict of 
interest no Councilmember shall abstain from voting on any question, except rhat a Counc1lmtmbe1 may 

abstain from votmg on the minutes of a meeting at wl11ch they wen. not present. 

Disposition of Agenda Items 
(Same wording) When an agenda item has been rejected by a vote of Council it may not be returned to the 
agenda unless the Councilmembers request, by majority vote, to give it further consideration. 

Strike out: Dis~esitiea ef AgeAEla Item: .A.a item may not be ret:1:mea for et least 30 Elays aAEI ey a 
Col:i:Boilmemeers request, B:)' e majoFity ¥ote ta gi¥e it further ooAsideretioa. 

An item on the agenda may be postponed lo another time by a majority vote of council. If an 
item is not postponed to a specific time the item may not be returned to the agenda for at least 30 
days. If the Council members wish to return the item to an agenda sooner than 30 days, it will 
require a majority vote. 

Page 6 
Public Comment 

Only individuals signed up for public comment can be provided 3 minutes to speak, except that 
b} a majority vote. the Councilr.:lembeL may t tend a pe:r~onal privilege lo qJlow a mt-mber of 
the public lo speak who had not signed up. 

During Public Comment any reference regarding a member of Council must be directly related to 
his/her actions as a member of the Pontiac City Council. 
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CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor, City Council President and City Council Members 

Dan Ringo, Interim DPW Director 
through the Office of Deputy Mayor Jane Bais DiSessa, 

February 12, 2020 

Report regarding City Council request on Budget for Expanded 
Snow Plowing Services 

At its January 28, 2020 meeting, the City Council requested the City Attorney to draft a 
revised ordinance to change the existing snow event ordinance. The requested ordinance 
change would mandate all city streets be plowed and salted in the event of 3" or more of 
accumulated snow fall. The current ordinance requires snow plow and salting services in 
the event of 6" or more of accumulated snow fall. A feasibility report usually proceeds this 
type of request to consider the increased financial burden on Pontiac taxpayers. 

While this request is consistent with the Administration's ongoing efforts to in-source city 
services and provide additional support to the Department of Public Works, we must act 
responsibly and study the financial feasibility of such changes. It is important to provide 
quality services to our residents and maintain appropriate levels of public investment. 

Our DPW staff has worked hard and diligently, putting in long 16-hour shifts, to clear 
major and local roadways of hazardous snow and ice conditions with limited manpower 
and limited equipment. Changing the ordinance without a substantial investment In 
equipment purchases, upgrades, salt storage facilities, and additional personnel would 
cause an undue heavy strain on our already over-extended DPW staff. In order to 
implement these changes, we estimate the total cost to be $7,555,000. 

On January 21, 2020, the Department of Public Works attempted to provide a report and 
update to the City Council on current snow plow services but the item was removed from 
the agenda. This report as attached has been revised in response to the above 
referenced request and contains: 

• Recommendations for immediate snow emergency events; 
Cost analysis of increased snow plow and salting services and equipment upgrades; 

• Recurring personnel and equipment expenditures; and 
• Long-term options to abate the hazardous conditions created from snow and ice 

accumulation. 

It is recommended that the City Council thoughtfully consider recommendations from the 
Department of Public Works and cost-saving options before adopting a revised snow 
removal ordinance. 

DR 

Attachment 



SNOW OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

February 18, 2020 



BACKGROUND 



Background 

• Winter snow storms are unpredictable due to various: 

• Accumulations 
• Moisture Content of Snow 
• Ambient & Wind Chill Temperatures 
• Timing 
• Duration 
• Wind Direction 
• Velocity 

• No two storms are identical 

• Creates the need to develop a unique plan for every snow storm 



DEPARTMENTAL 
GOALS AND 
OBJECTIVES 



Goals & Objectives 

The City of Pontiac's goal is to abate the hazardous 
conditions created from snow and ice accumulation on 
major roads, secondary and residential roads and city 

operated facilities. 

The plan is to make streets accessible for vehicles 
properly equipped for winter driving conditions durir1g 

and after each storm. 



Objectives 

• Primary Routes: Attempt to clear all primary routes, to bare pavement 
within twelve (12) hours from the end of the snow storm, designated 
as the first priority 

• Secondary Routes: Attempt to make passable during and after snow 
storms with less than six (6) inches of accumulation 

• Residential Routes: Accumulations that exceed six (6) inches from a 
single snow storm and weather forecasts suggest continual freezing 
temperatures, streets with be plowed with an attempt to have all 
roads cleared 48 hours from the time the snow stops 



SURROUNDING . 
COMMUNITIES 
COMPARISON 



Auburn Hills DPW Numbers 

• The City of Auburn Hills Department of Public Works (DPW) 
manages the City's one hundred eighty (180) lane miles of Major:, 
Local and Residential streets 

• Auburn Hills has a fleet of 9 salt trucks 

• One grader 

• Two front-end loaders and fifteen (15) pickup & small dump trucks 

• Staff of forty-five ( 45) 



Rochester Hills DPW 
Numbers 

• Rochester Hills operates a Fleet · 
Services Division that maintains iliYO 
vehicles and 200 pieces of power 

and field equipment 

• DPW Staff has 70 FTEs 



CURRENT PONTIAC 
DPW BY THE #s 



PONTIAC DPW Numbers 

• DPW operates a 6 Large Dumps, 2 Small Dumps and 2 picl<ups 

• We have 6 CDL drivers and 3 non-COL drivers for the pickups. That 
is taking the sanitation and facilities tech to support that 

• 169 major and 330 lane miles both larger than Rochester ancl 
Auburn Hills 

• Our available field staff to complete snow is at 9 FTEs. This is 
significantly short of both Rochester and Auburn Hills 



DPW RETROSPECT 



DPW Staffing 1970 

• 335 without Water and 
Sewage 

• 442 with Water and 
Sewage 



PONTIAC DPW 1970 

DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS a SERVICE 
1968 

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

~•ft• 



CURRENT DPW 
STAFFING BY THE #s 
February 18, 2020 



DPW Staffing 2020 
• 1 Director (Interim) 

• 2 Superintendents (1 Building) 

• 1 Supervisor 

• 1 Right of Way 

• 1 Sanitation Inspector 

• 1 Maintenance Tech 

• 1 Engineer 

• 1 Foreman 

• 6 Laborers 

• 2 Admin Support 

• Total of 17 FTEs 



PONTIAC DPW 2020 



OPTIONS FOR DPW 



OPTIONS 

0 OPTION 1: Hire 2 full time COL Drivers 
$62,816/driver x 2 = $125,632 

0 OPTION: 2: Purchase 2 dump trucks & hire 2 full time COL drivers 
$190,000/vehicle x 2 + $62,816/driver x 2 = $505,632 

0 Option 3: Hire dedicated contractor with 7 additional vehicles 
Average episode cost: $28,000 x estimated 10 occurrences = $280,000 

0 Option 4: Work with adjacent communities to plow in Pontiac 
Labor costs 20% over City of Pontiac & Vehicle costs the same 
Timing would not benefit the City as resources would not be available until 

plowing is completed in home community. 



Immediate Recommendations 

• Option 1: Hire 2 full time CDL drivers= 
$125,632 

• Phase in Option 2 = $505,632 

• Immediate End Goal: Purchase a total of Y 
dump trucks and hire 7 additional full time 
CDL drivers. Phase in as resources are 
available for a total of $631,264 



Permanent Recommendations 
Year Amount Existing Trucks New Truck Equip Needed Total Price 

International Tandem 

2009 4 Axle Dump 

International Tandem Axle 

2020 2 Dump 480,000 
International Single Axle 

2009 2 Dump 

2020 4 Medium Duty Pump 600,000 
2019 2 GMC3500HD 

2020 2 GMC 3500HD Pump 125,000 
2019 2 GMC 2500HD P/U 

2020 4 gmc 2500HD P /U 200,000 
2020 2 Kubota UTV 50,000 

2020 2 Articulating Wheel Loader 600:,000 

DPW Building 5,000,000 
Salt Barn Dome 800~000 

Total $ 7,555,000.00 



ESTIMATE COST OF 
ORDINANCE CHANGE 

611 to 311 



ORDINANCE CHANGE 

• DPW's current average or approximate cost per snow 
occurrence deployment =$40,000 

• Contractor (Casar) is $28k [FIXED COST] for locals N. 
M-59 

• DPW's cost includes OT for six employees working 
averaging 20 hours each + bill back for use 0f trucks, 
fuel and salt 

• An approximate cost for an ordinance change is 
difficult to determine because it is not know how 
often it will snow 3" rather than 6" but the cost is 
likely to be substantial over current budgets. 



CITY HALL 
ELEVATOR UPDATE 



Elevator Update 

• City Hall has one (1) elevator 
• This elevator is over fifty (SO) years old 
• The elevator has been serviced by Detroit Elevator for 

several years 
• The part needed to restore serviced had to be made 

and could not be ordered 
• The part and the company will be onsite Monday 

2/17/2020 
• Repair estimation is five business days 
• An Elevator replacement is approximately $250,000 

USD and would be down a minimum of eight (8) weeks 



PRESENTATION 



Conclusion 

• Immediate Recommendation Support 
needed ... $631,264 

• Permanent Recommendation Support 
needed .... $7,555 ,000 

• An Elevator replacement is approximately $250,000 
USD and would be down a minimum of eight (8) 

• *Additional costs for equipment for spring/summer 
work to keep additional hires busy in those months 





Office of the City Clerk 
47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, Ml 48342 
(248) 758-3200 
http://pontiaccityclerk.com 

SERVE YOUR COMMUNITY ON ELECTION DAY!!! 
BECOME A POLL WORKER for the March 10, 2020 Election 

POSITIONS AVAILABLE & RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Precinct Inspector (Payment $180.00) 
• Assist voters on Election Day 
• Attend a paid training class prior to Election Day 

Precinct Co-Chairperson {Payment $200.00) 
• Assist the Precinct Chairperson 
• Assist voters on Election Day 
• Attend a paid training class prior to Election Day 
• Must have computer experience 

Precinct Chairperson {Payment $250.00) 
• Supervise Precinct Inspectors 
• Maintain election supplies on Election Day 
• Return ballots and supplies at close of polls 
• Attend a paid training class prior to Election Day 
• Must have computer experience 
• Must have previous poll worker experience 

Qualifications: 
• 16 years of age or older 
• U.S. citizen 
• Must be able to interact with the public in a friendly, 

professional manner 
• Able to serve the entire Election Day 
• No felony conviction 

Hours: 
• Arrive at 6 a.m. 
• Polls open at 7 a.m. 
• Polls close at 8 p.m. 

RETURN YOUR APPLICATION TO THE CITY CLERK TODAY! 
PLEASE COMPLETE AND SIGN THE APPLICATION BELOW 

PLEASE PRINT CLEARLY 

Last Name: ____________ First Name: _______________ Date _____ _ 

Date of Birth: Email Address: ______________________ _ 

Home Address: City: _______ State: _____ .Zip: ______ _ 

Home Number: ( Work Number: ( Cell Number: ( 

Registered in O City or • Township of _______ Pct .. # __ Ward# ___ County of _________ _ 

Political Party Affiliation (Required; must be a recognized state party and may not be Independent): 

0 Republican • Democratic O Libertarian O U.S. Taxpayers OGreen • Natural Law Oworking Class 

Have you ever been convicted of a felony or election crime? 0 Yes O No 

Education Background (include highest grade completed or degree held) __________________ _ 

Employment Background (include current or last place of employment and type of work performed) _________ _ 

Languages other than English that you speak (if any) _________________________ _ 

Past experience as an election inspector, if any (include name of jurisdiction) ________________ _ 

Mark all that apply: 

I am willing to work as a: 0 Precinct Inspector • Precinct Co-Chairperson D Precinct Chairperson 

Do you have reliable transportation? 0 Yes D No 

Will you work at any polling place? D Yes D No If not, explain: ________________ _ 

I understand that I am required to attend a 2-3 hour training class prior to each election. OYes 0No 

I CERTIFY THAT I am not a member or a known active advocate* of a political party other than the party identified above. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT the foregoing statements are true to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

Signature of Applicant Date 

*A "know active advocate" of another political party is defined to mean a person who 1) is a delegate to the convention or an officer of another party; 
2) is affiliated with another party through an elected or appointed government position or; 3} has made documented public statements specifically 
supporting by name another political party or its candidates in the same calendar year as the election at which the person will serve as an inspector. 
"Documented public statements" means statements reported by the news media or written statements with a clear and unambiguous attribution to 
the applicant. 

ANY FALSE STATEMENTS MADE ON THIS APPLICATION WILL DISQUALIFY THE APPLICANT. 





January 17, 2020 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Attention: Dr. Deirdre Waterman, Mayor 

Re: Additional Inspection Services -Amazon Project 

Dear Mayor Waterman: 

Wade Trim Associates, Inc. 
500 Griswold Street, Suite 2500 • Detroit, Ml 48226 
313.961.3650 • www.wadetrim.com 

Congratulations on landing the Amazon project for Pontiac! This is a tremendous win for the City and 
we are proud to be a part of the team that will oversee the construction of these facilities. 

Pursuant to the contract between the City of Pontiac and Wade Trim, Section 3.2.2 states: 

For all building projects in excess of $1 million in construction value, the 
Contractor will prepare a proposal of additional staff and resources needed to 
adequately service that project for approval of additional fees by the City 
Finance Director. 

The construction value of the Amazon project is approximately $271.6 million and will require 
significant additional inspection resources to meet the ambitious 18-month construction schedule 
proposed by Clayco. For this project, we will be required to add additional building, electrical, 
mechanical, and plumbing inspectors and additional administrative staff to our team so that we can 
provide timely on-demand inspections to the Amazon project while maintaining the current level of 
service for Pontiac residents and businesses for the duration of this project. 

The nature of the construction phasing will require our team to adjust to the ability of the Contractor 
to meet their schedule as has been provided to us. Knowing that construction planning is fluid, this 
means that some months there will be little effort and some months there will be considerable effort 
required. We have done our best to project inspection needs based on the schedule given to us by 
Clayco. Additionally, we have met with both their leadership and construction managers to make the 
project communication as clear as possible to streamline the inspection and approval process. 
Nevertheless, the projected inspection hours and costs are an estimate based on the proposed 
construction schedule and Clayco's key delivery dates. 

The building permit fees for the two buildings is $1,610,300 inclusive of plan review fees. In preparing 
a potential schedule for our team to meet Clayco's construction schedule~ we have developed a total 
estimate of what the potential cost of inspections may be. However, given the uncertain nature of 
large projects, we propose that we create a separate line item for the Amazon oversight and bill the 
required inspection work on an hourly basis. 

Based on our estimate of hours and the construction schedule and phasing plan submitted by 
Clayco, we estimate inspection, review and project administration fees of $965,000 for the Amazon 
project. Again, using the hourly approach described above, fees will only be billed to the City as the 
inspection work is performed. This approach allows only time spent on Amazon specific activities to 
be billed to this project and presents a significant opportunity for savings to the City should the 
anticipated level of staffing not be required for the project, but provides the flexibility for additional 
staffing should it be required. 



City of Pontiac 

January 17, 2020 

Page 2 

By way of comparison, the estimated cost of inspection, review and administrative services for the 
Amazon project represents 60% of the total permit fee. For the purposes of comparing value, Wade 
Trim captured 72% of the total St. Joseph's hospital permit fee in 2012 as a lump sum under the 
terms of our original agreement with Pontiac. Under the hourly approach outlined above, Wade Trim 
will bill the City only for the work performed, allowing the balance of the permit fee to be maintained 
in the Building Safety fund. This provides cost recovery for us, continued outstanding service for City 
residents and businesses, and improved service to the Amazon team. 

Proposed Staffing Plan 

• Project Director/Supervisor: David Moran - 12 hours per week 
• Project Administrative Support: Dan Kolbe - 8 hours per week 
• On-site Building Inspector/Official: Charlie Mcllhargey - 20 hours per week 
• Electrical Inspector: Time varies per month based on construction schedule 
• Mechanical Inspector; Time varies per month based on construction schedule 
• Plumbing Inspector: Time varies per month based on construction schedule 

Additional staff necessitated by shifting current staff onto the Amazon project: 

• Customer Service Technician: Full-time 40 hours per week 

Proposed Amazon Staffing Plan: 

Position Individual Billable Rate 
Proiect Director & QA/QC David Moran $110/Hr 
On-Site Buildinq Inspector Charlie Mcllharqev $81/Hr 
Electrical Inspector TBD/Paul Cimeot $105/Hr 
Mechanical Inspector TBD $105/Hr 
Plumbinq Inspector TBD $105/Hr 
Project Administrative Support Dan Kolbe $75/Hr 
Customer Service Staff TBD $60/Hr 

We also discussed the possibility of creating an internship or job shadowing program as a part of this 
project. Technical inspection work typically requires considerable experience in the trades; however, 
we can work with the Jobs Pipeline to create job shadowing opportunities, particularly on this project. 
We will also work with the General Contractor and Subcontractors to encourage internships in 
partnership with the Pontiac Jobs Pipeline program. Additionally, Wade Trim has a summer internship 
program and we would welcome the opportunity to work with the Jobs Pipeline program to try and 
attract summer interns from Pontiac. 

We look forward to discussing our staffing proposal with you at your earliest convenience. 

Very truly yours, 

Wade Trim Associates, Inc. 
,./'7 

~~:;7 
Chip F. Smith, AICP 
Project Principal 

CFS:ka 
PON 7000-20D 
Amazon Staff Prop Ur -Add'I Fees.docx 

cc: Deputy Mayor Jane Bais-DiSessa 



City of Pontiac 

January 17, 2020 

Page 3 

Wade Trim and the City of Pontiac agree to the proposed staffing plan for the Amazon construction 
project through June 30, 2021, pursuant to Section 3.2.2 of the Contract between the City and Wade 
Trim which states: 

For all building projects in excess of $1 million in construction value, the Contractor will 
prepare a proposal of additional staff and resources needed to adequately service that 
project for approval of additional fees by the City Finance Director. 

For the City of Pontiac: 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

For Wade Trim: 

/shawnw. Keough, PE 
Senior Vice President 

Date 

January 17, 2020 
Date 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Cc: 

RE: 

Honorable Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

February 6, 2020 

Mayor Waterman, Anthony Chubb, City Attorney: Charles Smith, Wade Trim; 
and Irwin Williams, Interim Finance Director 

Resolution to authorize the Mayor to negotiate with and enter into an 
additional service agreement with Wade trim as outlined in their letter 
dated January 16, 2020. 

The construction value of the Amazon project is approximately $271.6 million, and 
accordance with the City's current contract with Wade Trim, Section 3.2.2, "For all 
building projects in excess of $ 7 million in construction value, the Contractor will 
prepare a proposal of additional staff and resources needed to adequately service that 
project for approval of additional fees by the City Finance Director. 

Based on the construction schedule and phasing plan submitted by Clayco, the estimated 
cost for inspection, review and project administration fees is 965,000 for the Amazon 
project. Again, using the hourly approach described in the attached letter from Wade Trim, 
fees will only be billed to the City as the inspection work is performed. This approach allows 
only time spent on Amazon specific activities to be billed to this project and presents a 
significant opportunity for savings to the City should the anticipated level of staffing not be 
required for the project, but provides the flexibility for additional staffing should it be 
required. 

As such, for your consideration, the following resolution is recommended: 

Whereas, the construction of the two Amazon facilities is anticipated to be completed in 18 
months, and; 

Whereas, the simultaneous phasing of the two facilities (distribution and fulfillment), 
necessitates an accelerated inspection program to ensure safe construction and facilities that 
meet all building codes, and; 

Whereas, meeting the construction schedule will require on-site inspectors during much of 
the construction, and; 



Whereas, the City's contract with Wade Trim states that "for all building projects in excess of 
$ 7 million in construction value, Wade Trim will prepare a proposal of additional staff and 
resources needed to adequately service that project for approval of additional fees by the 
City Finance Director", and; 

Whereas, the Building Permit fees for the two facilities is $7,670,300, and; 

Whereas, State Law requires all building permit fees to cover the costs of performing 
inspections and administering the department, and; 

Whereas, the Building Safety Department needs to be able to respond to other inspection 
and permit requests a timely manner by providing trade inspections within 72 hours of a 
request and building inspections within 48 hours as best possible, and; 

Whereas, the additional demands of the Amazon construction will necessitate the hiring of 
additional inspection staff to ensure that the both citizens of Pontiac and the Amazon 
construction team will continue to receive timely inspections and permits; 

Therefore, be it resolved that the Mayor is authorized to negotiate and enter into an 
additional service agreement with Wade time as outlined in their letter dated January 7 6, 
2020. 

JBD 

Attachment 





Resolution of the Pontiac City Council 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2019-2020 budget on June 25, 
2019;and 

Whereas, the adopted FY 2019-2020 General Fund (101) Elections Dept (191) budget 
includes an appropriation for salaries and wages account 101-191-702.000; and 

Whereas, the City Clerk is requesting that Finance establish account 101-191-731.003 
computer equipment in the Elections Dept budget; and 

Whereas, the City Clerk is requesting to transfer $13,000.00 from account 101-191-
702.000 to account 101-191-731.003 to cover the cost of purchasing 25 new laptops for 
the Electronic pollbook at voting precincts; and 

Whereas, this transfer is necessary to ensure that residents in Pontiac will be able to 
vote at voting precincts on March 10, 2020 in the Presidential Primary Election; and 

Whereas, section 5.106 of the Charter states "after adoption of the appropriations 
ordinance, and upon at least one week's notice in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the City, the Council by a resolution of five members, may amend such ordinance to 
authorize the transfer of an unused balance appropriated for one purpose to another 
purpose, or to appropriate available revenues not previously appropriated."; and 

Now therefore, be it resolved that the City Council hereby approves a budget 
amendment for fiscal year 2019-2020 to establish account 101-191-731.003 computer 
equipment in the Elections Dept budget and transfer $13,000.00 from account 101-191-
702.000 to account 101-191-731.003. 





City of Pontiac Resolution for Ella "Sis J." Louise Jernagin 

WHEREAS, it is the sense of this legislative body to pay proper ttibute to individuals ofremarkable character 
whose lives have been dedicated to uplifting and empowering the community; and; 

WHEREAS, it is feelings of the deepest regret that the Pontiac City Council mourns the passing of Ella Louise 
Jernagin, more affectionately known as "Sis J," a giving and loyal member of this community; and, 

WHEREAS, Ella Louise Jernagin was born on April 18, 1933 to the late Hezekiah Howard and Mandy Head 
in Greenwood, Mississippi; and, 

WHEREAS, Ella Louise Jernagin moved to Detroit at the age of five, attended Detroit Public Schools, moved 
back to Mississippi at the age of 14, at the age of 15, man-ied Othel Bell Jernagin Sr. and to this union, nine children 
were born; and, 

WHEREAS, Ella Louise Jernagin moved to Pontiac in 1953 where she would later mark histo1y and leave an 
incessant and everlasting impression, as she was the first Afiican-American woman to drive the city bus (Great Lakes) 
in Oakland County; and, 

WHEREAS, Ella Louise Jernagin was a trailblazer and an inspiration to all those who knew her as she drove 
for the City of Pontiac, the Pontiac School District before transportation was provided solely for the schools and 
Semta, which is now called Smart, where she later retired in 1981; and, 

WHEREAS, Ella Louise Jernagin in 1988, motivated and determined to go back to school after only 
completing the sixth grade, enrolled and graduated with her diploma and with honors, from the Adult Education 
Program at WHRC in Pontiac and later took classes at Rochester Christian College; and, 

WHEREAS, Ella Louise Jernagin embraced the importance of fitness, thereby maintaining a membership with 
OPEC (The Older Persons' Commission), where she could often times be found swimming, walking and working 
out; and, 

WHEREAS, Ella Louise Jernagin cherished fiiendships and regularly assured her friends that if needed, she 
was only a phone call away; and, 

WHEREAS, Ella Louise Jenagin was passionate about helping others and assisted many students of South 
Western Christian College (S.W.C.C) in Ten-ell, Texas with transportation, provided them with home cooked meals 
and without question, made sure that they received the Word; and, 

WHEREAS, Ella Louise Jenagin was a devoted and faithful member of Church of Christ for over 60 years 
and was actively involved in The Company of Sisters (I.T.C.O.S.). 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Members of the Pontiac City Council and members of this 
great community will greatly miss Ella Louise Jernagin, as her life was a portrait of service, a legacy that will long 
endure the passage of time and will remain as a comforting mem01y to all those whose lives she touched; we give 
our sincerest condolences to the family and friends of Ella Louise Jemagin. 

~~ 
Randy Carter, Pro-Tem 

~"'?"~ 
George Williams, Cou11cilma11 

[!}1or1a,~,, 
Gloria Miller, Cou11cilwoma11 

x>'111M 6Jf<dllamJ 

/(ermit Williams, President 

v-6)~ 

Patrice Waterman, Cou11cilwoma11 

~(!ja'~ 

Ma,y Pietila, Cou11cilwoma11 

{jjfd>i,/ ~-@lf'wl.,i 

Doris Taylor-Burks, Councilwoma11 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable City Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

Mayor Waterman, and Irwin Williams, Interim Finance Director. 

February 13, 2020 

Re-Programing of PY 2016 and PY 2019 CDBG Funds. 

As shown on the attached table and in accordance with HUD regulations, the City 
Council held a Public Hearing on February 11, 2020 to consider the reprograming of 
CDBG funds for Program Years (PY) 2016 and 2019. 

Please note, that while the City's efforts to address blight have helped to: increase 
property values, and reduce the crime and fire rates, this agenda request in no way 
deals with the demolition of structures. 

To determine the best use of funds remaining in PY 2016 ($9,225.18), Administration 
sought input from both the· Bowen and Peterson Senior Center Advisory Committees. 
Given the limited amount of funds available, the Ruth Peterson Senior Center Advisory 
Committee recommended that their entry ways and flooring were critical and should be 
addressed as soon as possible. It was further noted that the Center's participation 
numbers had increased due to improvements in Senior Center programing (i.e. events, 
classes, etc.). 

Overall, the re-programing of PY 2016 and PY 2019 CDBG funds will enhance city 
services by: 

• reconstructing the entry doorways to the Ruth Peterson Senior Center, which will 
provide easier and safe access to all persons attending Senior events and/or 
services; 

• replacing old, worn-out carpeted floors at the Ruth Peterson Senior Center with 
new flooring that will not only restore the look of the facility, but will provide 
flooring that is easier to maintain and slip resistant; and 

• contracting with the Pontiac Youth Assistance organization to assist youth ages 
13-19 and their families with social services that will help to reduce the incidence 
of delinquency, abuse and neglect. 



MEMO: Re-Programing of PY 2016 and PY 2019 CDBG Funds 
February 13, 2020 
Page 2 of 2. 

As such, in order to approve and allocate these funds, it is respectfully requested that the 
City Council approve the following resolution: 

Whereas, in accordance with HUD regulations a public hearing was held on February 11, 
2020 for the reprograming of PY 2016 and PY 2019 CDBG funds; and 

Whereas, these reallocations are being used to fund qualified HUDICDBG programs. 

Now therefore, the City Council approves the reprograming for the PY Year 2016 CDBG 
funds in the amount of $9,225.18 from the Senior Center HVAC project to the Door and 
Flooring Replacement project for the Ruth Peterson Senior Center in order to improve 
access and safety; and for the reprograming of PY 2019 CDBG funds in the amount of 
$9,226.00 to fund services for youth 13-19 from low income household through the 
Pontiac Youth Assistance. 

JBD 

Attachment 





TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais-D1Sessa, Deputy Mayor, at the request of 
Dan Rrngo, Interim Director of Public Works 

February 11 th 2020 

RE: Resolutfon to Approve DMC Group Contract for City Hall Window 

Replacements not to exceed in the amount of $548,645,00 

The Department of Public Works has publically advertised and bid the City Hall Window 
Replacement RFP and has presented its recommendations to both the Executive Office 
and the City Council. 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE 
IT RESOLVED, 

dr 

Attachments. 

The RFP Selection Committee has undergone its RFP 
selection process and have determined that DMC 
Consultants, Inc. are the best firm to provide the Window 
Replacement services requested by the city according to the 
RFP. 

The Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor to enter into 
an agreement with DMC Consultants, Inc. for the amount of 
$548,685.00 for replacing windows at Clty Hall commencing 
February 11tti 2020. 



Financial Services - Purchasing Division 

NOTICE 
Thank you for your inquiry regarding the City of Pontiac project listed below: 

Window Replacement and lnstaHation at Pontiac City Hall: 
Supplying Windows and Frames 

Installation of Windows, Frames and Aluminum Panels 

If your firm plans to bid on this project, please send an e-mail 
response to DRingo@pontiac.mi.us with the following 
information: 

Firm Name: -------------
Project Name: ________ ~--

Firm1s Contact Person: ---------
Telephone Number: ________ _ 

Fax Number: ------------
E -Ma ii Address: -----------
Post a I Address: -----------
The City of Pontiac Purchasing Division will use this information 
to communicate with you in the event an addendum or change 
to this project is issued. If you do not send this information to 
the City of Pontiac, you will not receive any follow-up 
notification of any changes to the project. 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave 

Pontiac, MI 48342 



NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

The City of Pontiac (City) will open sealed bids on Thursday, November 14, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 
prevailing local time in the City Hall Lion's Den conference room at 47450 Woodward Ave for: 

Window Replacement and Installation at Pontiac City Hall 

You are invited to submit a bid for this project, Sealed bids may be mailed or delivered to the 
CITY OF PONTIAC, CITY CLERK,. 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, Ml 48342 by 2:00 PM, 
Thursday, November 14,'2019. Envelopes should include the name and mailing address of the 

. vendor on the outside and be plainly marked: 

Window Replacement and Installation At Pontiac City Hall For 

Opening: October 17th , 2019 

No proposal submitted may be withdrawn for at least ninety (90) days after the actual opening 
of the proposal. 

General specifications, description and conditions upon which the bid proposal ls to be based 
are available at the City of Pontiac website: 

Purchasing: httR://www.pontlac.rni.us/departments/finance/purchasing.php 

And at Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN): 

http://www.bidnetdirect.com/mitn 

Please refer to the website/MITN for any addenda that may be issued. Bidders who submit 
bids before the deadline are advised to continue to monitor the website for any addenda that 
may be issued. Bid packages will also be mailed upon request. 

The City reserves the right to reject any or all bids, to waive any irregularlties, and further 
reserves the right to accept any bid or parts of bids that it deems to best serve the interest of 
the City. 

If you have any questions regarding this RFP, please contact the Purchasing Agent at (248) 758-
3120 or send an email to jbalint@pontiac.mi.us 
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1. INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

1.1 Bids to be Received 

Sealed bids for the Window Replacement and Installation at Pontiac City Hall will be received 
at the Office of the City Clerk of the City of Pontiac, Michigan until 2~00 PM, Thursdav:, 
November 14. 2019, and immediately thereafter will be publicly opened and read. 

Each bid must be submitted in a sealed envelope and addressed.to the City Clerk of the City of 
Pontiac. Each sealed envelope containing a bid must be plainly marked on the outside as 
"Window Replacement and Installation at Pontiac City Hall", and the envelope should bear on 

the outside the name of the bidder, his address, and the name of the project for which the bid 
is submitted. If forwarded by mail, the sealed envelope containing the bid must be enclosed in 
another envelope addressed to the City Clerk, City of Pontiac at 47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48342. 

Bids will be received during regular business hours at the place and up to the time stated in the 
advertisement. Any extension in time will be by official notification. Bids may be delivered ln 
person or mailed, but their delivery is the bidder's entire responsibility. Any bid received after 
the stated hour, even through the mail, will be returned unopened to the bidder. 

1.2 Examlnation of Bid Documents 

Before submitting a proposal, bidders shall carefully examine all contract documents. The 
contract documents include: 

e City ofPontiac Financial Services-Purchasing Division Notice 
• Scope of Work 
11 Window Replacement and Installation at Pontiac City Hall 
o Bid Proposal 
• Specifications 

Bidders shall fully inform themselves as to all existing conditions and limitations and shall 
indicate in the proposal the sum to cover the cost of afl items included in the bid proposal. 

1.3 Withdrawal of Bids 

Bidder may withdraw his proposal, in writing, at any time prior to the scheduled closing time 
for receipt of proposals. No bidder may withdraw a bid within ninety (90) days after the actual 
date of the opening thereof. Should there be a reason why a contract cannot be awarded 
within the specified period; the time may be extended by mutual agreement between the City 
of Pontiac, herein after also referred to as the City, and the bidder. 
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1,4 Bid Proposal 

Each bid shall be made on the form provided, and shall be submitted in a sealed envelope 
bearing the title of work and the name of the bidder, and shall be signed by an individual 
authorized to execute the proposal on behalf of the bidder. Alternate written proposals will 
not be accepted. 

1.5 Basis of Award 

The intention of the City is to award the contract for this work to a whose skill and financial 
resources are equal to the task of completing the work in a satisfactory manner in the time 
period specified by the City. With this end in view, this proposal calls for a statement of the 
bidder's experience and ability to perf9rm this particular class of work, and for references 
concerning his/her business standing and capacity. Bidders shall list the names, addresses, and 
phone number of references on the form provided. 

Award will be made to a responsive and responsible bidder whose bid is lowest qualified bid 
and determined to be in the best interest of the City and in conformance with the conditions of 
this invitation to bid and the Purchasing Ordinance of the City. If discrepancies appear between 
the unit prices and extensions submitted, the unit price submitted for the particular pay item 
shall govern, and the dollar amount of the proposal adjusted accordingly. The City of Pontiac 
reserves the right to reject low bids which have major or minor deviations from the 
specifications if it's in the best interest of the City. 

If discrepancies appear between the unit prices and extensions submltted, the unit price 
submitted for the particular pay item shall govern, and the dollar amount of the proposal 
adjusted accordingly. 

A maximum of one award of contract will be made on the lowest qualified bid in the bid 
proposal. Bidders shall submit a quote for all items in each category, leave no blanks, and state 
11 No Charge" where applicable. Blank spaces are considered to be no offer. Bidders may submit 
a quote for one or more categories. The City of Pontiac reserves the right to delete any item(s) 
from the award and reject any and all bids. 

1.6 Bid Bond 

A Bid Bond is not required. 

1.7 Pre~Bid Meeting 

A Pre-Bid meeting/Walkthrough will be held on Monday November 4th at 2pm In the City Hall 
Lion's Den. 
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2. TERMS AND COND.ITIONS 

City Contract Administrator 

John Balint, City Engineer shall be the City's Contract Administrator. The City's Contract 
Administrator will approve payments, oversee schedules, and generally be responsible for 
overseeing the execution of the contract. 

2.1 Laws and Municipal Ordinances, Permits 

. The Bidder shall be fully informed of all laws and municipal ordinances and regulations in any 
manner affecting those engaged or employed in the work, or equipment and materials used 1n 
the work, and all others and any decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or 
authority over the same. The Bidder shall at all items observe and comply with all such existing 
laws, codes, ordinances, regulations, orders, and decrees. In particular, all work shall be In 
compliance with the laws of the State of Michigan, City ordinances, as well as all other bodies 
having jurisdictional authority. , 

The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining and paying for any and all permits that may be 
required for this project and shall be responsible for arranging all required inspections if 
needed. 

2.2 Non-Discrimination 

The Bidder agrees to comply with the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; the Federal 
Civil Rights Act of 1991 as amended; the Americans with Disabrlities Act of 1990 as amended; 
the Elliott-Larsen Civll Rights Act, Article 2, Act no. 453, Public Act of 1976 as amended; the 
Michigan Handicapper's Civil Rights Act, Article 2, Act no. 220, Public Act of 1976, as amended 
and all other appllcable federal, state and local laws and regulations, Specifically, Bidders and 
subcontractors are required not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment with respect to such person's hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of 
employment, or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of such 
person's height, weight, race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, sex or 
disabHity, as defined by law. Breach of this covenant may be regarded as a material breach of 
the contract. 

2.3 Indemnification 

To the fullest extent permitted by laws and regulations, the Bidder shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the City and lts officers, directors, employees, agents, and consultants from and 
against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges 
of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution costs) caused by, arising out of, or resulting from the performance of the 
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work or from the failure to comply with any covenant or term of the contract, provided that 
any such claim, cost, loss, or damage: (i) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or 
death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (otherthan the work itself), including 
the loss of use resulting there from; or, (ti) is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission 
of the Bidder, any subcontractor, any supplier, any person or organization directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the work or anyone for whose acts any 
of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not caused in part by any act or omission of a 
person or entity indemnified hereunder or whether liability is imposed upon such indemnified 
party by laws and regulations regardless of the negligence of any such person or entity. 

In any and all claims against the City or any consultants, agents, officers, directors, or 
employees of the City by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of such 
employee) of the Bidder, any subcontractor, any supplier, any person or organization directly or 
indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work, or anyone for whose 
acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation above shall not be limited in any 
way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by 
or for the Bidder or any such subcontractor, supplier or other person or organization under 
workers' compensation acts, disabillty benefit acts, or other employee benefit ,;1cts. 

Insurance coverage required of the Bidder constitutes the minimum requirements and those 
requirements shall in no way lessen or limit the liability of the Bidder under the terms of the 
contract. The Bidder shall procure and maintain at Bidder's own cost and expense any 
additional claims or amounts of insurance that, in the judgment of the City1 may be necessary 
for Bidder's proper protection in the prosecution of the work. 

2.4 Jurisdictional Authority 

This contract shall be governed by and construed according to the laws of the State of Michigan 
and the successful Bidder consents to the jurisdiction and venue of the courts in Oakland 
County, Michigan and of the United States District Court for the Eastern District, Southern 
Division. 

2.5 Severabilfty 

The successful Bidder will agree that the Contract is the completed and exclusive statement of 
the Contract between the parties. A Judicial or administrative declaratlon on the invalidity of 
any one or more of the provisions of the Contract shall not invalidate the remaining provisions 
of this agreement. 

2.6 Income Taxes 

Contractor agrees to contact City of Pontiac Income Tax Division, Audit and Compliance Section, 
47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Michigan, 48342, telephone (248) 758-3236, to establish reporting 
and withbolding obligations under the City of Pontiac income tax ordinance. Contractor will 
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require the same of all subcontractors employing labor under thls contract Contractor is 
required to withhold City of Pontiac income tax from wages paid to: 

Pontlac resident employees regardless of where they work for the employer; and 
Nonresident employees for work performed in the City. 

Contractor is also required to file Pontiac income tax returns reporting and paying income tax on 
the net profits earned in the City. . 

Web page URL: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/index.php 
Tax fonns URL: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/tax fo1ms,php 

2.7 Compensation and Payment 

All invoices submitted against the contract must identify the work performed in detail. Items 
not properly invoiced will not be paid, It is the vendor's responsibility to ensure del!very of 

invoice(s) to the City. Invoices must meet the following conditions for payment: 

a. Price on invoice must correspond to the pricing listed on purchase order and/or contract. 
b. Contractor must submit price lists in accordance with bld requirements, 

c. All invoices will be original. 
d. Invoices will prominently display the requisition or purchase order number, if applicable. 
e. Invoices will be signed by the individual responsible for authorizing contract 

payments for the City of Pontiac. 
f. Contractor will bill based on agreed upon milestones. 

Original invoice must be submitted to the City of Pontiac1 Attn: Accounts Payable. 

Payment Terms- Net 30 

2.8 General Conditions 

It is the responsibility of the Bidder to review General Conditions as specified. 

In the quotation) a distinction between dollars and cents must be made. Also, illegible bids may 
be grounds for rejection of your bid, White out may be grounds for rejection, .All changes made 

to the bid form altering price, terms, quotes, and/or conditions MUST be crossed out and 
initialed. Failure to initial any changes may be grounds for rejection of your bid. 

All funds must be quoted in US dollars 

2.9 Quotations/Proposals 
Bidders MUST submit an original and one copy, of the bid quotation/proposal. Additionally, 
duplicate copies of all descriptive literature and/or samples must be provided as requested. 

2.10 Minimum Qualifications 
Proposers must provide the following information: 
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a. Proposals will be accepted from those firms demonstrating a minimum ·of five (5) years 
of experience providing the services requested in this RFP for projects of similar scope 
and size. 

b. Provide proof of financial capabilities either an audited financial statement for the last 
three years or Dun & Bradstreet report and their Federal Employer ID number (EIN) 

c. Attach a list of employees that would be used under this contract along with proof of 
the proper State of Michigan driver's licenses to operate equipment to be used under 
this proposal. Employees must be properly trained and qualified to operate the 
equipment. 

d. List description of any contracts, which have been terminated. Provide the name and 
telephone number of the owner of such contracts. 

e. List description of all legal proceedings, lawsuits or claims, which have been filed against 
your firm or your employees past or present within the last Five (5) years 

2.11 Minor Deviations 

Specifications referred to hereln are used to indicate desired type, and/or construction, and/or 
operation or services rendered. Other products and/or services may be offered if deviations 
from specifications are minor and if all deviations are properly outlined and stated in the bid 
document. Failure to outline all deviations may be grounds for rejection of your bid. 

The decision of the City of Pontiac, acting through the Purchasing Agent, shall be final as to 
what constitutes acceptable deviations from specifications. 

INCREASE OR DECREASE OF QUANTITIES OF WORK 

The quantities listed in these documents are estimates only1 and quantities of work to be 
performed are subject to increase or decrease as determined by conditions encountered in the 
prosecution of the work 

2.12 Bonds and Insurance 

Receipt of bonds and/or insurance ls part of the process of determlnlng which bidder may be 
recommended for award to the City Administrator. If cause is found to change the 
recommendation that your company be awarded the contract, or if the City Administrator 
does not approve the recommendation, the City shall not be liable for any costs incurred by you 
in the bid process, including the cost of acquiring bonds and/or insurance. 

The contractor, and any and all of their subcontractors, shall not commence work under this 
contract until they have obtained the insurance required under this paragraph. All coverage 
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shall be with Insurance companies licensed and admitted to do business in the State of 

Michigan. All coverages shall be with insurance carriers acceptable to City of Pontia<:. The 

limits required below do not limit the llability of the Contractor. All deductibles and SI Rs are 
the responsibility of the Contractor. 

Workers' Compensation Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life 
of this contract, Workers' Compensation Insurance, including Employers' Liability Coverage, in 

accordance with all applicable ?tatutes of the State of Michigan. 

Commercial General Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and maintain said 

insurance during the life of this contract, for: Commercial General Liability Insurance on an 

"Occurrence Basis11 with limits of liability not less than$ 2,000,000 per occurrence and 

aggregate. Coverage shall include the following extensions: (A) Contractual Liability; (B) 
Products and Completed Operatlons; (C) Independent Contractors Coveragej (D) Broad Form 

General Liability Extensions or equivalent, if not already included. 

Motor Vehicle Liability: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of this 

contract Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including Michigan No-Fault Coverages, with limits 

of liability not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury, and 
Property Damage. Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all 
hrred vehicles. 

Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability, as described 

above, shall include an endorsement stating the following shall be Additional Insureds: The 

City of Pontiac, all elected and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, 
commissions, and/or authorities and board members, including employees and volunteers 

thereof. It is understood and agreed by naming the City of Pontiac as additional insured, 

coverage afforded is considered to be primary and any other insurance the City of Pontiac may 

have in effect shall be considered secondary and/or excess. 

Cancellation Notice: Workers' Compensation Insurance, Commercial General Liability 

Insurance, and Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, as described above, shall be endorsed to state 

the following; "It is understood and agreed Thirty (30) days, ien (10) days for non-payment of 

premium, Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction, and/or Material 
Change shall be sent to: Garland Doyle, gdoyle@pontiac.mi.us , City of Pontiac, 47450 

Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 48342. 

Proof of Insurance Coverage: The Contractor shall provide the City of Pontiac, at the time the 

contracts are returned by him/her for execution, certificates and policies listed below: 

a. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Workers' Compensation Insurance; 

b. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General Liability Insurance; 

c. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Vehicle Liability Insurance; 

d. If so requested, certified Copies of aU policies mentioned above will be furnished. 
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Certificate of Insurance as well as the required endorsements. In lieu of required 
endorsements, if applicable, a copy of the policy sections where coverage is provided for 
additional insured and cancellation notice would be acceptable. Copies or certified coples of all 
policies mentioned above shall be furnished, if so requested. 

Renewal of Insurance: If any of the above coverages expire during the term of this contract, the 
Contractor shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to City of Pontiac at least ten {10} 
days prior to the expiration date. 

2.13 Performance Bond 

The successful bidder may be required to execute surety bonds, with sureties acceptable to the 
City. One such bond may be a Performance Bond in the amount of five hundred thousand 
dollars ($500,000). 

2,14 Bid Bond 

A Bid Bond is not required. 

2.15 Maintenance and Guarantee Bond 

A maintenance and guarantee bond is not required. 

2.16 Subcontracting 

The Contractor shall assume toward the Subcontractor all obligations and responsibilities that 
the Owner, under such documents, assumes toward the Contractor, and the Subcontractor 
shall assume toward the Contractor all obligations and responsibilities which the Contractor, 
under such documents, assumes toward the Owner and the Engineer. The Contractor shall have 
the benefit of all rights, remedies and redress against the Subcontractor that the Owner, under 
such documents, has against the Contractor, and the Subcontractor shall have the benefit of all 
rights, remedies and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, under such documents, 
has against the Owner, insofar as applicable to thls Subcontract. 

2.17 Termination for Cause 

The City by written notice of default to the contractor may terminate the whole or any part of 
this contract for the following conditions: 

a. Fails to begin the work within the time specified ln the Contract; 

b. Fails to perform the work with sufficient workers and equipment or with sufficient 
materials to assure the prompt completion of said work; 
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c. Fails to perform the work in accordance with contract requirements or refuses to 
remove and replace rejected materials or unacceptable work; 

d. Discontinues the work; 

e. Fails to resume work which has been discontinued within a reasonable time after notice 
to do so; 

f. Becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt or commits any act of bankruptcy or 
insolvency; 

g. Allows any fina I judgment to remain unsatisfied for a period of 10 days; 

h. Fails to comply with contract requirements regarding minimum wage payments; 

i. ls a party to fraud; or 

j. For any other cause whatsoever, fails to carry on the work in an acceptable manner. 

3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

3.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The City of Pontiac is looking for a contractor/window supplier to supply complete windows 
and frames and to provide complete removal of existing windows and frames, handling of non­
friable materials such as existing sealant and caulking around the window frame containing 
asbestos, installation of th1: new windows and frames, and aluminum panels to meet the 
specification. The work also includes the disposal of the removed asbestos and all the removed. 
specified items. 

Scope of Work 
The scope of work includes the followings: 
1. Supply a total of one hundred forty-three (143} new window and frame in accordance with 
the Agreement for the Work. See drawings A102, A103. A104, A105, A1061 and A107, 

2. Supplier is responsible to supply the new windows, and frames based on a detailed field 
measurements of the existing window openings taking into consideration the existinB 
conditions. 

3. Identify and label the location for each of the designated windows and frames, Provide 
installation drawing for each of the designated window and frame. 

4, Position of the new windows and frames shall be as per existing windows and frames 
location and also incorporate the proposed new exterior aluminum panels. (not included in this 
contract to supply) See drawing A106 section 4. 
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5. Supplier to coordinate with City of Pontiac prior to performing any field measurement. 

6. Supplier to coordinate with City of Pontiac for storage location where the new windows will 
be delivered and stored. 

7. New windows and frame shall be delivered in containers and stored in designation area (City 
of Pontiac parking lots} with security locks upon completion of installation by others. Estimated 
Installation contract period of Three months. 

8. Supply a total of one hundred forty-three (143) new window and frame in accordance with 
the Agreement for the Work. See drawings A102, A103. A104, A105, A106, and A107. 

9. Remove two hundred eighty-six (286) existing windows, frames, and.all other appurtenances 
in one hundred forty-three window openings (143). 

10, Remove and dispose of all existing window caulking, sealant and hazardous materials 
properly at all one hundred forty-three (143) window openings. This is to be handled and 
disposed of by a licensed abatement contractor prior to demolition or removal of existing 
windows. 

11. Supply the aluminum panels per specification and contract drawings (total of 85). 

12. Install new windows and frames of the ground and second floors. Total number eighty-five 
(85). Install new windows and frames of the first floor with. Tota! number fifty-eight {58). 

13. Contractor shall apply new interior and exterior sealant to new windows per specification 
and contract drawings. Sealant shall be weather tight. 

14. Install new window exterior sills. Patch and paint interior sills, jamb and head as necessary 
to match surroundings color, finish, and texture. 

15. Any damage to windows, and frames is to be replaced at the installation contractor's 
expense. Contractor will provide all other required materials related to work. 

16. Install the new aluminum panels on top of existing aluminum panels and seal weather tight 
between new windows & panels. See contract specification and contract drawings. 

17. Re-route existing wiring/cords that travel through windows. Coordinate with Pontiac City 
hall maintenance department. 

18. Remove A/C window type units & stored per owner's direction. 

19. Remove and salvage existing drop box and reinstall after installation of new window. 
Insulated panels shall be used in this window. 
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20. HVAC duct going through window to be remained. New window configuration and type to 
be coordinated with Client. · 

21. Windows frames, glass and glazing to be installed will be stored at the City of Pontiac City 
Hall Parking lots. 

3.2 NON~ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER 

The service provided for under the Contract shall not be sub-contracted, assigned or transferred 
by the Contractors without prior written consent of the City. 

3.3 CITY RULES 
. . . 

Employees of Contractors shall comply with all instructions, and building regulations issued by 
representative of the City of Pontiac. 

3.4 TERM OF CONTRACT 

The proposed contract shall be for six (6) months, May 2020 to October 2020. Extensions to the 
contract may be granted through written approval by the City of Pontiac. The cost charged to 
the city for the services listed herein are at a fixed cost and any additional time needed to 
complete the Scope of Work detailed shall not automatically accrue additional cost for the city. 

3.5 PROGRESS PAYMENTS/RETAINAGE 

This contract is not subject to progress payments or retatnage. 

THIS ENDS THE ABOVE SECTION 
FOLLOWING PAGES ARE BID PROPOSAL FORMS AND SAMPLE CONTRACT 
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FORM OF PROPOSAL 
To: City of Pontiac, Michigan 
To All Here Present: 

-------~2019 

Having carefully examined th.e bid for the proposed work, and being fully informed in 
regard to the conditions to be met in the prosecution and completion of the work, and having 
read and examined the Instructions to Bidders, Agreement, Bonds, General Condltions, Plans 
and Specifications pertaining to this work and agreeing to be bound accordingly, the 
undersigned proposes to furnish all the materials, labor, and other equipment as necessary in 
full accordance with and conformity to the plans and specifications for this work now on file in 
the office of the City's at and for the following named prices, to wit: 

NOTE: Thls proposal is solicited on 'a unit price 6r lump sum f9r work actually completed. 

THIS BID PROPOSAL MUST BE SUBMITTED BACK TO THE CITY OF PONTIAC IN ITS ENTIRETY AS PART OF 
THE CONTRACTORS BID SUBMISSION. MAKE SURE THAT ALL PAGES ARE COMPLETELY FILLED OUT 
AND THAT All INFORMATION REQUESTED IS COMPLETE. FAILURE TO DO SO MAY BE CAUSE TO 
REJECT YOUR BID PROPOSAL. IF A BID IS NOT BEING SUBMITTED FOR A PARTICULAR AREA OF WORK, 
PLEASE MARI( uNO BID" IN THE APPROPRIATE SPACE. . 

BIDDER ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF ANY ADDENDUM; (if issued) 

ADDENDUM NO: _________ Dated: ________ _ 

Bid amounts are to be expressed as a unit price on a per cut basis as specified in the Bid 
Proposal Form. Bid Prlces are to include cost of aH labor, materials, equipment, insurance and 
bonds necessary to comply and perform under these specifications. Prices for individual 

properties may be requested for selected properties. 
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City of Pontiac 
Window Replacement at City Hall 

Item No. Description Quantity Unit Price 

A. Field measurement of exlstlng 

Window opening for new 

Window and frames. 143 

Unit Price in words 

Total amount in words· 

B. Ultra Thermal Single Hung Aluminum windows with 1" 

Overall insulated glass unit 

Of¼" lites. 143 

Unit price in words 

Total amount in words 

C. Removal of existing windows 

And frames. ffwo windows in 286 
Each opening) 

Unit Price in words 

Total amo1mt in words 

D. Removal of existing sealants and caulking. 

(By Abatement Contractor) LS {143 opening)$ 

Unit price in words 

Total amount in words 

E. Supply new aluminum panels 85 $ each$ 

Unit Price in words 

Total amount in words 

City Hall Window Replacement and Installation , 2019 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Bid Proposal 
September, 2.019 

Amount 

each 

each 

each 

each 

$ 

each 

$ 

each 

$ 

each 

$ 

each 

each 
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City of Pontiac 
Window Replacement at City Hall 

Item No. Description Quantity 

F. Install new windows and frames. 

Complete with all sealant and as. needed 

painting and interior patching to match 

existing per specificatloo and 
contract drawings. 

Unit Price 

143 

Bid Proposal 
September,:m:!11!ID 

Amount 

$ ____ each $ ___ _ 

Unit Price in words ______________________ each 

Total amount in words·--------------------

G. Install new aluminum panels. 

Complete with all sealant and as 

Needed. 85 $ ____ each $ __ _ 

Unit Price in words _____________ _ each 

Total amount in words ___________ _ 

Quantities listed are actual in the Bid Proposal of the executed contract. The Contractor shall be paid based on fue 
actual units delivered. 
I, the undersigned, proposed to provide services proposed in this contract per fue specifications supplied by the City 
of Pontiac. No contract is active until a purchase order is issued to the successful bidder. 

I further propose to deliver the above-described services for the City of Pontiac in first class operating manner in 
accordance with all specifications contained herein subject to purchaser's inspection of services performed. All 
equipment described herein shall be delivered to the successful bidder of the 2014 Streetlight Installation contract as 
directed by the City of Pontiac) City Engineer. 

I attest that the bid includes all information necessary for the City of Pontiac to accept the bid. 

FIRM NAME: _______________ _ DATE: ___________ _ 

BY: ____________________ _ 

Signature 
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BY:_• ____________________ _ 

Name and Title (print or type) 

ADDRESS; ______________________________ _ 

Street City State Zip Code 

PHONE: _______________ _ FAX:, ____________ _ 

EXPERIENCE AND REFERENCES 
The proposer must list number of clients the firm is currently providing services similar to the work described in the 
scope of work of this proposal. 

Public Entities: 
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Private EntJties: 

Provi.de a list of references indicating organizations for which you have performed similar work and contract amount 
within a period of not less than five ( 5) years. 

Agency 

Address 

Contact Person & Phone/Email 

Contract Description & Date 

Agency 

Address 

Contact Person & Phone/Email 

Contract Description & Date 

Agency 

Address 

Contact Person & Phone/Email 

Contract Description & Date 

Agency 

Address 

Contact Person & Phone/Email 

Contract Description & Date 

Agency 

Address 

. Contact Person & Phone/Email 

Contract Description & Date 

List of Equipment Intended to Perfo,:m Scope of Work 
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Related Project Experience: 

Provide descriptions of current and completed projects your firm has performed that are 
similar to this project in size, scope and complexity. Information for these projects, limited to 
the last five (5) years: 
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1) Project Title: --------------------------
Project Location: ________________________ _ 

Client's name: --------------------------
Contact name, title, and telephone number:-~-'-------------

2) Project Title: --------------------------
Project Location: ________________________ _ 

Client's name: --------------------------
Contact name, title, and telephone number: ______________ _ 

3} Project Title: ________________________ _ 

Project Location: ________________________ _ 

Client's name: ---------~---------------~ 
Contact name, title, and telephone number: ______________ _ 

If you require more room, please submit information on another sheet. 

CITY OF PONTIAC - BID PROPOSAL 

I, the undersigned, propose to provide services proposed in this contract as per specifications 
supplied by the City of Pontiac. No contract is active until a purchase order ls issued to the 
successful bidder, 
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I further propose to deliver the above-described services for the City of Pontiac in first class 
operating manner in accordance with all specifications contained herein subject to purchaser's 
inspection of services performed. 

I attest that the bid includes all information necessary for the City of Pontiac to accept bid. 

Company Name: __________________________ _ 

Address: ---------------------------~--

Representative Signature: _______________________ _ 

Print Name: ____________________________ _ 

Title: __________________ _ 

Office# ____________ _ Cell,!.!.# ___________ _ 

FAX# _______ _ 

Federal Tax Identification Number: -----------------

Date: _________ _ 

CONTRACT FOR [TYPE OF SERVICE] 

1) Parties. The parties to this contract are the City of Pontiac, Michigan hereinafter referred to 
as the 11 City11

, and [NAME OF CONTRACTOR] hereinafter called the "Contractor". 
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2) Purpose. The purpose of this contract is for the City to engage the Contractor to provide 
[TYPE OF SERVICE] to the City (see Scope of Services below). 

3) Scope of Services. The Contractor will provide all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and 
supervision to perform [TYPE OF SERVICE] in the City, The Contractor is to perform all work in 
accordance with generally accepted standards and practices. 

4) General Terms and Conditions. This contract is hereby made subject to the terms and 
condftions included in the Scope of Services (see Exhibit "A" below) and Additional Terms and 
Conditions (see Exhibit 118" below). 

5) Consideration. As consideration for the performance of the services referenced in the Scope 
of Services (see Exhibits "A" & "B" below), the City agrees to compensate the Contractor as 
follows: 

[INSERT PAYMENT TERMS PER CONTRACT] 

6) Period of Performance. This contract will become effective for the period beginning [TIME 
PERIOD], with [ANY RENEWAL OPTIONS] upon the approval and signature of the parties hereto. 

7) Method of Payment. Contractor will be paid 30 days after completion of work as outlined in 
the Scope of Services after submission of a valid invoice. 

8} Applicable Law. This contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the City of Pontlac, State of Michlgan and applicable fed era! laws. 

9) Compliance with Laws. The Contractor understands that the City is an equal opportunity 
employer and, therefore, maintairis a policy which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on 
race, color, creed, sex, age, national origin, physical handicap, disability, genetic information, or 
any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local laws. All such discrimination is 
unlawful and the Contractor agrees during the term of the agreement that the Contractor wtll 
strictly adhere to this policy in its employment practices and provision of services. The 
Contractor shall comply with, and all activities under this agreement shall be subject to, all 
applicable federal, State of Michigan, and City of Pontiac laws and regulations, as now existing 
and as may be amended or modified. 

The Contractor is responsible for instructing and training their employees in appropriate safety 
measures. Employees will be responsible for maintaining a safe work environment while 
completing their tasks. 

a) The Contractor shall comply with the Michigan Right to Know Law (Amendments to Act 
154), which requires that all employers within the State comply with federal Hazard 
Communications Standards (C.F.R. 1910.1200} and certain additional guidelines as of 
February 25, 1987. These Standards specify that employers develop a written hazard 
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b) 

c) 

communication program, which is to be made available for workers or their designated 
representatives. 

The Contractor will comply with all federal, state and local regulations, including but not 
limited to al! applicable OSHA/MIOSHA requirements and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act 

The Contractor is responsible for all applicable state and federal social security benefits 
and unemployment taxes and agrees to indemnify and protect the City against such 
liability. 

10) Fequlrements contract. During the period of the contract, the Contractor shall provide all 
the services described in the contract. The Contractor understands and agrees that this is a 
requirements contract and that the City shall have no obligation to the Contractor if no services 
are required. 

EXHIBIT "A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Contractor shall provide [TYPE OF SERVICE]. 

Except as otherwise provided herein, Contractor shall furnish all labor, supervision and services 
necessary to properly execute and complete the work. 
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[INSERT SPECIFICS OF RFP HERE] 

EXHIBIT 0 B" 

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1) Attorneys' fees and expenses. Subject to other terms and conditions of this contract, in 
the event the Contractor defaults in any obligation under this contract, the Contractor 
shall pay _to the City all costs and expenses (including, without limitation, investigative 
fees, court costs, and attorneys' fees} incurred by the City in enforcing this contract or 
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otherwise reasonably related thereto. Contractor agrees that under no circumstances 
shall the City be obligated to pay any attorneys' fees or costs of legal action to the 
Contractor. 

2) Authority to contract. The Contractor warrants: (a) that it ls a validly organized 
business with valid authority to enter into this contract; (b} that it is qualified to do 
business and in good standing In the State of Michigan; (c) that entry Into and 
performance under this contract is not restricted or prohibited by any loan, security, 
financing, contractual, or other contract of any kind; and, (d) notwithstanding any other 
provision of this contract to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings or 
prospective legal proceedings, either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect 
its ability to perform its obligations under th is contract. 

3) Confidential information, Disclosure of any confidential information by the Contractor 
or its subcontractor without the express written approval of the City shall result in the 
immediate termination of this contract, 

4} Confidentiality. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained herein, it is 
recognized.that the City of Pontiac is a public City of the State of Michigan and is subJect 
to the laws regarding confidentiality. If a public records request is made for any 
information provided to the City pursuant to the contract, the City shall promptly notify 
the disclosing party of such request and will respond to the request only in accordance 
with the procec;lures and limitations set forth in applicable law. The disclosing party shall 
promptly institute appropriate legal proceedings to protect its information. No party to 
the contract shall be liable to the other party for disclosures of information required by 
court order or required by law. 

5) Contractor personnel. The City shall, throughout the life of the contract, have the right 
of reasonable rejection and approval of staff or subcontractors assigned to the work by 
the Contractor. If the City reasonably rejects staff or subcontractors, the Contractor shall 
provide replacement staff or subcontractors satisfactory to the City in a timely manner 
and at no additional cost to the .City. The day-to-day supervision and control of the 
Contractor's employees and subcontractors is the sole responsibility of the Contractor. 
Contractor personnel are subject to background checks by the Oakland County Sheriff 
Department and shall comply with all requirements as outlined in the Request for 
Quote. 

6) Insurance. The Contractor shall not commence work under this contract until it has 
obtained the required insurance under this paragraph. All coverage shall be with 
insurance-companies licensed and admitted to do business In the State of Michigan. All 
coverage shall be with carriers acceptable to the Clty of Pontiac: 

a) Workers' Compensation Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and maintain 
during the life of this contract, Workers' Insurance, including Employers Liability 
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Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan with a 
minimum llmit of $100,000 each accident for any employee. 

b) Commercial General Liability Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and maintain 
during the life of this contract1 Commercial General Liability Insurance on an 
"Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence 
and/or aggregate combined single limit. Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage, coverage.shall include the following extensions: (A) Contractual Liability; 
(B) Products and Completed Operations; (C) Independent Contractors Coverage; (D) 
Broad Form General Liability Extensions or equivalent: (E) Deletion of all Explosion, 
Collapse and Underground (XCU) Exclusions, if applicable; (F) Per project aggregate. 

c) Motor Vehicle Liabllity. The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of 
this contract Motor Vehicle Liability insurance, including Michigan. No-Fault 
Coverage, with limits of liability of not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence 
combined single limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Coverage shall include all 
owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all hired vehicles. 

d) Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability 
Insurance, as described above, shall include an endorsement stating the following 
shall be Additionally Insured: The City of Pontiac, all elected and appointed officials, 
all employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions, and/or authorities and board 
members, including employees and volunteers. 

e) Cancellation Notice: All policies described above shall include an endorsement 
stating the following: "It is understood and agreed that Thirty (30) days Advance 
Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction and/or Material Change 
shall be sent to City Administrator for the City of Pontiac. 

f) Proof of Insurance Coverage: The Contractor shall provide the City of Pontiac, at the 
time the contracts are returned for execution, certificates for all coverage listed 
above. 

g) fxpiration of Policies: If any of the above coverage lapses during term of this 
contract, the Contractor shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the City 
of Pontiac at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration date. 

h) Indemnification: To the extent permitted by law, the towing Contractor shall 
indemnify and hold the City harmless of and from all claims, losses, liability, 
demands, costs, loss of service, expense, and compensation on account of or in any 
way growing out of any damage, including, but not limited to, bodily injury or 
property damage which may result from the towing Contractor's towing services, In 
addition, the towing Contractor shall cover all costs incurred by the City in defense 
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of any litigation covered under this letter of contract, including attorney fees and 
court costs. 

i) Insurance companies, named insureds and policy farms shall be subject to the 
approval of the Pontiac Department of Public Works. Such approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, Insurance policies shall not contain endorsements or policy 
conditions, which reduce coverage provided to the City of Pontiac. Contractor shall 
be responsible to the City of Pontiac or insurance companies insuring the City of 
Pontiac for all costs resulting from both financially unsound insurance companies 
selected by Contractor and their inadequate insurance coverage. Contractor shall 
furnish the Pontiac Finance Department with satisfactory certificates of insurance or 
a certified copy of the policy, If requested by the Finance Department. 

j) No payments will be made to the Contractor until the current certificates of 
insurance have been received and approved by the Finance Department. If the 
insurance as evidenced by the certificates furnished by the Contractor expires or is 
canceled during the term of the contract, services and related payments will be 
suspended. Contractor shall furnish the Finance Department with certification of 
insurance evidencing such coverage and endorsements at least ten (10} working 
days prior to commencement of services under this contract. Certificates shall be 
addressed to the Pontiac Finance Department, and shall provide for 30 day written 
notice to the Certificate holder of cancellation of coverage. 

7) Ineligibility and suspension. The Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, that it: (a) is not presently ineligible, suspended, proposed for ineligibility, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal 
department or the City or any political subdivision of the City or the State of Michigan; 
(b) has not, within a three year period preceding this proposal, been convicted of or had 
clvil judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public {federal, state, 
or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; {c) has not, within a three 
year period preceding this proposal, been convicted of or had civil Judgment rendered 
against it for a violation of Federal or State antitrust statu.tes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft,. forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making 
false statements, or receiving stolen property; (d} Is not presently indicted for or 
otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal; state or local) 
with commission of any of these offenses enumerated in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this 
certification; and, (e) has not, within a three year period preceding thls proposal, had 
one or more public transactions {federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

8) Disclosure of confidential information. In the event that f!ither party to this contract 
receives notice that a third party requests divulgence of confidential or otherwise 
protected information and/or has served upon it subpoena or other validly issued 
administrative or judicial process ordering divulgence of confidential or otherwise 
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protected information that party shall promptly inform the other party and thereafter 
respond in conformity with such subpoena to the extent mandated by law. This section 
shall survive the termination or completion of this contract. 

9) Exceptions to confidential information. The Contractor and the City shall not be 
obligated to treat as confidential and proprietary any information disclosed by the other 
party (11disclosing party"} which: (a) is rightfully known to the recipient prior to 
negotiations leading to this contract, other than informatlon obtained in confidence 
under prior engagements; (b) is generally known or easily ascertainable by nonparties of 
ordinary skill in the business of the customer; (c) is released by the disc!oslng party to 
any other person, firm 1 or entity (including governmental agencies or bureaus) without 
restriction; (d) is independently developed by the recipient without any reliance on 
confidential information; (e) is or later becomes part of the pubHc domain or may be 
lawfully obtained by the City or the Contractor from any nonparty; or, (f} is disclosed 
with the disclosing party's prior written consent. 

10) Default. If the Contractor: 

a} Fails to supply complete labor and supervision in sufficient time and quantity to 
meet the City's progress schedule, as it may be modified: 

b) Causes stoppage or delay of, or Interference with, the project; 

c) Fails to promptly pay its employees for work on the project; 

d) Falls to pay worker's compensation or other employee benefits/ withholding or any 
other taxes; 

e) Fails to comply with the safety provisions of the Contract or with any safety order, 
regulation or requirement of any governing authority having jurisdiction over this 
project; 

f) Makes unauthorized changes in supervisory personnel; 

g) Falls in performance or observance of any of the provisions of the contract; 

h) Files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or is adjudicated insolvent; 

i} Obtains an order for relief under Section 301 of the Bankruptcy Code; 

j) Files any petition or fails to contest any petition filed seeking any reorganization or 
similar relief under any laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or other relief of 
debtors; 
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k) Or seeks or cohsents to or is acquiescent in the appointment of a trustee, receiver or 
liquidator of any of its assets or property; 

I) Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or 

m) Makes an admission, in writing, of its inability to pay its debts as they became due; 

Then City, after giving Contractor wrltten or oral (subsequently confirmed in writing) notice of 
such default and forty-eight {48} hours within which to cure such default, shall have the right to 
exercise any one or more of the following remedies: 

a) Require that Contractor utilize, at its own expense, additional labor, overtime labor 
(including Saturday and Sunday work) and additional shifts as necessary to 
overcome the consequences of any delay attributable to Contractor's default. 

b) Remedy the default by whatever means City may deem necessary or appropriate, 
Including, but not limited to, correcting, furnishing, performing or otherwise 
completing the work, or any part thereof, by itself or through others (utilizing where 
appropriate any materials and equipment previously purchased for that purpose by 

Contractor) and deducting the cost thereof from any monies due or to become due 
to Contractor hereunder; 

i) After giving Contractor an additional forty-eight (48) hours written (or 
oral, subsequently confirmed in writing) notice, terminate this Contract, 
without thereby waiving or releasing any rights or remedies against 
Contractor or its sureties, and, by itself or through others, take 
possession of the work, and all materials, equipment facilities, tools, 
scaffolds and appliances of Contractor relating to the work, for the 
purposes of costs and other damages under the contract and for the 
breach thereof; and 

ii} Recover all reasonable attorneys' fees suffered or incurred by City by 
reason of, or as a result of, C~ntractor's default. 

11) Failure to enforce. Failure by the City at any time to enforce the provisions of the 
contract shall not be construed as a waiver of any such provisions, Such failure to 
enforce shall not affect the validity of the contract or any part thereof or the right of the 
City to enforce any provision at any time in accordance with its terms. 

12) Final payment. Upon satisfactory completion of the work performed under this 
contract, as a condition before final payment under this contract, or as a termination 
settlement under this contract, the Contractor shall execute and deliver to the City a 
release of all claims against the City arising under, or by virtue of, the contract, except 
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claims which are specifically exempted by the Contractor to be set forth therein. Unless 
otherwise provided In this contract, by state law, or otherwise expressly agreed to by 
the parties in this contract, final payment under the contract or settlement upon 
termination of this contract shall not constitute waiver of the City's claims against the 
Contractor under thls contract. 

13) Force maieure. Each party shall be excused from performance for any period and to the 
extent that it is prevented from performing any obligation or service, in whole or in part, 
as a result of causes beyond the reasonable control and without the fault or negligence 
of such party and/or its subcontractors. Such acts shall include without limitation acts of 
God, strikes, lockouts, riots, and acts of war, epidemics, governmental regulations 
superimposed after the fact, fire, earthquakes, floods, or other natural disasters (the 
11force majeure events"). When such a cause arises, the Contractor shall notify the City 
immediately in writing of the cause of its inability to perform, how it affects its 
performance, and the anticipated duration of the inability to perform. Delays in delivery 
or in meeting completion dates due to force majeure events shall automatically extend 
such dates for a period equal to the duration of the delay caused by such events, unless 
the City determines it to be in its best interest to terminate the contract. 

14) Indemnification. To the fullest extent allowed by law, the Contractor shall indemnify, 
defend, save and hold harmless, protect, and exonerate the City, its commissioners, 
board members, officers, employees, agents, representatives, and the State of Michigan 
from and agalnst all claims, demands, liablllties, suits, actions, damages, losses, and 
costs of every kind and nature whatsoever including, without limitation, court costs, 
investigative fees and expenses, and attorneys' fees1 arising out of or caused by the 
Contractor and/or its partners1 principals, agents, employees and/or subcontractors in 
the performance of or failure to perform this contract. In the City's sole discretion, the 
Contractor may be allowed to control the defense of any such claim, suit, etc. In the 
event the Contractor defends said clalm, suit, etc., the Contractor shall use legal counsel 
acceptable to the City. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all costs and/or 
expenses associated with such defense, and the City shall be entitled to participate In 
said defense. The Contractor shall not settle any claim, suit, etc., without the City's 
concurrence, which the City shall not unreasonably withhold. 

15) Independent contractor status. The Contractor shall, at all times, be regarded ~s and 
shall be legally considered an independent contractor and shall at no time act as an 
agent for the City. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the City1 

the Contractor, or any third party as creating the relationship of principal and agent, 
master and servant, partners, joint ventures, employer and employee, or any similar 
such relationship between the City and the Contractor. Neither the method of 
wmputation of fees or other charges, nor any other provision contained herein, nor any 
acts of the City or the Contractor hereunder creates, or shall be deemed to create, a 
relationship other than the independent relationship of the City and the Contractor. The 
Contractor's personnel shall not be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, expressly 
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or by implication, to be employees of the City or the State of Michigan. Neither the 
Contractor nor its employees shall, under any. circumstances be considered servants, 
agents, or employees of the City and the City shall be at no time legally responsible for 
any negligence or other wrongdoing by the Contractor, its servants, agents, or 
employees, The City shall not withhold from the contract payments to the Contractor 
any federal or state unemployment taxes, federal or state income taxes, social security 
tax, or any other amounts for benefits to the Contractor. Further, the City shall not 
provide to the Contractor any insurance coverage or other benefits, including worker's 
compensation, normally provided by the City for its employees. 

16) No limitation of liability. Nothing in this contract shall be interpreted as excluding or 
limiting any tort liability of the Contractor for harm caused by the intentional'or reckless 
conduct of the Contractor or for damages incurred through the negligent performance 
of duties by the Contractor or the delivery of products that are defective due to 
negligent construction. 

17} Notices. All notices required or permitted to be given under this contract shall be in 
writing and personally delivered or sent by certified United States mail, postage prepaid, 
return receipt requested, to the Pontiac City Clerk's Office to whom the notice should be 
given at the address set forth below. Notice shall be deemed given when actually 
received or when refused. The parties agree to promptly notify each other in Writing of 
any change of address. 

For the Contractor: [INSERT ADDRESS] 

For the City: [INSERT ADO RESS AND DEPARTMENT] 

18) Oral statements. No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise affect the 
terms, conditions, or specifications stated in this contract. All modifications to the 
contract shall be made in writing by the City and agreed to by the Contractor, 

19) Ownership of documents and work papers. The City shall own all documents, files, 
reports, work papers and working documentation, electronic or otherwise, created -in 
connection with the project which ls the subject of this contract, except for the 
Contractor's internal administrative and quality assurance files and internal project 

• correspondence. The Contractor shall deliver such documents and work papers to the 
City upon termination or completion of the contract. The foregoing notwithstanding, the 
Contractor shall be entitled to retain a set of such work papers for its files. The 
Contractor shall be entitled to use such work papers only after receiving written 
permission from the City and subject to any copyright protections. 

20) Priority. The contract consists of this contract with exhibits. Any ambiguities, conflicts 
or questions of interpretation of this contract shall be resolved by first, refer~nce to this 
contract with exhibits and, if still unresolved, by reference to the bid. Omission of any 
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term or obligation from this contract shall not be deemed an om1ss10n from this 
contract if such term or obligation is provided for elsewhere in this contract. 

21) Quality control. The Contractor shall institute and maintain throughout the contract 
period a properly documented quality control program designed to ensure that the 
services are provided at all times and in all respects In accordance with the contract. The 
program shall include providing daily supervision and conducting frequent inspections of 
the Contractor's staff and ensuring that accurate records are maintained describing the 
disposition of all complaints. The records so created shall be open to inspection by the 
City. 

22) Record retention and access to records. Provided the Contractor is given reasonable 
advance written notice and such inspection is made during normal business hours of the 
Contractor, the City or any duly authorized representatives shall have unimpeded, 
prompt access to any of the Contractor's books, documents, papers, and/or records 
which are maintained or produced as a result of the project for the purpose of making 
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. All records related to this contract 
shall be retained by the Contractor for three years after final payment is made under 
this contract and all pending matters are dosed; however, if any audit, litigation or 
other action arising out of or related in any way to this project is commenced before the 
end of the three year period, the records shall be retained for one year after all issues 
arising out of the action are finally resolved or until the end of the three year period, 
whichever is later. 

23) Recovery of money. Whenever, under the contract, any sum of money shall be 
recoverable from or payable by the Contractor to the City, the same amount may be 
deducted from any sum due to the Contractor under the contract or under any other 
contract between the Contractor and the City. The rights of the City are in addition and 
without prejudice to any other right the City may have to claim the amount of any loss 
or damage suffered by the City on account of the acts or omissions of the Contractor. 

24) Right to audit. The Contractor shall maintain such financial records and other records as 
may be prescribed by the City or by applicable federal and state laws, rules, and 
regulations. The Contractor shall retain these records for a period of three years after 
final payment, or until they are audited by the City, whichever event occurs first. These 
records shall be made available during the term of the contract and the subsequent 
three-year period for examination, transcription, and audit by the Michigan Office of the 
State Auditor, its designees, or other authorized bodies. 

25) Right to inspect facility. The City may, at reasonable times, inspect the place of business 
of the Contractor or any subcontractor, which is related to the performance of any 
contract awarded by the City. 
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26} Severability. lf any part of this contract is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such 
invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the contract that can 
be given effect without the invalid or unenforceable provision, and to this end the 
provisions hereof are severable. In such event, the parties shall amend the contract as 
necessary to reflect the original intent of the parties and to bring any invalid or 
unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law. 

27) City property. The Contractor will be responsible for the proper custody and care of any 
City-owned property furnished for the Contractor's use in connection with the 
performance of this contract. The Contractor will reimburse the City for any loss or 
damage, normal wear and tear excepted. 

28) Termination for convenience clause, 

a) The City reserves the absolute right to terminate the contract in whole or in part, for 
the convenience of the City at its sole discretion on thirty (30} days written notice to 
the Contractor. The City has the right, upon its sole discretion only, to terminate the 
contract with cause by giving notice to the Contractor of such termination, 
specifying the effective date thereof, at least fourteen (14) days before the effective 
date of such termination, and the Contract shall terminate in all respects as if such 
date were the date originally given for the expiration of the Contract. 

b) The Contractor shall be liable to the City for damages sustained by the City by virtue 
of any breach of the Contract by the Contractor, and any costs the City might incur 
enforcing or attempting to enforce the Contract, and the City may pursue legal 
remedies in the collection of fees to compensate for the damages sustained by the 
City. 

c) Contractor's Obligations. The Contractor shall incur no further obligations in 
connection with the terminated work and on the date set in the notice of 
termination the Contractor will stop work to the extent specified. The Contractor 
shall also terminate outstanding orders and subcontracts as they relate to the 
terminated work. The Contractor shall settle the liabilities and claims arising out of 
the termination of subcontracts and orders connected with the terminated work. 
The City may direct the Contractor to assign the Contractor's right, title, and interest 
under terminated orders or subcontracts to the State of Michigan. The Contractor 
shall still complete the work not terminated by the notice of termination and may 
incur obligations as are necessary to do so. 

29) Termination for default clause. 

a) Default. If the Contractor refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this 
contract with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in 
this contract or any extension thereof, or otherwise fails to timely satisfy the 

City Hall Window Replacement and Installation - 2019 Page 33 of 37 

:t 

)::, 

l~1i 'f 
~ 

I
i 
. 
. 

I 
~

lj 
. 
' 

I 
i 
' 



contract provisions, or commits any other substantial breach of this contract, the 
City may notify the Contractor in writing of the delay or nonperformance and if not 
cured in ten days or any longer time specified in writing by the City, the City may 
terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the contract or such part of the 
contract as to which there has been delay or a failure to properly perform. In the 
event of termination in whole or in part, the City may procure similar supplies or 
services in a manner and upon terms deemed appropriate by the City. The 
Contractor shall continue performance of the contract to the extent it is not 
terminated and shall be liable for excess costs incurred ln procuring similar goods or 
services. 

b) Contractor's Duties. Notwithstanding termination of the contract and subject to any 
directions from the City, the Contractor shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary 
action to protect and preserve property in the possession of the Contractor in which 
the City has an interest. 

c) Compensation. Payment for completed services delivered and accepted by the City 
shall be at the contract price. The City may withhold from amounts due the 
Contractor such sums as the City deems to be necessary to protect the City against 
loss because of outstanding liens or claims of former lien holders and to reimburse 
the City for the excess costs incurred in procuring similar goods and services. 

d) Excuse for Nonperformance or Delayed Performance. Except with respect to 
defaults of subcontractors, the Contractor shall not be In default by reason of any 
failure in performance of this contract in accordance with lts terms (lnduding any 
failure by the Contractor to make progress in the prosecution ofthe work hereunder 
which endangers such performance) if the Contractor has notified the City within 15 
days after the cause of the delay and the fa.ilure arises out of causes such as: acts of 
God; acts of the public enemy; acts of the State of Michigan and any other 
governmental entity in its sovereign or contractual capaclty; fires; floods; epidemics; 
quarantine restrictions; strikes or other labor disputes; freight embargoes; or 
unusually severe weather. If the failure to perform caused by the failure of a 
subcontractor to perform or to make progress, and if such failure arises out of 
causes similar to those set forth above, the Contractor shall not be deemed to be in 
default, unless the services to be furnished by the subcontractor were reasonably 
obtainable from other sources in sufficient time t9 permit the Contractor to meet 
the contract requirements. Upon request of the Contractor, the City shall ascertain 
the facts and extent of such failure, and, if such officer determines that any failure to 
perform was occasioned by any one or more of the excusable causes, and that, but 
for the excusable cause, the Contractor's progress and performance would have met 
the terms of the contract, the delivery schedule shall be revised accordingly, subject 
to the rights of the City under the clause entitled "Termination for Convenience," (As 
used in this paragraph, the term '1subcontractor" means subcontractor at any tier). 
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· e) Erroneous Termination for Default. If, after notice of termination of the Contractors 
right to proceed under the provisions of this clause, it is determined for any reason 
that the contract was not in default under the provisions of this clause, or that the 
delay was excusable under the provisions of Paragraph (d} (Excuse for 
Nonperformance or Delayed Performance) of this clause, the rights and obligations 
of the parties shall, if the contract contains a clause providing for termination for 
convenience by the City, be the same as if the notice of termfnation had been issued 
pursuant to such clause. 

f} Additional Rights and Remedies. The rights and remedies provided in this clause are 
In addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract. 

30) Termination upon bankruptcy. This contract may be terminated in whole or in part by 
the City upon written notice to the Contractor, if the Contractor should become the 
subject of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary, or 
upon the execution by the Contractor of an assignment for the benefit of its creditors. In 
the event of such termination, the Contractor shall be entitled to recover just and 
equitable compensation for satisfactory work performed under this contract, but in no 
case shall said compensation exceed the total contract price. 

31) Third party action notification. The Contractor shall give the City prompt notice in 
writing of any action or suit med, and prompt notice of any claim made against the 
Contractor by any entity that may result In litigation related in any way to this contract. 

32) Unsatisfactory work. lf, at any time during the contract term, the service performed or 
work done by the Contractor is considered by the City to create a condition that 
threatens the health, safety, or welfare of the citizens and/or employees of the City of 
Pontiac, the Contractor shall, on being notified by the City, immediately correct such 
deficient service or work. In the event_ the Contractor fails, after notice, to correct the 
deficient service or work immediately, the City shall have the right to order the 
correction of the deficiency by separate contract or wlth its own resources at the 
expense of the Contractor. 

33} Waiver. No delay or omission by either party to this contract in exercising any right, 
power, or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by contract, at law, or in equity shall 
constitute an acquiescence therein, impair any other right, power or remedy hereunder 
or otherwise afforded by any means, or operate as a waiver of such· right, power, or 
remedy. No waiver by either party to this contract shall be valid unless set forth in 
writing by the party making said waiver. No waiver of or modification to any term or 
condition of this contract will void, waive, or change any other term or condition. No 
waiver by one party to this contract of a default by the other party will Imply, be 
construed as, or require waiver offuture or other defaults. 
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34) Taxes and Contributions. The Contractor hereby accepts and assumes exclusive liability 
for and shall indemnify, protect and save harmless the City from and against the 
payment of; 

a} Contractor agrees to contact the City of Pontiac Income Tax Division, Audit and 
Compliance Section, 47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Michigan 483421 to establish 
reporting and withholding obligations under the City of Pontiac Income Tax 
Ordinance. Contractors will 'require the same of all subcontractors employed to 
perform any work In the City of Pontiac. 
Web page URL: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/index.php 

Tax fonns URL: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/income tax/tax forrns.php 

b) All contributions, taxes or premiums {including interest and penalties thereon} which 
may be payable under the Unemployment Insurance Law of any State, the Federal 
Social Security Act, Federal, State, County and/or Municipal Tax Withholding Act1 

Federal, State, County and/or Municipal Tax Withholding Laws, or any other law, 
measured upon the payroll of or required to be withheld from employees by 
whomsoever employed or engaged in the work to be performed and furnished 
under this contract. 

c) All sales, use, personal property and other taxes (including interest and penalties 
thereon) required by any Federal, State, County, Municipal or other law to be paid 
or collected by the Contractor or any of its vendors or any other person or persons 
acting for, through or under it or any of them, by reason of the performance of this 
work or the acquisition, furnishing, or use of any materials, equipment, supplies, 
labor, services or other Items for or in connection with the work, 

d) All pension, welfare, vacation, annuity and other union benefit contributions 
payable, under or in connection with respect, to all persons; by whomsoever 
employed or engaged in the work to be performed and furnished under this 
Contract. 

35) Bonds. The Contractor is required to execute bonds, with sureties acceptable to the City, 
as identified In the specifications, all of which are incorporated into this agreement. 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have affixed, on duplicate originals, their signatures on 
the date indicated below, after first being authorized so to do. 

[CONTRACTOR] 

Sign:~----------
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DATE 

Print:-------...-.--'------

Title: __________ _ 

City of Pontiac 

Slgn: __________ _ 

DAT!: 

Print: ___________ _ 

Title: __________ _ 
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Company 

comments: 

Name/Work Activity of RFP: 

Present 

Present: 

Opened by: 

Pc-e..,,.- sm SIGN-IN SHEET 

Address/City Representative 

Ph: 

City Hall Window Replacement & Installation 

Jessica Massey, Purchasing Agent 

Date: ----------------

E-Mail 

LI~ yd~ ~J,... ~ --h,..f<. q-<§) 'f 4.had-
0 f ic~ fl:_,. ;..r.....,_.... b,--;,·,,u:'\ 

Fax: 

11/15/2019 at 2:00 pm 

i ~.=i 

.-::.·~:;-:,:=-:~=~:Jli 



BID TALLY 

ACTIVITY: Window Replac<?ment at City Hall 

DATE: 1/13/2019 
TIME: 2:00 PM 

EGD Glass and Door, LLC DMC Consultants 

Bid Bond Received X X 

ltem No. A $ 5,000.00 $ 2,145.00 
Item No. B $' 336,000.00 $ 257,400.00 
ltem No. C $ 22,000.00 $ 21,450.00 

Item No. D $ 93,000.00 $ 79,365.00 

item No. E $ 52,000.00 $ 46,750.00 
Item No. F $ 96,000.00 $ 75,075.00 
Item No. G $ 34,000.00 $ 45,050.00 
!tern No. H $ 21,450.00 $ 21,450.00 

Witness: Kiearha Davidson, HR Manager 

Witness: Dan Ringo, Interim DPW Director 

Witness: 

Opened by: Sheila Grandison, Deputy City Clerk 

~-~--"'"' --··· ,.,,_. _____ _ 



DMCGROUP 
DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 

January 13, 2019 

City of Pontiac, 
47450 Woodward Ave., 
Pontiac, MI 48342 

tETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 

Subject: Competitive Sealed Bid (Informal) City Hall Window Replacement and 
Installation 

Dear Sfr/Madam, 

DMC Consultants, Inc. (DMC) appreciates this opportunity to respond to this Competitive Sealed 
Bid for the City Hall.Replacement and Installation project 

DMC is an S-Corporation incorporated in 2005 for Profit in the State of Michigan, and is current 
with all its Federal, State, and Local Taxes. The Federal Tax Identification number for DMC is 20-
3761128. DMC has been providing general construction services for the past 14 years, and is 
headquartered at 13500 Foley Street, Detroit, Ml 48227. The average number of employees 
e"inployed in D MC for the past 3 years is 40, and the key employees of the corporation are: 

Mike Chaudhary1 Presfdent/CE0 - 313-491-1815 Ext 22 Mike@dmcgroupusa,com 
BillyVerscha~te, fyfanager-Sit~ Work- 313-491"1815 Ext. 31 
Hcirfey Brown, },ifanager _:, Demolltion - 313-491-1815 Ext 44 
Dan Gharia, ChiefEstimator/QA/QC- 313-491-1815 Ext. 27 
Robert Fox, Manager Accounts/Finance - 313-491-1815 Ext. 28 

We specialize in providing General Construction, Consulting, Environmental Remediation, and 
Demolition services. DMC has extensive experience vvith site work and heavy equipment We have 
the team, equipment1 and experience to finish the project within budget and on schedule. 

DM C is licensed as: 

• Residential Builder 
• Wrecking Contractor 
• US EPA RRP Contractor 
• Lead Abatement Contractor 
• Asbestos Abatement Contractor 

DMC is certified as: 

• Detroit Headquartered Business (DHQ) 

Consulting • Construction • Environmental "' Demolition 
Corporate Office 13500 Foley Street, Detroit, Ml 48227 P 313. 491. 1815 F 313, 491. 1820 Web www.dmcgroupuss,com 

.. /' 
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DMCGROUP 
DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 

0 Small Busjness Enterprise· (SBE) 
• Minority Owned Business (MBE) 
• MDOT certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 
• HUD Section 3 Company for Tri-County 
111 US SBA HUBZone 
• US SBA certified 8(a) DBE 

Some clien~s where we have provided similar services: 

• Dearborn Public Schools 
• City of Wyandotte 
• City of Ann Arbor Housing Commission 

DMC has thoroughly reviewed the scope of services set forth in this Competitive Sealed Bid and 
dearly understands the goals for this project We are also aware of the importance of community 
outreach and the timelfne requirements for this project. 

We are confident that we meet all the requirements for this Invitation to Bid and feel we are 
an excellent candidate for performing the outlined work for the following reasons: 

• DMC owns/has access to all equipment and tools required for this RFQ 
jt DMC has its office and large warehousing facility in close vicinity of the project 
• We have understood the Scope of Services and take no exceptions to the outlined scope 
o DMC has no legal proceedings for any contracts or awards of similar prograrus 
• Till date, DMC does not have any contract terminations on any program. 

Please find attached herewith the information requested in the Competitive Sealed Bld for the City 
Hall Window Replacement and Installation project. 

We further confirm that this submitted proposal will remain firm for a period of ninety (90) days 
from its due date and thereafter until DMC withdraws it, a contract ls executed, or the 
procurement is terminated by the City of Detroit, whichever occurs first. 

We are confident that the attached proposal meets or exceeds the required contractor 
qualifications, and we hope to be selected as the contractor for this project 

Meanwhile, if you 1·eq_uire additional information, please feel free to contact me at 313-491-1815 
Ext 22, 

Thanks, 

Consulting • Con$truction • Environmental • Demolition 
Corporate Office 13500 Foley Street, Detroit, Ml 48227 · P 313. 491. 1815 F 313. 491. 1820 Web www.dmcgroupusa.com 
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Pres1 detit/CEO 
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C9J1sultjng " Cpn~truction • Environmental . ., D~m<>.Utlon. 
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21. Windows frames, glass and glazing to be installed will be stored at the City of Pontiac City 
Hall Parking lots. 

3.2 NON•ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER 

The service provided for under the Contract shall not be sub"contracted, assigned or transferred 
by the Contractors without prior written consent of the City, 

3.3 CITY RULES 

Employees of Contractors shall comply with all instructions, and building regulations issued by 
representative of the Cfty of Pontiac. 

3.4 TERM QF CONTRACT 

The proposed contract shall be for, , •· : e.f. Il- Extensions to the 
contract may be granted through written approval by the City of Pontiac, The cost charged to 
the city for the services listed herein are at a fixed cost and any additional time needed to 
complete the Scope of Work detailed shall not automatlcally accrue additional cost for the city. 

3.5 PROGRESS PAYMENTS/RE'fAINAGE ~~-·:•··•. ',,',, .. ,.,: .--~ ~~V~,t,.~l~~~Jl~WJ;JL, ~ - - - ""' ~~ 

THIS ENDS THE ABOVE SECTION 
FOLLOWING PAGES ARE BID PROPOSAL FORMS AND SAMPLE CONTRACT 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 
To: City of Pontiac, Michigan _N_ov_e_m_be_rz_z ____ __,2019 

...... ,••, 

· Clty Hal~Window Replacement and ln~alla~on - 2019 Page ·13 of 37 



To All Here Present: 

Having carefully examined the bid for the proposed work, and being fully informed In 
regard to the conditlon5 to be met In the prosecution and completion of the work, and having 
read and examined the Instructions to Bidders, Agreement, Bonds, General Conditions, Plans 
and Specifications pertaining to this work and agreeing to be bound accordingly, the 
undersigned proposes to furnish all the materials, labor, and other equipment, as necessary In 
fu II accordance with and conformity to the plans and specifications for this work now on file In 
the office of the City's at and for the following named prices, to wit: 

NOTE: This proposal Is solldted on a unit prtce or lump sum for work actually completed .. 

THIS BIO PROPOSAL MUST BE SUBMITTED BACK TO THE CITY OF PONTIAC IN ITS ENTIRETY AS PART OF 
THE CONTRACTORS BID SUBMISSION. MAKE SURE THAT ALL PAGES ARE COMPLETELY FILLED OUT 
AND THAT ALL lNFORMATlON REQUESTED IS COMPlEU, FAILURE TO DO SO MAY BE CAUSE TO 
RI:JECT VOLJR BID PROPOSAL IF A EIID tS NOT BF.ING SUBMITTED FOR A PARTICULAR AREA OF WORK, 
PLEASE MARK "NO BID" IN THE APPROPRIATE SPACE. 

BIDDER ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF ANY ADDENDUM: [If Issued) 

1 & 2 10/31/2019&11/20/2019 
ADDENDUM NO: _______ ~Dated: __ ~------

Bid amounts are to be expressed as a unrt price on a per cut basis as specified in the Bid 
Proposal Form. Bid Prices are to include cost of all labor, materlals, equipment, Insurance and 
bonds necessary to comply and perform under these specfflcations. Prices for Individual 
properties may be requested for selected properties, 
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City of Pontlao 
Window Replacement at City Hall 

Bid Proposal 
September, 2019 

Item No. Oescrl ptlon 

A. field measurement of existing 
Window c>pening for new 

Window and frameG. 

Quantity 

149 

Unit Price in words Fifteen dollars 

Unit Price 

$ 15.00 each 

T tal t
. ds Two thousand one hundred forty-five dollars 

o runoun in wor 

Amount 

$2,145.00 

each 

8. Ultra Thermal Single Hung Aluminum wi11dows wlth 1" 

Overa II insulated gla:;s unit 
1,800.00 257,400.00 

Of¼'' lites. 143 $ ___ e('lch $ __ _ 

Unit price in words One thousand eight hundred dollars each 

. Two hundred fifty.seven thousand four hundred dollars 
Total amount m words~-----~----------

C. Removal of existing wlndows 

And frames. (Two windows in 286 $ 75.00 each $21,450.00 

Each opening) 

Unit Price in words Seventy-Five dollars each 

T 1 in d 
Twenty-one thousand four hundred fifty dollars ota amount wor s. ________________ _ 

o. Removal of existing sealants and caulking, 555 
(By Abatement Contractor) LS (143 opening) $ ___ each 

$79,365.00 

Unltpriceinwords Five hundred fifty-five dollars each 

T I i d 
Seventy-nlne thousand three hundred sixty-five ota amount nwor s. ________________ _ 

550.00 $46,760.00 
E. Supply new aluminum panels 85 $ ___ each 

UnltPticeinwordsFive hundred fifty dollars each 
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City of Pontiao 
Window Replacement at City Hall 

Item No. Description Quantity 

Total amount in words i'o:ii'••lx thou""1d -•n~W\orod1ll~ oorar, 

F, Install new windows ,md frames. 
Complete with all sealant and as needed 
paintlng and interior patching to match 
existing per specification and • 

contract drawings, 

Unit Price in words Flv• hund1<d tmnty-fivadonara 

143 

Total $UOUnt in words Seventy-flveihous,nd"""anlf-dolara 

G. Install new aluminum panels. 
Complate with all sealant and as 

Needed. 85 

Bld Proposal 
September, 2019 

Unit Price Amount 

$ s2o.oo each $ 7B,o75,oo 

each 

$_63Q_,_oo ___ each $ 4B,Dfl0,00 

Unit Price in words _F_,""_h_uod_re_d_lN..,.ny_do_n,_,. _______________ each 

Total amount in words .;_fo-'-rfy'-.f.v-'. •...;.1n_ou_,en_d .... l!f..,_<.t_do_11._1•-------~-----

Quantitfos listed are actual In the Bid Proposal of the executed contract, The Contxactor shall be paid based on the 
actual units delivered. 
I, the undersigned, proposed to provide services proposed in thls contract per the specifications supplied by the City 
of Pontiac, No contract is active until a purcbJJ.se order is Issued to tlie suocessful bidder, 

I further propose to deliver the above-described services for the City of Pontiac in fin.t class operating manner in 
accordance with all specifications contained herein subject to purchaser's inspection of services performed. All 
equipment described herein shall be delivered to the successful bldder of the 2014 Streetlight Installation contract as 
dlrecte,d by the City of Pontlao, City Engmeer. ' .. 

I attest that the bid inc[udes all information necessary for tl1e City of Pontiac to accept the b\d, 
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ADDENDUM NO, 1 
TO THE REQUEST FOR QUALlflCATIONS FOR 

City Hall Window Replacement and Installation 

The foll owing modifications are to be Incorporated lnto the request for proposals and contract documents 
for the above referenced project: 

Changes to the Doc:uments: Bid opening date has changed, Scope of work, Progress 
Payments/Retainage, Basis of award, Additional bid item 

Notice to Bidders (Page 2) 

The City of Pontiac {City) will open sealed bids on Monday, January 13, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. 
Prevailing local time fn the City Hall Lion's Den conference room at 47450 Woodward Ave for 

Basis of Award (Page 4) 

Interviews wlll be conducted on January 21st as part of the evaluation process to determine the 
contractor. 

Scope of work (Page 1.1) 

4. Position of the new windows and frames shall be as per existing windows and frames 
location and also incorporate the proposed new exterior aluminum panels. (Not included !n this 
contract to supply) See drawfng A106 section 4. 

22. Weekly reporting of arr monitoring results to be provided to the City. 

Progress Payments/Ratainage (Page 13) 

Subject to Net30 Pay terms 

(Page 16) 

H. Air Monitoring Qty. Amt. 

Cost per window 286 

Unit Price 
$ 75.00 yach $21,450.00 ..... •-----~----i 

Unit Price in words Seventy-five dollars each 

Total amount in words Twenty~one thousand four hundred fifty dollars 
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All other terms and conditions of the remaining Request for Proposals remaln the same. 

Jessica Massey 
Purchasing Agent 
City of Pontiac 
JMassey@pontiac.mi.us 
248-758-3120 

··~· 



:~NIOMC Consultants,. Inc. 

~ 
BY;Mantsh Chaudhary; Pr!3$idt)nt CEO. 

:N~~,and Ti:tle (prinfor typ~) 

DATE: 1/9/2-020 

ADDREss: 1.3500 Foley -Street; Detroit; Mi 482.27 
City State· Zip 8ode 

:FAX:(313)491.;1820_ 
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EXPERIENC:€ AND REFERENCES 
The proposer must list number of clients the firm is currently providing services similar to the work described in tlw 
scope of work ofthls proposal. 

Public Entitles: 4 

Prl vate Entities: 0 

Provide a list of referenooo indicating organizations for which you 11ave performed similar work and contra.ct amount 
within a period of tlOt less than five (5) years. 

Agency Dearborn Public School-Lowrey Schools 
Address 6601 Jonathan St Dearborn 48126 
Contact Person & Phone/Email Marco Silveri II (248)591-0360 // marco@sllverl.com 
Contract Description & Date 

Removal, asbestos abatement, and lnslallation of 687 windows and shades 

Agency The Fourmidable Group (Royal Oak Hsg. Comm) 
Address 32500 Telegraph Road #100, Bingham Farms, Ml 48025 
Contact Person & Phone/Email Sabrina Gaddy-Bolligner // (248) 593-4600 
Contract Description & Date 

Removal and lnstallatlon of 275 aluminum windows and security screens 

Agency National Church Residences 

Address Clari< East Tower - 1550 E. Clark, Ypsllantl, Ml 48198 
Contact Person & Phone/Email Keith Dippel// (262)432-0500 
Contract Description & Date 

Removal and replacement of 293 aluminum windows on high-rise towers 

Agency City of Wyandotte 
Address 3200 Biddle, Suite 200, Wyandotte, Ml 48192 
Contact Person & Phone/Email Jesus R. Plasencia// (734)324-4558 // jplasencla@wyandotteml,gov 

Contract Description & Date 
New construction of Vlnewood Village and single-family homes 

Agency City of Ann Arbor Housing Commission 
Address 727 Miller Avooua, Ann Arbor, Ml 48103 
Contact Person & Phone/Email Purchasing Department II (734 )794-6720 
Contract Description & Date 

Removal and replacement of 142 aluminum windows on high-rise towor 

City H(ll! Window Replacement and Installation. 2019 Page 18 ot~7 



ListofEquipmentlutended to Perform Scope of Work 

Negative Air Machines, Showers, 
Generators, Sky TracKs/Cherry 
Picker, Ladders~ Compressors, 
Storage Box for Windows 

City Hafl Wlndow ReplaoemenCarid rnslallailon • 2019 Pag<> 19 of 37 . 



Related Proiect Experience: 

Provide descriptions of current and completed projects your firm has performed that are 
similar to this project in size, scope and complexity, Information for these projects, limited to 
the last ·five (5) years: 

1) ProJectTitle: 1-75 Environmental Mitigation Program 

Project Location: Several locations in Southwest Detroit, MI 

Cllent's name: City of Detroit Housing 

Contact name, title, and telephone number: Robert Bilderbeck 
Construction Superintendent - (313)628-2238 

2) ProjectTitle: Freedom Village 
Projectlocation: 2412-2430 Faber Street1 Hamtramck, Ml 

Cl• t' Wayne Metropolitan Community Action Agency 1en s name: __________________ _ 

Contact name, title, and telephone number: John Carmody 
On-going (313)463-5468 

3) ProJectTitle: Window Replacement for Various Fire Houses 

Project Location: Several locations throughout City of Detroit 

Client's name: City of Detroit 

Contact name, title, and telephone number: Latrece Yelder, 
Contracting Specialist -(313)833-7294 (Awarded, awaiting NTP) 

lf you require more room, please submit Information on another sheet. 

City Hall Window Replacement and lnstallatlon • 2019 Pa9e20 of 37 
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Related Project Experience: 

Provide descriptions of current and completed projects your firm has performed that are 
similar to this project In slze1 scope and complexity. Information for these projects, llmlted to 
the last five (5) years: 

1) Project T1tle: Lead Hazard Remediation 

Project Location: State of Michigan - Various locations 

Client's name: State of Michigan - DHHS 

Contact name, title, and telephone number: _Ch_a_d_R_h_o_d_es ________ _ 

Regional Field Consultant- (517)599-6737 

2} Project Title: LHR/MHR - Construction Services 

Project Location: _C_it--'-y_o_f_D_et_r_o_lt _________________ _ 

Client's name: City of Detroit Planning & Development Department 

Contact name, title, and telephone number: _C'-"o'-'-'n""'n"'-le ..... R .... e""'n.;.._o _________ _ 

Supervisor - (313)224-9081 - [Replaced over 4000 windows since 20091 

3) Project Tltle: Healthy Homes Program 

Project Location: Several locations In Wayne County 

Client's name; Wayne County Dept. of Health and Human Services• Veterans services 

Contact name, title, and telephone number: _W_ad_d_a ..... h_S_a_ee_d ________ _ 

Program Manager - (734)727,•2209 

If you require more room, please submit information on another sheet. 

City HaliWln<low Replaceinent and lnstallaUon. 2019 · Page 20 of 37 



CITYOFPONTlACP BI0"PROPOSAl 

i; tli¢ '\Jt1dersig11.edJ :p_ropos:e,,to pi'ov\d~ $?rvites proposetj in this contn}¢t a:s p1:fr $pet!flcc1t)•DS 
suppli,ed,by the. City-of Ppbtiai;;1 f>./o .ccmtract is·a~t1v~ untfl q:pµri;::has~:c>r<;ter ii !ssuecl)o t.he 
-syccessfµl bil;ld~r; 

:1 further-propose to deliver the above-described seMces for 'the City of Pontiai;:: in first-class 
operating hianner ln acctordahce With -all specifications·contalned herein subjectto purchaser's 
!nspei;:tion ofservices pe'ffor-me~L 

I attest. th:at the ~ld lnclu,fes all. iilfor.m9ti9.n n:e~ess;:iry fodhe .City of Pontiac·to accept bld. 

<;;ompflnYN.ame: DMC C:onswltants? ln,c, 

Address: 13500 Fo)ey'Stre 

PrlnfN~me: :M_ahi$h Chau_d,hary 

Title:- 'President, CEO 

• , (313)491 °1:$16' 
·Offke # . . 

'('313-)491-,1820 
FAX#: . . . . 

(B 13)673-1657 
.Cell# · 

Federal Tax !dentlfkatlon-Number: _2_. o_·.~_3_7_6_· ··_1_1_2_'8 _______ ~ 

.P~te:._1_/1 ____ 0_/2_0_2_0 __ 

.Ciiy .Hal!\'VinpowaReplac;emeot 111,d J!ljll;allatlpn ~ ~Q19 Pa~~i1 .9f 37 
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Alan C.. Young & Associat~ P .. C .. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOl,JNTANTSANO CONSULTANTS 

7310 Woe:4v$rd Ave, Suite 740 
Detroit, Ml 48202 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
DMC Consultants, Inc. 
d/b/a DMC Construction, Inc. 
Detroit, Michigan 

(313) 873-7500 (Tel,) 
(313) 873-7502 (Fl:lX) 
www.alancyoung.com 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of DMC Consultants, Inc. d/b/a DMC 
Construction, lnc. (a Michigan S Corporation) (the Corporation), which comprise the balance 
sheet as of December 31, 2016, and the related statements of income and retained earnings 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. A 
review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and 
making lnqulrles of Corporation managemenl A review is substantially less in scope than an 
audit, the objective of which ls the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements 
as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparatlon and fair presentation of these financial 
statements ln accordance with accounting principles generally accepted fn the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of Internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from ml;lterlal 
misstatement whether due to fraud or error. 

Accountant's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on 
Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Revlew 
Services Committee of the AlCPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain 
llm1ted assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any material modiflcatlons 
that should be made to the financial statements tor them to be in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our 
procedures provide a reasonable_ basl§tor our report .... __ .. ___ ,., .. 

Accountant1s Conclusion 

Based on our review, except for the issue mentioned In the Known Departure from Accounting 
Principles Generally Accepted in United States of America paragraph, we are not aware of l;lny 
material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial statements In order 
for them to be In accordance with accountlng principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 



OMO Consultants, Inc. d/b/a DMC Construction, Inc. 
Independent Accountant's Review Report 
Page,2 

Known Departure from Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of 
America 

As dlsclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements, accounting principles generally accepted in 
the Unrted States of America require the primary beneficiary of a vartable Interest entity to 
consolldate the variable interest entity in its financial statements. Management has informed us 
that the Corporation's flnanclal statements do not include the accounts of OMC Property 
Management, LLC and C & A Contractors, Inc. that the Corpor.atlon has determined are variable 
Interest entitles and in which the Corporation holds a variable Interest and is the primary 
beneflciary. The effects of this departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America on the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows have 
not been determined. 

Supplementary Information 

The supplementary information included in Schedules l, II, 1;1nd Ill is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Information 
is the representatlon of management. We have reviewed the information, and based on our 
review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the lnformatlon In 
ordel' for it to be In accordance with accounting prlncfples generally accepted In ths United 
States of America. We have not audited the information and, accordingly, do not express an 
opinion on such information. 

,A'4r· % rl~ 
r}etrolt, Michigan · 
April 14, 2017 



DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

ASSETS 

CURRSNT ASSETS 

Casl'l and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) 
Accounts Receivable - Trade, Net 
Other Assets 
Costs and Estimated Earnings in Excess of 

Billings on Uncompleted Contracts (Note 7) 
Total CurrentAssets 

PROPERTY AND EQt.,!l?MENT (Note 4) 

Furniture and Flxtures 
Computer and Software 
Machinery & Equipmeni 
Automobiles 
Building Improvements 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation and 
Amortization 

l otal Property & Equipment 

TOT AL ASSETS 

13alance Sheet 
December 31, .2016 

$ 44,028 
969,615 

30,489 

466,385 
1,510,517 

48,389 
80,664 

2,016,067 
241,895 
673,486 

3,060,601 

1,160,241 
1,900,260 

$ 3,410,777 

·-See accompanying notes and Independent accountant's review report. 
3 



DMC CONSUL TANTSr INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 
Accounts Payable-Related Party 
Accrued Expenses and other Payables 
Notes Payable - Current Portion (Note 8) 

Total Current Liabilities 

LONG TERM DEBT 
Notes Payable Net of Current Portion (Note 8) 

____ Total Long-Term Debt 

Total Liabilities 

STOCKHOLDERS'EQUITY 
Common Stock, 100,000 Shares Authorized, 
$1 Par Value, 68,000 Shares lssued and Outstanding 
Additional Paid In Capital 
Retained Earnings 

Total Stockholders' 'Equity 

Balance Sheet (Continued) 
December 31, 2016 

$ 698,873 
8,500 

21,383 
409,751 

1,138,507 

402,237 
402,237 

1,540,744 

68,000 
142,000 

1,660,033 
1,870,033. 

TOT AL LlABILITlES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 3,410,777 

. See accompanying notes and independent accountant's revfew report. 
4 



DMC CONSULT ANTSi INC~ 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

-~MM P tsi:itli * ¼ m-:w ?4.J 

Statement of Income and Retained Earnings 
Year Ended December 31, 2016 

CONTRACr REVENUE 
Construction Revenue 

Total Revenue 

COST OF RE.VENUE; 
Related Job Cost 

GROSS PROFIT 

SELLING, GENl:RAI.. AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 

OTHER (INCOME} AND EXPENScS 

Interest Expenses 
Depreciation 
Other Income 
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 

'Total of other (lncome) and Expenses 

Net Income 

Less: Shareholders Wfthdrawaf 

Retained Earnings - Beginning of Year 

Retained Earnings• End of Year 

$ 

$ 

Bee accompanying notes and independent accountant's review report. 
5 

7,858,512 
7,858,512 

6,109,317 

1,749,195 

1,212,561 

536,634 

26,318 
402,595 
(14,237} 

4,321 
417,997 

118,637 

(184,030) 

1,725,426 

1,660,033 



DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

nr-mt 1 11iWiH¥ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATJNG ACTMTIES 

Net Income 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income 

to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 

Depreciation 
Loss on Disposal of Assets 
Change in Accounts Receivable 
Change in Other Assets 
Change In Costs and Estimated Earnings in Excess of 

,.. Billings on Uncompleted Contracts 
Change in BIiiings In Excess of Costs and Estimated 

Earnings on Uncompleted Contracts 
Change in Accounts Payable 
Change in Accounts Payabe~Related Party 
Change In Accrued Expenses and Other Payable 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTlNG ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of Fixed Assets 

Net Cash Used in lnv~sting Activities 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVltlES 
Cash from Notes Payable 

Repayment of Notes Payable 
Shareholder$ Withdrawals 

Net Cash Used ln Financtng Activities 

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 

Cash a.nd Cash Equivalents at End of the Year 

SUPPLEMENT DISCLOSURS 
Interest Paid 

... - -, ... ~ .... .__ .......... ~~· -

Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended December 31 1 2016 

$ 118,637 

402,595 
4,321 

353,390 
(27,279) 

154,611 

(72,191) 
(619,528) 

8,500 
{63,424} 
259,632 

{700,914} 
(700,914) 

362,423 
(341,748) 
(184,030} 
(163,355} 

(604,637) 
648,665 

$ 44,028 

$ 25,318 

See accompanying notes and Independent accountant's review report. 
6 



DMC CONSUL TANTS1 INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
nm ild 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2016 

1) ORGANIZATION 

DMC Consultants, Inc. d/b/a DMC Construction, Inc. (the Corporation} was Incorporated on 
November 10, 2005 under the Business Corporation Act of Michigan to provide 
management, engineering and technical consulting services; design, construction, 
operating, maintenance services, management and IT consulting services. 

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

it is the Corporation's pollcy to apply generally accepted accounting principles in presenting 
Its financial statements. ln this connection, the more significant pollcies of the Corporation 
are described below: 

Revenue 9nd Cost Recognition 

Revenue from fixed"price construction contracts are recognized on the percentage of 
completion method measured by the percentage of cost incurred lo date to estlmated total 
cost for each contract. This method is used because management considers total costs to 
be the best available measure of progress on these contracts. Because of inherent 
uncertainties in estimating costs, it Is at least reasonably possible that the estimates used 
wfll change within the near term. 

Contract costs Include all direct material, subcontractors and labor costs and all other 
Indirect costs related to contract perfonnance. General and admlnlstrattve costs are 
charged to expenses as incurred, Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted 
contracts are made In the period in which such losses are determined. Changes In Job 
performance, job conditions and estimated profitability, including those arising from 
settlements, may result ln revisions to costs and lncome and are recognized in the period ln 
which the revisions are determined. 

The Asset, "Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts," 
represents revenues recognized in excess of amounts billed. The Uabillty, "Billings In 
excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts," represents billings in 
excess of revenues recognized. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment Is stated at cost The costs o'f additions and betterments are 
capitalized and expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed In the period 

------~-~m=c=u=rre"'"o:-When ltemtrnf ·propertyano equipment aresold or retifecf,1:ne 'relatecfcosts "and--~----i 
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss Is Included 
In income. 

~---·~· .• •-.. ·· 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, lNCu 

d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
e 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2016 

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Property and Equipment (Continued} 

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment is provided utilizing the straight~ 
line method ovedhe estlmated useful Uvesofthe respective assets as follows: 

Building and Bullding Improvements 
Furniture and Fixtures 
Machinery and Equipment 
Computer and Software 

31,5 years 
!:Hyears 

5 years 
3 years 

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the shorter of the remaining term of the lease 
-.-•--or the useful life of the improvement utilizing the straight-line method. 

Income Taxes 

The Corporation, with the consent of tts stockholders, has elected to be taxed under the 
Internal Revenue Code as an S Corporation. In lieu of corporate income taxes, the 
stockholders of an S Corporation are taxed on their proportionate share of the 
Corporation's taxable income. Therefore, no provision or liability for federal income taxes 
has been Included in these financial statemerits, 

Accounting for uncertafntv in income tax items 

The Corporation has analyzed tax positions taken for filing with the Internal Revenue 
Service and st.ate jurisdiction where it operates. The Corporation believes that income tax 
filing positions wlll be sustalned upon examination and does not anticipate any adiustments 
that would result in material adverse effect on the financial condition, result of operations or 
cash flows, Accordingly, the Corporation has not recorded any reserves or related accruals 
for interest and penalties for uncertain lncome tax positions at December 31, 2016. The 
Corporation is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdiction; however, there are 
currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. 

Us0 of Estirnat~s 

The process of preparing financial statements lt1 conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requlres the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain 
types of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Such estimates relate prlmarny to 

--------,..,,,rwettletl"transactlons ·and ·events~as-of ihe-date~of the4itm'f'rolah3tatements.-· .. ·Accordingly,---~­
upon settlement, actual results may differ from estimated amounts. 

Material estimates that are parUcularly susceptlble to significant change In the near term 
. ·-·-----~·31re [)§f9entage of completlo~ _est!mates on all co!J!r.acts, and,.pt:,ovisions for losses on ..... ,. 

accounts receivable. 

8 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

:; , i i rm 1 C ZMdM 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2016 

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued} 

Cash Equivalents 

for financial statement purposes, the Corporation considers all highly II quid instruments 
with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Compensated Absences 

Employees of the Corporation are entitled to paid vacatlon, paid sick days and personal 
days off, depending on the job classification, length of service and other factors. No liabllity · 
has been recorded In the accompanying financial statements as it Is the Corporation's 
pollcy to recognize the costs of compensated absences when actually paid to the 
employees, Upon termlnatioh, employees are not compensated for any um.1sed time. •- · ·· · ····-"""'"··--

Accounts Recelvable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Accounts recelvab1e are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
outstanding balances. If needed, management provides for probable uncollectible amounts 
thmugh a charge to earnings and a credit to an allowance based on Its assessment of the 
current status of individual accounts, Balances that are still outstanding after management 
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation 
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. There was no allowance for doubtful 
accounts for the year ended December 31, 2016, 

3) CONCENTRATION OF CRl::DIT RISK 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the corporation to concentrations of credit risk 
consist principally of contracts receivable. 

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2016 Include sales to one major customer, 
which accounted for 10% or more of the tot.al net sa1es of the Corporatlon, as follows: 

Customer 

Detroit Land Bank 

Percent of 
Sales 

77.00% 

Z.1..00% 

Receivable at 
December 31, 2016 

$ 835,880 

$ ·• J~35,8$0 

Total bank deposits as of December 31, 2016 are $298,070, of which $47,082 were 
. uninsured under th~ C~?.~r_al De~oslt lns~r~nce Corporatic»: (_f'.'DIC). 

9 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
· d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION~ INC • 

4) 

.. fl 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

®¥ :.:...n rm: w-1 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
Decamber 31, 2016 

Property and equipment consist of the follow!ng: 

Balance al Balance at 
Description 12(31/2015 Additions ·Disposal 12131(2016 

Purnlture and Fixtures $ 48,103 $ 286 $ $ 48,389 
Machinery & Equipment 1,629,42~ 486,642 2,016,067 
Computer & Software 70,981 9,683 80,664 
Automohlles 241,749 49,023 (48,877) 241,895 
Building Improvement 518!206 155,280 6731486 
Total Cost of FLxed hsets being Depreciated 2,408,464 700,9i4 (48,877) 3,0601501 

. ·•· .,. ... ,, ....... 
Accumulated Depreclafion 802,202 402,595 (44,556) 1,160,241 

Total Fixed Assets being Depredatecl • Net $1,606,262 $ 298,319 $ (41321)_ $ 1,900,260 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $402,595. 

5) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Corporation buys commercla[ insurance for certain insurabie risks such as general 
liability, directors and officers, property damage and workers' compensation. The 
Corporatlon's rlsl, ln each of these Insured risk categories ls limited to deductible amounts 
for each category, both individually and In aggregate. 

6) RELATED PARTY AND VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITY TRANSACTIONS 

The shareholders of the Corporation are also the shareholding members of the DMC 
Property Management, LLC, (the LLC), a Limited Liability Corporation, and C & A 
Contractors, Inc. (S, Corp,) and 1yler Street Investment, LLC. The Corporation has a 
property lease agreement with the DMC Property Management, LLC, under which, the total 
lease payments during the year were $42,500. 

Consolidation Rules: The Corporation is required to consolidate certain ''varlable Interest 
entities'' under accounting principles generally accepted in the Uniteci States of America. 
The LLC as well as the $, Corp has been Identified as a variable interest entity that Is 

----~~--r_';'9ulred to be consolidated wtth the Corporation under these rules. However, the financial 
statements do not consolldate these variable interest entitles as required by accounting 
principles generally accepted ln the United States of America. The effects of this departure 
from GAAP have not been detem1ined. 

However, these financial statements Include the accounts of DMC Consultants, Inc. d/b/a ----~......,,__,,,._.,_ .. -~-­
DMC Construction, Inc. and ryler Street Investment, LLC, collectively referred as "The 
Corporation". All materiaf inter-company'rrafisic:ictions have been eliminated ln combination.' , . ---.............. -~ -~· 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 

dlb/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2016 

7) COST AND ESTIMATED EARNINGS ON UNCOMPLETED CONTRACTS 

CONTRACTS IN PROCESS 

1hese amounts are Included in the accompanying balance sheet under the following 
captions: 

A summary of contracts In process is as follows: 

Ace um u lated Cost on Contracts 
Estimated Gross Profit Recognized 

Less:. _F<elated A,c-9~J.?ted Billing 

Cost and Estimated Earnings in Excess of 
Billings on Uncompleted Contracts 

BIiiings in Excess of Cost and Estimated Earnings 
on Uncompleted Contracts 

8) NOTES PAYABLE 

Notes Payable of the Corporatlon consist of the followin9: 

Installment agreement, dated May 27, 2014, repayable In 48 
payments of $2,637.66, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last Installment is due on May 27, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated May 27, 2014, repayable in 48 
payments of $2,157.97, :;it a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
vehlde, The last Installment is due on May 27, 2018. 

$1,237,721 
191,132 

1,428,853 

962,468 

$ 466,385 

$ 466,385 

$ 466,385 

2016 

$ 43,179 

35,327 

21,754 Installment agreement, dated May 27, 2014, repayable in 48 
payments of $1,328.90, at a rate of 4.5%~p-e-'-r-y-ea.,__r....,, "-s-e-cu_r_e....,d"""b-y----------~i 

equipment. The last Installment is due on May 27, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated May 27, 2014, repayable in 48 
. -·"· payments of $359,§§dll.JL.r:ate of 4.5% par year, :S.ecured _by 

vehicle, The last installment is due on May 27, 2018. 
,.-";/ < t"-t. ,..-•1 , ... ·-··-· ., " 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 

d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION 11 INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2016 

8) NOTES PAYABLE- (Continued} 

Installment agreement, dated June 6, 2014, repayable ln 48 
payments of $1,845.18, at a rate of 7.45% per year, secured by 
vehicle. The last instaltment Is due on June 6, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated AUgust 9 2014, repayable in 48 
payments of $996.69, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
vehicle. The last insiallment Is due on August 9, 2018. 

lnstaHment agreement, dated August 21 2014, repayable in 4B 
payments of $1,450.81, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
vehicle. The last Installment Is due on August 21, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated October 23 2014, repayable in 48 
payments of $i,420,37'., at a rate of .. 4.5_~/.o__P.(;;)!', __ '.:{ear, secured by 
vehicle. The last lnstallm ent ls due on October 23, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated June 2 2014, repayable In 48 
payments of $580.58, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
vehicle. The laet Installment is due on June 2, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated June 4, 2014, repayable in 47 
payments of $2,817.30, at a rate of 5.10% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last installment ls due on May 4, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated August 8, 2014, repayable in 48 
payments of $522.21, at a rate of 4 .. 5% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last Installment Is due on July 18, 2018. 

Inst.ailment agreement, dated Dece.mber 19, 2014, repayable In 
48 payments of $4,586,92, at a rate of 4,5% per year, secured by 
equl pm ent. The last installment ls due on December 19, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated July 24, 2015, repayable in 47 
payments of $1,425.00, at a rate of 3.040% per year, secured by 
equ(prnent. The last lnstal!ment is due on June 24, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated July 24, 2015, repayable fn 47 
payments of $730.00, at a rate of 3.040% per year, sec1,.1red by 
equipment. The last installment is due on June 24, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated May 6, 2015, repayable in 24 
payments of $198.75, cit a rate of 0% per y~r, secured by 
equipment. The last installment ls due on May 5, 2017. 

$ 31,367 

19,106 

27,811 

29,901 

15,241 

43,721 

9,559 

105,090 

39,097 

20,064 

994 

---------~.ul $,ta,!l.al.f;int ag~nt. ... .dated _$ep1;,e,rnber_~,,2_015--@payc;ib]€Ll.u.• -_...,..............,;;i..,~ .... 4§~4---~---1 
48 payments of $1,113.13, at a rate of 4.45% per year, secured 
by equipment. The last Installment Is due on August 30, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated October 2, 2015, repayable in 47 
payments,_pf_$900.00, al a rate of 4.45% per year, secured bY.~~~­
equlpment. The last installment is due on September 2, 2019. 

12 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INCT 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC • 

• 
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued} 

December 31, 2016 

8) NOTES PAYABL.E (CONTINUED) 

lnstaflment agreement, dated May 18, 2016, repayable in 36 
payments of $2,143.01, at a rate of 4.30%, per year, secured by 
equipment. The last inslallinent Is due on May 18, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated May 18, 20j6, repayable in 36 
payments of $5,761.69, at a rate of 4.30% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last installment is due on May 18, 2019. 

lnsfa!lment agreement, dated June 28, 2016, repayable in 36 
payments of $1,436.11, at a rate of 4.30% per year, secured by 
equipment The last installment is due on June 28, 2019. ----~-
Installment agreement, dated June 16, 2016, repayable ln 36 
payments of $1,259.04, at a rate of 1.90% per year, secured by 
automobile. The last installment is due on May 16, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated October 12, 2015, repayable In 12 
payments of $650.85, at a rate of 4.20% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last installment is due on November 15, 2016. 

Total 

Less: Current Portion 

Notes Payable-Net of Current Portion 

Principal Maturities for Long Term Debt are as follows: 

9) LINE OF CREDIT 

~ 

2017 
2018 
2019 

Total 

$ 58,975 

158,561 

44,109 

35,659 

6,385 

811,988 

409,751 

$ 402,237 

Amount 

409,751 
319,598 
82,639 

$ 811,988 

-~--~---1he-COrpuratlon-nasc1--$1,500,000 line-of ·oredlt with ·Level ·Onei3ankihat·matures as ·of 
September 15, 2017. This line of credit is secured by personal guarantee and all 
persona{ property, except certain exceptions as listed In the related agreement, of the 
owners. At December 31, 2016, there was no outstandlng balance on the line of credit. 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 

d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTIONJ INC. 
™ ffli#$§WWW,il®1 if 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2016 

10) SURETY BONDS 

The Corporations, as a condition for 0nter!ng into certain construction contracts, has 
outstandlng surety bonds. The bonds are collateralized by contracts receivable and are 
personally guaranteed by the shareholders. The Corporation has bonding capacity of 
approximately $10 million as of December 31, 2016, 

11) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Corporatfon has evaluated all subsequent events thrpugh April 14, 2017, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. No significant subsequent event was 
noted that required adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements, 

~~------··• --

- .--•,,.,,~,•'I':· -·-
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DMC CONSULTANTS; INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTIONf INC. 

Schedule I. Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 
Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Description 

Automobile Expenses 
Adminlstrat,ve Expenses 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Insurance 
Legal & Professionaf 
Marketing and Advertisement Expenses 
MlsceHaneous 

___ .9f!i.ct;E~p~~~~~ .. , ' . ' ,- ,-

Postage 
Payroll 
Rent 
Repair and Maintenance 
Security Charges 
Taxes 
Telephone and Website 
Training 
Travel 
Utilities 

... ~ ....... -.... ··-•··· - .... .,._ ·=· --~ 

See Independent accountanfs review report 
16 

.Arnount 

$ 42,857 
1,467 
4,235 

296,489 
43,284 
14,706 
17,337 
19,635 

745 
457,116 

52,560 
24,780 
20,200 

158,120 
12,334 
4,120 

22,288 
201280 

$ 1,212,561 

I 
I, 



OMC CONSULTANTS; INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Job 

CilyafOea,born-020 

CltyofDetrolt-BSEED907 

CltyofDe~oit• SSEE0933 

Olly oroetroit- BSEl:D 9:}l 

CltyofDetroit-POD-885 

Cl(yofDe!tofl-PDD-$69 

CltyofOerolt: PDD·930 

City of Garden Cfy-031 

Detroit Land Bar,k-898 

Detroit Land Elanl<-\100 

IJelroltLard Bank-910 

PD&D jobs 
ll78,879,880,906,917,920.B22,923,92, 
926,827 

"l'otal 

Cost 
Total lostlrnaied Estlmnte<f Incurred to 

CM!ract Cost Profit ~~t• 

$ 29,23() ~ 23,200 $ 6,030 Ip 720 

34.322. 27,600 6,821 S03 

.21,738 17,400 4,331.l 1,663 

14,330 11,400 2,938 3,80$ 

14,988 10,200 4,788 1,891 

68,153 40,250 27 /)03 40,214 

40,000 32;000 · ll,oco 1,7~7 

eo,ooo 40,000 10,000 232 

545.846 637,:;l86 8,4$0 S'i\7,386 

76&,318 621,000 145,318 -559,607 

117,020 83,500 23,520 3,111 

.256,098 208,125 47,973 86,928 

Sche.dule ll. Construction Contracts In Progra,;s 
Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Cott• 
Pli,o Billlng in 

Estimated ExooS$ Qf 
!;sOrm>ted Gross ... "Ciintra'ot'~.~---~•ac,-m~lri~g~s-Costann ....... . 

Cost to Prorrt Ravenu~ In Exoam; Esttmatad 
CompM>) • Realize<! Eame<J _B=l"-'ll•ccd_ ofBlllin(l$ E.lmirtgs 

22,480 187 

26,897 150 

16,w7 464 

7,701 93-0 

a,li09 794 

36 27,878 

:JO;i43 439 

39,768 58 

a,46o 

61;193 130,952 

00,38(/ 783 

121,197 

907 

753 

2/J'l,7 

4,539 

2,485 

68,092 

2,1$6 

2SO 

645,846 

890,659 

3,694 

106,005 

25,445 

907 

76'.l 

2.:i;a7 

4,539 

2,485 

42,647 

2,196 

290 

528,062 17,784 

408,961 281,598 

3,1194 

106,005 

$ 1,958,051 $ 1,681,961 $ 296,090 $1,237,721 $ 424,240 $191,132 $ 1,428,859 . $ 962,468 $466,385 _,$'---== 

Sef; Independent accountant's review report 
17 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC~ 
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Alan C Young & Associates, P. C. 
CERTlFIED PUJ3LIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS 

7310WoodwardAve, Suite740 
Dettoit, MI 48202 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT 

To the Shareholders of 
DMC Consultants, inc. 
d/b/a DMC Construction, Inc. 
Detroit, Michigan · 

(313) 873-7500 (Tel.) 
(313) 873-7502 (Fax) 

www.alancyoung.com 

We have reviewed the accompanying flnanctal statements of DMC Consultants, Inc. d/b/a DMC 
Construction, Inc. (a Michigan S Corporation) (the Corporation), wh!ch comprise the balance 
sheet as of December 31, 20i7, and the related statements of Income and retained earnfngs and 
cash flows for the year then ended;-and thtnelatecl-note!:'f"tITTne'l'fliartcial statements:A review~-----, 
inc!ude-s primarl!y applylng analytical procedures to management's financial data and making 
inqui1ias of Corporation management. A review is substantially less in scope i.han an audit, the 
objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Management's ResponsibHity for the Financial Statements 

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatlon of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementatlor.i, and ,maintenance of Internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the f!nanclal -statements that are free from material 
misstatement whether due to fraud or error. 

Accountant's Responslblllty 

Our responsibllity is to conduct the review engagement in accordance wfth Statements on 
Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review 
Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain 
llmited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any material modificatfons 
that should be made to the financial statements for them to be ln accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our 
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our report. 

Accountant's Conclusion 

Based on our review, exceprforthe issue ment1onecrTr..-tfieKnoWf1'Departure from Acc0tmtlng 
Principles Generally Accepted In Unlted States of America paragraph, we are not aware of any 
material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial statements In order for 
them to be In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

.... Amer.ica, ...... ~--... . ......... ~ .. -···--·-~- .. , ,, ___ ,.. . .. -~· ---· .... .. ........ ___ ......... . 
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DMC Consultants, fnc. 
d/b/a DMC Construction, Inc. 
Independent Accountanfs Review Report 

Known Departure from Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of 
Am&rica · 

As disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements, accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United $tates of America require the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity to consolidate 
the variable interest entity in its financial statements. Management has informed us that the 
Corporation's financial statements do not include the accounts of DMC Property Management, 
LLC and C & A Contractors, Inc. that the Corporation has determined are variable Interest entities 
and in whrch the Corporation holds a variable interest and ls the primary beneftclary, The effects 
of this departure from accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America 
on the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows have not been determined, 

Supplementary Information 

The supplementary information included 1n Schedules I, II, and Ill is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such lnformation 
is the responsibility of the management and was derived from and re !ates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The supplementary 
information has been subjected to the review procedures applied iri our review of the basic 
financho1I statements. We are not aware of any materlal modification that should be made to the 
supplementary information. We have not audited the supplementary information and, 
accordlngly, do not express an opinion on such information. 

Detroit, Michigan 
April 6, 2018 

,, ., ... ····--•·/1,.~,-~-·~ .... , ...... , .. ·~~~-~---~~-~ 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

ftrtnttW ts WNW rnilWW 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) 
Accounts Receivable- Trade, Net 
Other Assets 
Costs and Estlrnated Earnings in Excess of 
Billings on Uncompleted Contracts (Note 7) 

Total Current Assets 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENl (Note 4) 

Furniturn and Fixtures 
Computer and Software 
Machinery & Equipment 
Automobiles 
Building Improvements 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
Total Property & Equipment 

Total Assets 

-~~-----·---·" -

Balance Sheet 
December 31, 2017 

$ 30,57B 
2,579,854 

4,168 

293,172 
2,907,772 

52,633 
88,025 

2,034,044 
241,895 
673,~6 

3,090,083 

1,624,494 
1,465,589 

$ 4,373,361 

-See 0ccompany/ng notes and independent accountant's review report. 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION1 INC. 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Expenses and Other Payables 
Notes Payable M Current Portion (Note 8) 
Une of Credit (Note 9) 
Billings in Excess of Cost and Estimated Earnings on 
Uncompleted Contracts 

Total Current Liabilities 

LONG TERM DEST 
Notes PayableNet·of CurrentPortion-(Note 8) 

Total Long-Term Debt 

Total UablHties 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common Stock, 100,000 Shares Authorized, 
$1 Par Value, 68,000- Shares Issued and Outstanding 
Additional Paid In Capital 
Retained Earnings 

Total Stocknofders' Equity 

Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity 

Balance Sheet (Continued) 
Oeceml:/er 31, 2017 

$ 1,093,322 
39,375 

319,598 
980,000 

23857 
2,456,152 

2;639 
82,639 

2,538,791 

68,000 
142,000 

~1,624,570 
1,834,670 

$ 4,373,361 

··~··· .......... --- ., ... --.~----····· .. ·-···----

. . See accompanying notes and Independent accountant's review report. 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC~ 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

U:a T ftt 

Statement of Income and Retained Earnings 
Year Ended December 31, 2017 

CONTRACT REVENUE 
Construction Revenue 

Total Revenue 

COST OF REVENUE 
Related Job Cost 

Gross Profit 

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 

Income from Operation 

OTHER (INCOME) ANO EXPENSES 
Interest Expenses 
Depreoiation 
Other Income 

Total of other (Income) and Expenses 

Net Income 

Retained Eamlr'l'gs ~ Be.ginning bf Year 

Retainecl Earnings - End of Year 

$ 7,552,757 
7,552,757 

5,815,741 

1,737,016 

1,278,721 

458,295 

33,974 
464,253 

(4,469) 
493,758 

(35,463) 

. 1,660,033 

$ 1,624,570 

-····••·"'' ...... ,."---------·······--·-·-----~-----... -,,--,.---~~--~~---"···-~----

See accompanying notes and Independent accountant's review report. 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a. DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
~WAi i%W%liiii Ri&W i1 1hM W4 :W ii m ¥\ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Income 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income 

to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 

Depreciation 
Change in Accounts Receivable 
Change ln Other Assets 
Change In Costs and Estimated Earnings In Excess of 

Billings on Uncompleted Contracts 
Change In Billings In Excess of Costs and Estimated 

Earnings on Uncompleted Contracts 
Change in Accounts Payable 
Change in Accounts Payable-Related Party 
Change In Accrued Expenses and Other Payable 

Net Cash Used lo Operating Pctivities 

CASH FLOVVS FROM INVESTING ACTIVlTIES 
Purchase of Fixed Assets 

Net Cash Used In Investing Pctivities 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVJTIES 
Repayment of Notes Payable 
Proceeds from Line of Credit 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginnlng of the Year 

Cash and Cash Equlvc1lents at End of the Year 

SUPPLEMENTD~CLOSURE 
Interest Paid 

M Mil ii Ml 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended December 31, 2017 

$ (35,463) 

464,253 
(1,610,239) 

26,321 

173,213 

23,857 
394,449 

(8,500) 
17,992 

(554,117) 

(29,582} 
(29,582) 

(409,751) 
980,000 
570,249 

(13,450) 
44,028 

$ 30,578 

$ 33,974 

---- .. , ' . ·-· "' "" ·-··- ~~----•···•·-" ----~--~-·-•· -· .... . . ........ ····-~---J 

.See accompanyfng notes and independent accountant's review report. 
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DMC CONSUL TANTS1 INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

1) ORGANIZATION 

Notes to Flnanctal Statements 
December31 1 2017 

DMC Consultants, lnc. d/b/a DMC Construction, Inc. (the Corporation) was Incorporated on 
November 10, 2005 under the Business Corporation Act of Michigan to provide 
management, engineering and technical consulting services; design, construction, operating, 
maintenance services, management and IT consultlrig seJV!ces. 

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

It Is the Corporation's policy to apply generally _accepted accounting principles in presenting 
its financlal statements. In this connection, the more significant policies of the Corporation 
are described below: 

Revenue and Cost Recognition 

Revenue from fixed-price construction contracts are recognized on the percentage of 
completion method measured by the percentage of cost incurred to date to estimated total 
cost for each contract. This method is used because management considers total costs to 
be the best available measure of progress on these contracts. Because of Inherent 
uncertalntles in estimating costs, lt ls at least reasonably possible that the estimates used will 
change within the near lerm. 

Contract costs Include all direct material, subcontn:ictors and labor costs and all other indirect 
. costs related to contract peliormance. General and adminl\'5tratlve costs are c)1arged to 
. expenses as Incurred. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted ccinlracts are made 
in the period In which such losses are determined. Changes in job performance, job 
conditions and estimated profitabillty, lncluding those arising from settlements, may result ln 
revlsions to costs and Income and are recognized 1n the period in which the revisions are 
determined. 

The asset "Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts," 
represents revenues recognized in excess of amounta billed. The liability, "Bill1ngs in excess 
of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts," represents billings in excess of 
revenues recognized. 

Property and Equlpment 

Property and equipment is stated at cost The costs of additions and betterments are 
capitalized and expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed in ~he period 

----------,rmurre-d.-When-itemErofpropt)rty-and·eqt1!pment-are:;uftt'Orf@tlretl;ihtnelated-costs1:md-------1 
accumulated depreclation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is Included In 
income. 

. -·" ~ ·-- ~ .... , .. , .. ~---~--~----
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, •Ne. 

2) 

tr f ¥rift 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31 1 2017 

SlGNIFICANT ACCOUNilNG.POLICIES (Continued) 

Properl:i and Equipment (Cgntlnued) 

Depreciation and amorti:z:atton of property and equipment is provfded utiHzing the stralghtw 
line method over the estimated useful lives of the respecttve assets as follows: 

Building and Building Improvements 
Furniture and Fixtures 
Machinery and Equipment 
Computer and Software 

31,5 years 
5-7 years 

5 years 
3 years 

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the shorter of the remaining term of the lease 
or the useful lffe of the improvement utilizlng the stralghUine method. 

lncome Taxes 

The Corporation, with the consent of lts stockholders, has elected to be taxed under the 
I ntemal Revenue Code as an S Corporation. In lieu of corporate Income taxes, the 
stockholders of an S Corporation are taxed on their proportionate share of the Corporation's 
taxable income. Therefore, no provision or liability for federal Income taxes has been 
included in these financial statements. 

Accounting for uncertainty In income tax Items 

The Corporation has analyzed tax positions taken for filing with the Internal Revenue Service 
and state Jurisdiction where It operates. The· Corporation believes that income tax filing 
posttlons will be sustained upon examination and does not anticipate any adjustments that 
would result in material adverse effect on the financial condition, result of operations or cash 
flows. Accordingly, the Corporation has not recorded any reserves or related accruals for 
interest and penalties for uncertain income tax posltlons at December 31, 2017. The 
Corporation Is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdiction; however, there are currently 
no audits for _any tax periods in progress. 

Use of Estimates 

The process of preparing financial statements In conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires. the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain types 
of assets, llabilltles, revenues and expenses. Such estimates retate primarily to unsettled 

~-------·ransactions--and·-e17ents-as-of-the-date~of-th~-tlnmit:lal-staternents-. According1y;-upo~---......... ..-.1 

settlement, actual results may differ from estimated amounts. 

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term are 
____ ........ -----~--P.'?l.~11tage of 991!.'P)etio_l}_~§.~i,m_aj:~~ .o!J _a!I contracts, and _pr_g_~~lons f9r_ l~s~e~_9n aocout,J§ ____ . , . ---~ 

receivable. 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC~ 
1¥i%Wri V £@ VJ$? MibW aWJ Nil -~ 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2017 

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POI.JCIES (Continued) 

Cash Equlvalents 

For financial statement purposes, the Corporaiion considers all highly liquid Instruments with 
a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents, 

Compensated Absences 

Employees of the Corporation are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick days and personal days 
off, depending on the job classification, length of service and other factors. No llablfity has 
been recorded in the accompanying financial statements as it Is the Corporation's policy to 
recognize the costs of compensated absences when actually paid to the employees. Upon 
termination, employees are not compensated for any unused time. 

Accounts Receivable and Allow.smce for Doubtful Accounts 

Accounts recelvab[e are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
outstanding balances. !f needed, management provides for probable unco!lectible amounts 
fhrough a charge to earnings and a credit to an allowance based on its assessment of the 
current status of individual accounts. Balances that are sti!I outstanding after management 
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation 
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts 
for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

3) CONCENlRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Corporatlon to concentrations of credit risk 
consist principally of contracts receivable. 

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2017 include sales to one major customer, which 
accounted for 10% or more ofthe total net sales of the Corporation, as follows: 

Customer 

Detroit Land Bank 

Percent of 
Sales 

72.00% 
72.00% 

Receivable at 
December 31, 2017 

$ 1,860,701 
$ 1,860,701 

Total bank deposits as of December 31, 2017 are $428,580, of which $i66,095 were 
uninsured under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) • 

.. ........ ~~~~- _,_...,,......,,. __ ~--...... - .......... ···--- .. -·•·-··~ . ~ ......... ,. ___ --·-----~--
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a. DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 
19¥ ;&; J 7 FU) 

4) 

Notes to Flnanclal Statements {Continued) 
December 31, 2017 

PROPER1Y AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consist of the following: · 

Balance at Balance at 
Description 12/31/2016 Additions '12/31/2017 

Furniture and Fixtures $ 48,389 $ 4,244 $ 52,633 
Machinery & Equipment 2,016,067 17,977 2,034,044 
Computer & Sofuvare 80,864 7,361 88,025 
Automobiles 241,895 241,895 
Buildfng Improvement 673.486 6734$6 
Total Cost of Fixed Assets being Depreciated 3,060,501 29,582 3,090,083 

Accumulated Depreclatlon 1,160,241 464,253 1,624,494 

Total Flxed Assets being Depreciated• Net $ 1,900,260 $ {434,671} $ 1,465,589 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 20'17 was $464,253. 

5) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Corporation buys commercial insurance for certain insurable risks such as general 
liability, directors and officers, property damage and workers' compensation. The 
Corporation's risk fn each of these Insured risk categories is limited to deductible amounts 
for each category, both individually and in aggregate, 

6) RELATED PARTY AND VARIABLE INTERl.:ST ENTJTY TRANSACTIONS 

The shatehofders of the Corporation are also the shareholding members of the DMG 
Properly Management, LLC, (!he LLC), a Limited Liability Corporation, and C & A 
Contractors, Inc. (S. Corp.) and TylerStreetlnvestment, LLC. The CarporaOon has a property 
lease agreement with the DMC Property Management, LLC1 under which, the total !ease 
payments during the year were $51,000. 

Qopsolidation Rules: The Corporation Is required to consolidate certain "variable Interest 
entities" under accounting principles generally accepted In the Untted states of America. The 
LLC as well as the S. Corp has been Identified as a vatiable Interest entity that is required to 
be consolidated with the Corporation under these rules. However, the financial statements 
do not consolraate these .variable Interest entitles a_s require8 by accounting princ!ples' ' · 
generally accepted In the United States of America. The effects of this departure from GAAP 
have not been determined. 

·-. However, .these financial .staterneotsJnclude the accounts of DMC.Consultants, Jnc,~d/b/.a ~-. 
DMC Construction, Inc. and Tyler Street Investment, LLC, collectively referred as ''The 
Corporation". All materlal inter-company transactions have been eliminated In combination. 
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DMC CONSULTANTS1 INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTIONf INC. 

Notes to Financial St;;itements (Continued) 
December 31r 2017 

7) CONTRACTS IN PROCESS 

A summary of contracts In process is as follows: 

Accumulated Cost on Contracts 
Estimated Gross Profit Recognized 

Less: Related Accumulated Billing 

$ 2,913,282 
975,320 

3,888,602 
(3,619,287) 

$ 269,315 

These amounts are included in the accompanying balance sheet under the 
following captions: 

Cost and Estimated Earnings In E:'.xcess of 
Billings on Uncompleted Contracts 

Billings 1n Excess of Cost and Estimated Earnings 
on Uncompleted Contracts 

8) NOTES PAYABLE 

Notes Payable of the Corporation consist of the following: 

Installment· agreement, dated May 27, 2014, repayable In 48 
payments of $2,637.66, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
equipment The last lnstallment is due on May 27, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated May 27, 2014, repayable in 48 
payments of $2,157.97, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
vehicle. The last installment is due on May 27, 20'18. 

Installment agreement, dated May 27, 2014, repayable In 48 
payments of $1,328.90, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last installment is due on May 27, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated May 27, 2014, repayable in 48 
payments of $359.66, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
vehicle. The last Installment is due on May 27, 2018. 

$ 

$ 

293,172 

(23,857) 

269,315 

$ 12,850 

10,513 

6,474 

1,752 

--------lnstallment-agreement-;-dated-June-6,-2014,-repayable-in~48----•*-'t10;87-2~-------i 
payments of $1,845.18, at a rate of 7.45% per year, secured by 
vehicle. The last installment is due on June 6, 2018 • 

.. --- -· . . ..... ,..,,_, __________ , ______ _ 
i1 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Notes to Financial Statements {Continued) 

December 31, 2017 

8) NOTES PAYABLE (Continued) 

Installment agreement, dated August 9 2014, repayable in 48 
payments of $996.69, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
vehicle. The last lnstallment is due on August 9, 2018. 

lnstallment agreement, dated August 21 2014, repayable in 48 
payments of $1,460.81, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
vehicle. The fast installment Is due on August 21, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated October 23 2014, repayable in 48 
payments of $1,420.37, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
vehicle. The last installment Is due on October 23, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated June 2 2014, repayable In 48 
payments of $880,58, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
vehlcle. The last installment is due on June 2, 2018. 

fnstallment agreement, dated June 4, 2014, repayable in 47 
payments of $2,817.30, at a rate of 5.10% per year, secured by 
equipment The last lnstallment Is due on May 4, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated August 8, 2014, repayable in 48 
payments of $522.21, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last installment Is due on July 18, 2018. 

Installment:agreement, dated December 19, 2014, repayable in 
48 payments of $4,586.92, at a rate of 4.5% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last installment Is due on December 19, 2018. 

Installment agreement, dated July 24, 2015, repayab[e ih 47 
payments of $1,426,00, at a rate of 3.040% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last Installment Is due on June 24, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated July 24, 2015, repayable in 47 
payments of $730.00, at a rate of 3.040% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last Installment is due on June 24,. 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated September 30, 2015, repayable in 
48 payments of $1,113.13, at a rate of 4.45% per year, secured 
by equipment The last lnstaUment is due on August 30, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated October 2, 2015, repayable in 47 
payments of $$00.00, at a rate of 4.45% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last Installment ts due on September 2, 2019. 

$ 7,774 

11,315 

13,897 

5,154 

11,394 

3,601 

53,725 

22,962 

1·1,799 

21,350 

16,927 

··-·-··· ·-",, .. ,~-.----···---,.,..,,_,_~--•"'"-·~--_,__,_·~---~~--· ,,,., ,, __ -~---~-""""~---
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DMC CONSUL TA.NTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

!WHPl¾Aff. \ t ! i PWil 

Notes to Financial Stataments (Contini,1ed) 
Oecember 311 2017 

8) NOTES PAYABLE (Continued) 

Installment agreement, dated May 18, 2016, repayable in 36 
payments of $2,143.01, at a rate of 4.30% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last Installment Is due oh May 18, 2019. 

lnstallment agreement, dated May 18, 2016, repayable in 36 
payments of $5,761.69, at a rate of 4.30% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last installment is due on May 18, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated June 28, 2016, repayable ln 36 
payments of $1,436.11, at a rate of 4.30% per year, secured by 
equlpment. The last installment Is due on June 28, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated June 16, 2016, repayable in 36 
payments of $1,259.04, at a rate of 1.90% per year, secured by 
automobile. The last Installment Is due on May 16, 2019. 

Total 

Less: Current Portion 

Notes Payable - Net of Current Portion 

Principal Maturities for Long Term Debt are as follows: 

9) LINE OF CREDIT 

2018 
2019 

Total 

$ 35,332 

94,996 

28,448 

21,102 

402,237 

319,598 

$ 82,639 

Amount 

319,598 
82,639 

$ 402,237 

The Corporation has a $1,500,000 line of credit with Level One Bank that matures on 
demand. Thls line of credlt Is secured by personal guarantee and all personal property, 
except certain exceptions as listed In the related agreement, of the owners. At December 
31, 2017, the outstanding balance on the llne of credit was $980,000, As of the report 

-----~----,dat(r,theatitstanding ·balance-ofth~r!intnjf"t:'.reditwas-$200';000. 

-~--........,.,._,..;..,i...,,_.~ .. , ... -~-····--··· ...... ~...---.-.. --~-- •-----•--..,,,.._,,.,,; ,.,.., • •'•"'••--'---',._u.,..,,_,.,._.._,~•-•.,,.,.,,. 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

10) . SURETY BONDS 

Notes fo Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2017 

The Corporations, as a condition for entering Into cerl:8.in construction contracts, have 
outstanding surety bonds. The bonds are collatera!ized by contracts recewable and are 
personally guaranteed by the shareholders. The Corporation has bonding capacity of 
approXimately $10 million as of December 31, 2017. 

11) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Corporation has evaluated all subsequent events through April 6, 2018, the date the 
flnancial statements were available to be Issued. No signlficant subsequent event was noted 
that required adjustment or discfosure in the financial statements. 

---~~L >~-• ... • .. ••"••" _,,,,_ ~·•••~n••~ ............... --~-- __ __, __ -"···· -··· -··- ---
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC,. 
r frlSE#MM . Ui! \ 

Schedule I~ Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 
Year Ended December 31, 2017 

Description 

Automobile Expenses $ 
Administrative S:xpenses 
Bank Charges 
Insurance 
Legal & Professional 
Marketing and Advertisement Expenses 
Miscellaneous 
Office Expenses 
Payroll 
Rent 
Repair and Maintenance 
Security Charges 
Taxes 
Telephone and Website 
Training 
Travel 
UtJlities 

$ 

~~-----~---.. •·-·~· ~·~·······•~•~---....,.,...~·-~-

See Independent accountanfs review report 
16 

Amount 

24,410 
2,070 
4,468 

304,326 
76,469 
17,003 
4,402 

17,689 
462,970 

51,000 
54,897 
20,430 

170,994 
14,659 

293 
33,136 
19505 

1,278,721 



DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a 0MC CONSTRUCTION1 INC. 

Schedule II" Construction Contracts In Progr.ass 

Jo\> 

CltyofDsarbO(J\-1024-0u\e, Pr 
Cit;>ofDaaroorn- 894 Bingham 
CltyofWyandotlo-1007-liliohop P•il< 
DetRl>\ll.a-1018-GoeUl/Ho\ocrnb 
Det Ravii\. 1020- Reno 
Ool flG\li;\ • 10~ E Watr8r\ 
O,trott-HR0•1031•2017 
Dal R&Vfa • 1036- Oarl>ondale 
Del ReVla -1038- Slopeprl/Monloa 
Dl>l RelAa. 1039- Mckinsfry/Proolor 
Dal Ra\Jia-1()4;1. Chioa90 
Del Rel>la- 11l46- Monica 
Dot Re\/la-1046- Thornt<>n 
DelTOH [,and' Bank- Dem<'> 946 
Detroii Land Bao~. Donio 847 
Detroit Land Bonk D<>mo ~ 
Petr<>lt Laml f,en~- Dotno 883 
Detr<>Jt Wind Bank• Demo 884 
D"'rolt L•M Bank-101! 
Do\rolt Lal\!'I BMk-1012 
Cloar Com•-1oa:i-2017 
Delroll LOO<! Bank- 1022 
PD&D CcostrucUon- 879-2017 
PD,l,,D Cons!/tlcllon-900,2017 
De!rott Revi(ali1'allon (PP$<D) con,L 
Job•·GZ"l,897, 1POO, 101B, 1027, 907 
T<>lat 

Costs. l;stimal~ Gro~ 
Total l!•llmatad Sstl111ah>d 1ne11rr~d Cost lo Profit 

CantrM-f CosL Profit to d•to CO!!'J!l•lo R••l1:<od 

~ 28,325 ~ 21,oao $ 5,285 $ 154 $ 20,006 ~ 36 
27,610 22,oaa 5,622 18,238 a,sso 4,560 
62,32(1 51,0JO 11,320 8,784 42,238 1,94'! 
36,400 18,f;OO 1!),900 14,~9 1,981 1$,e,51 
44,350 18,500 25,850 16,1)02 1,808 2a,a24 
52,105 24,449 27,656 9,321 15,128 10,;40 
48,076 25,669 22,406 in,150 7,51Q 16,1!4~ 
15,600 7,000 8,t\00 1,037 o,e1JS 1,904 
64,160 81,300 12,8!i0 14,269 :,1,0~, i,674 
35,800 20,717 14,68:l 4.84i 1(1,870 3,406 
,a,soo 8,600 6,000 2,7ll2 6,708 1.842 
1&,000 5.600 10,500 2,334 3,166 4,461l 
47,375 24,704 2.2,67t 11,001 13,703 10,006 

886,618 805,000 41,618 604,056 844 81,491 
394,566 :315,700 78,8o6 ~o~.112 $,688 76,471 
655,753 431,000 124,7$3 ~~0,256 744 124,6!!8 
632,WZ 41S,213 217,774 aza,.21e 89,000 171,095 
763,318 409,Q85 273,334 442,$00 47,077 247,072 
627,876 405,000 132,875 411,851 83,149 110,555 
;3$8,279 300,600 97,679 1~,550 161,050 4li,346 
18,541 17,600 1,041 6,005 12,485 298 

358,339 285,200 73,1W 11,044 274,1ilti 2,8:12 
13,330 Zl,~7 (9,888) ,r-l,?.27 (9,888) 
41!,750 34,00ll 14,750 2l.l,'l38 '4,662 1:(.728 

__ 246.246 ___j_Q_~~ 49,2Ml 61~4 135,412 ~ 
j s,2ai,e,1 ~ ~,8011,41~ $1,328,818 :f ~a13,26Z J. ~ij3,131 $ ers1$17 

Sea Jhdependent eccounfant's review reporl. 
17 

Year Ended Decamber 31, 2017 

Cast.Plus 81\llns• ln 
e,1Im,ted Ex-c:-oua 11f 

Contra.ct E;omlog!>in Qqoiand 
R.eve-nus E'.XC~-S$1)f S,,elrndad 
Ellrnod EllUOll Billlngu E>r"l"GS 

191 i 6,700 ~ (6,609) 
22,796 18,360 4,446 
10,710 10,710 
31,193 $0,400 783 
40,016 39,3.50 686 
19,8&5 19,865 
33,903 43,075 (9,082) 
2,241 2,341 

17,843 2?.,3Dn (4,457) 
n,2{)() ?,260 
4,434 4,4~4 
ff,700 6,790 

21,097 21,097 
6\)6,54-T aaa,a54 Zi,003 
382,5~ 375,170 7,413 
654,7!!4 si4,71:l 30,019 
497,1113 4B2,155 15.178 
68$,860 686,462 ~,518 
622,41;<, 497,368 26,038 
1s-1,osa 183,473 1,423 

5,303 5,300 
13,876 1M76 
13,339 15,$39 
42,066 45,816 (3,809) 

76 080 ~ -----
$ ,,asa,~~ $ 3,"19,207 ~ .a~~n ~ 

-··---.. -·-· .. --~~--·-· .. ---=-_..,.__. .. .._., ... tt,,,,.,------------~·~···· ._, ....... ,---~-~--~·-·-• .. ·--. _,_ _______ .... , ... _ ........... --·-- -· 
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Alan C Young & Associates, P. C,, 
CERTIFJED PUBLIC ACCOONTANTS AND CONSULTANTS 

7310 Woodward Ave, Suite 740 
Detroit, Ml 48202 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVll2W REPORT 

To the Shareholders of 
DMC Consultants, Inc. 
d/b/a DMC Construction, Inc. 
Detroit, Michigan 

(313) 873•7500 (Tel.) 
(313) 873,7502 {Fax) 

www.alancyoung.com 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of DMG Consultants, Inc~ d/b/a DMC 
Construction, Inc. (a Michigan S Corporation) (the Corporation), which comprise the balance 
sheet as of December 31, 2018, and the related statements of Income and retained earnings and 
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review 
includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's financial data and making 
inquiries of Corporation management. A review Is substantially less In scope than an audit, the 
objective of which is the exprespion of an opinion regarding the financlal statements as a whole. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opin1on. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management Is respons!b[e for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, hnplem~ntatlon, and maintenance of inter.nal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement whether due to fraud or error. 

Accou nta11t's Responsibility 

Our responsibility ls to conduct the review engagement In accordance with Statements on 
Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review 
Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require us to perfomi procedures to obtain 
limited ~ssurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any material modifications 
that should be made to the financial statements for them to be ln accordance with accounting 
principles generally acoepted In the United States ot America. We believe that the results of our 
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our report. 

Accountant's Conclusion 

8ased on our review, we are nol aware of any materf al mo81ticalions tfiatslioula-6emaoe1o the 
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

~~----~ --,.••-- ....... , ..... _ ...... ~--~--~ 



DMC Consultants, [nc. 
d/b/a DMC Construction, Inc. 
Independent Accouritant's Review Report 

Supplementary Information 

i'he supplementary Information included in Schedules I, II, and ill is presented for purposes of 
addiiional analysis and Is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information 
Is the responsibility of the management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The supplementary 
information has been subjected to the review procedures applied in our revrew of the basic 
financial statements. We are not aware of any material modification that should be made to the 
supplementary information. We have not audited the supplementary Information and, 
accordingly, do not express an oplnlon on such informatlon. 

~··~'.~~:{~ 

Detrolt, Michigan 
May 3, 2019 

~~--_.... __ ,,.,., ... ,,. --- ., ____ .,_ .. ~---- -·-···--·~--·-----, 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION~ INC. 

ASSETS 

CURRgNi ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equ!vafents 
Accounts Receivable ~ Trade, Net 
Security Deposits 
Loans and Advances 
Loans and Advances-Related Party 
Costs and Estimated Earnings in Excess of 

Billings on Uncompleted Contracts 
Total Current Assets 

PROl'ERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Furntture and Fixtures 
Computer and Software 
Machinery & Equipment 
Automobiles 
Building Improvements 

Less: Accumulated Depreci'ation 
Total Property & Equipment 

Total Assets 

-----~------------"·---~~ 

Note 

3 

12 

6 

4 

Balance Sheet 
December31,2018 

Amount 

$ 16,908 
1,573,489 

1,938 
62,694 
48,943 

1,620,679 
3,324,651 

55,133 
91,976 

2,012,840 
247,495 
673,486 

3,080,930 

4 2,044,542 
1,036,388 

$ 4,361,039 

, , , . See accompanying notes and independent accountant's review report. 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 
Accounts Payable - Related Party 
Accrued Expenses and Other Payables 
Notes Payable - Current Portion 
Line of Credit 
Billlngs In Excess of Cost and Estimated Earnlngs on 

Uncompleted Contracts 
Total Current Liabllltles 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Common Stock, 100,000 Shares Authorized, 
$1 Par Value, 68,000 Shares Issued and Outstanding 
Additional Pald In Capital 
Retained Earnings 

Total Stockholders' Equity 

Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equtty 

Balanc8 Sheet (Continued) 
December 31, 2018 

Note 

12 

10 
8 

6 

$ 

Amount 

846,783 
27,180 
41,348 
86,985 

1,261,000 

62,722 

2,326,018 

68,000 
142,000 

1,825,021 
2,035,021 

$ 4,361,039 

-- .. -··-·-··. ---

See accqmpanying notes and independent accountant's review report. 
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DMC CONSUL TANTS1 INC. 
d/b/a: DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Statement of Income and Re-tained Eamings 
Year Ended December S1, 2018 

CON'TRACT REVENUE 

Construction Revenue 
Total Revenue 

COST OF RE.VENUE 
Related Job Cost 

Gross Profit 

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 

Income from Operation 

OTHER (INCOME) ANO EXPENSES 

Interest Expenses 
Depreciation 
Other Income 
Gain on Insurance Proceed from Damaged Assets 

Tota[ of Other {Income) and Expenses 

Net Income 

Less: Shareholders Withdrawal 

Retained Earnlngs • Beginning of Year 

Note 

$ 

11 

4 

Amount 

8,309;179 
8,309,179 

6,272,168 

2,037,0'11 

1,238,815 

798 196 

62,008 
448,008 

(1,957) 
(29,760) 
478,299 

'319,897 

(119,446) 

1,624,570 

Retained Earnings~ End of Year $ 1,825,021 

·See accompanying notes and Independent accountant's review report. 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

CASH FLO\l\i'S FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Income 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income 

to Net Cash Provided by Operating Actlvitles 

Depreciation 
Galn on Insurance Proceed from Damaged Assets 
Change In Accounts Receivable 
Change In Other As$ets 
Change In Loans and Advances-Related Party 
Change in Costs and Estimated Earnings ili Excess of 

Bi!lfngs on Uncompleted Contracts 
Change in BIiiings In Excess of Costs and ~stlmated 

Earnings on Uncompleted Contracts 
Change in Accounts Payable 
Change in Accounts Payable - Related Party 
Change in Accrued Expenses and Other Payable 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

CASH Fl-OWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Fixed Assets 
Insurance Proceed from Damage of Fixed J\ssets 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Repayment of Notes Payable 

Proceeds from Line of Credit 
Shareholders Withdrawals 

Net Cash Used in Financing .Activities 

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 

Cash and Co1sh Equivalents at End of the Year 

SUPPL..EMENl' DISCLOSURE 
Interest Paid 

.. .,.. ..... ~. ..... ..... -· .. ----~· .. ~,__ 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended December 31, 2018 

$ 319,897 

448,008 
(29,760) 

1,006,365 
(60,464) 
(48,943) 

(1,327,507) 

38,865 
(246,539) 

27,180 
1,973 

129,075 

(84,047) 
95,000 
10,953 

(315,252) 
2811000 

{119,446} 
(153,698) 

(13,670) 
30,578 

$ 16,908 

$ 62,008 

---•'- ••- .. •• ••- , .. • 4ou,' 

See accompanying notes and Independent accountant's review report. 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION 1 INC. 

1} ORGANIZATION 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Dece,mber31, 2018 

DMC Consultants, fnc. d/b/a DMC Construction, Inc. (the Corporation) was Incorporated 
on November 10, 2005 under the Business Corporation Act of Michigan to provide 
management, engineering and technical consulting seJYices; design, construction, 
operating, maintenance services, management and IT consulting servlces. 

2) SJGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . 

It Is the Corporation's policy to apply generally accepted accounting principles in 
presenting its financial statements, In this connection, the more signtflcant pollcies of the 
Corporation are described below; 

Revenue and Cost Recognition 

Revenue from fixed-price com,tructlon contracts is recognized on the percentage of 
comp!etfon method measured by the percentage of cost incurred to date to estlmated total 
cost for each contract, This method is used because management considers total costs 
to be the best available measure of progress on these contracts, Because of Inherent 
unce-rta!ntles in estimating costs, it is at least reasonably possible that the estimates used 
will change wtthtn the near term. 

Contract costs lnclude all direct material, subcontractors and labor costs and all other 
indirect costs related to cor\tract performance. General and adrnlnistmtive costs are 

. ctfafrg·ed to' expenses its incurred, Provisions for esffrnated losses on t.lncompleted 
contracts are made in the period In which such losses am determined, Changes In job 
performance, Job conditions and estimated profitability, including those arising from 
settlements, may result in revislons to costs and income and are recognized In the period 
In whfch the revisions are determined. 

The asset, "Costs and estimated earnings in excess of bfHings on uncompleted contracts,'' 
represents revenues recognized ln excess of amounts billed. The Uabllity, "Billings in 
excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts," represents blll!ngs in 
excess of reven~1es recognized. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment is stated at cost. The costs of additions and betterments are 
capitalized and expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed in the period 

--~-----1ncorred.-When-ltems-otµroperts,and-equlpt11'e'tit1mnfci1d-unetlred;tha1elated-cnsts-anct~-----1 
accumulated depreciatlon are removed from the accounts and any galn or loss is included 
in income. 

7 



DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a OMC CONSTRUCTION, .INC. 

NU\&P@MWWM ± 

Notes to Financial Statements {Continued) 
December 31, 2018 

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued} 

Property and Equipment (Continued) 

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment Is provided utilizing the stralght­
lrne method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets as follows: 

Building and Building Improvements 
· Furniture and Fixtures 
Machinery and Equipm~nt 
Computer and Software 

31.5 years 
5-7years 

5 years 
3 years 

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter ofthe remaining term of the lease 
or the useful lrf-e of the Improvement utilizing the straight-line method. 

Income Taxes 

The Corporation, with the consent of its stockholders, has erected to be taxed under the 
Internal Revenue Code as an s Corporation. In lieu of corporate income taxes, the 
stookholders of an S Corporation are taxed on their proportionate share of the 
Corporation's taxable income. Therefore, no provision or llabllity for federal lncome taxes 
has been included !n these financial statements. 

Accountrng for Uncartainty ln Income Tax Items 

The Corporation has analyzed tax positions taken for filing with the Internal Revenue 
Service and state jurisdiction where it operates, The Corporation believes that income tax 
filing positions will be sustained upon examination and does not anticipate any 
adjustments that would result in material adverse effect on the financial condition, result 
of operations or cash flows. Accordingly, the Corporation has not recorded any reserves 
or related accruals for lnterest and penalties for uncertain Income tax positions at 
December 31, 2018. The Corporation is subject to routine audits by taxing Jurisdiction: 
however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. 

Use of Estimates 

The process of preparing financta! statements in conformity w!th generally accepted 
accounting principles requires the use of estlmates and assumptions regarding certain 
types of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Such estimates refate primarily to 

-----~----. nsettle-d·transat:t1ons1:tnd-ewmts'11.'ff'bfilm"ttate"'bfthe1inanclal statements:-Atc'drdlngly-, ----....,.,, 
upon settlement, actual results may differ from estimated amounts. 

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change [n the near term 
. ar~ pe~C~.!]tag~_Qt.9.9rrJP.l.etiq!)_ estimates on ail contl'.?~1s, __ aosLPr9.."']Sions for !Op.§~S Pll...~-•w-·•-· -­
accounts receivable. 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

I! 

· Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Cash Eguivalents 

December 31, 2018 

For financial statement purposes, the Corporation conskiers all highly liquld fnstruments 
with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Compensated Absences 

Employees of the Corporation are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick days and personal 
days off, depending on the Job classification, length of service and other factors. No 
liability has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements as it !s the 
Corporation's policy to recognize the costs of compensated absences when actually paid 
to the employees. Upon termination, employees are not compensated for any un_used 
time. 

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Accounts receivable are stated at the amourrt management expects to coilect from 
outstanding balances. If needed, management provides for probable uncollectibfe 
amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to an allowance based on its 
assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding 
after management has used reasonable collection efforts sre written off through a charge 
to the valuatlon allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. There was no allowance 

. for d6ubtful accounts for the year ended December ·3 i, 2018. 

3-) CONCENTRATION. OF CR~DIT RISK 

Pinanclal Instruments that potentially subject the Corporation to concentrations of credit 
risk consist principally of corrtracts receivable. 

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2018 include sales to three major customers, 
which accounted for 10% or more of the total net sales of the Corporatlon, as follows: 

Percent of Receivable at 
Customer Sales December 31, 2018 

City of Detroit 13.00% $ 223,651 
Detroit Housing and Revitalization 29.00% 322,000 
Detroit Land Bank 41.00% 813,553 

83.00% $ 1,359,204 

· 1o1al·bank-deposrts as-of·Decetnber-31;"2018 are $349,122,~'0f which $86,414·were 
uninsured under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

4) 

' ::mm ~u 
Notes to Plnanclal Statements (Continued) 

December 31, 2018 

PROPERTY ANP EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment conslst of the folfowlng: 

Balance at Balance at 
Description 12/31/2017 Additlons Disposal 12/31/2018 

Furniture and Fixtures $ 52,633 $ 2,500 $ $ 55,133 
Machinery & Equipment 2,034,044 71,996 (93,200) 2,012,840 
Computer S. Softwa_re 88,025 3,951 91.976 
AUtomobiles 241,695 5,600 247,495 
Building fmprovernent 673,486 673.486 
Total Cost of Fixed Asse\5 being Depreciated 3,090,083 84,047 (93,200) 3,080,930 

Accumulated Depreciation 11624,494 448,008. (27,960) 2,044,542 

'fotal Flxed Assets: be.Ing Deprec:latt'¼d. Net $ 1,465,589 $ (363,961) $ (65,240) $ 1,o36,388 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2018 was $448,008, puring the 
year, the Corporation filed an insurance claim for one of its equipment 'A~th an original cost 
of $93,200. The transaction resulted in a gain for the Corporation of $29,760 for December 
31, 2018. 

5) VARIABLE. !NTERES1' ENTITIES 

The· FASB issued ASU 2018~17, .Consolidatlon (Tapio 810): Targeted Improvements to 
Related Party Guidance for Variable Interest Entitles, which amends the consolldation 
guidance by allowing private companies to make an accounting policy election notto apply 
the variable~interest entity (VIE) guidance when assessing whether a legal entity should 
be consolidated. These amendments are effective for a private company for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2020 and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2021. Early adoption of the amendments, lnclud1ng in an Interim 
period, is permitted. 

DMC Property Management, Ll"C, C&A Contractors !no. and Tyler Street Investment LLC 
have been id!."lntified as variable Interest entities. DMC Property Management, LLC has a 
property leaBe agreement with the Corporation, underwhlch the Corporation pald $61,000 
during the year ended December 31, 2018. However, the Corporatlon elected to early 
adopt the above standard. Accordlngly, based on the above guidance, all of the above 
VI E's are exempt from consolidation with the Corporation's financial statements. 

------·-·~---.. , ............ ,------·----------·-•···· ·········------
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DMC CONSUL TANTS1 INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

em ; 
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

December 31 1 2018 

6) CONTRACTS IN PROCESS 

A summary of contracts In process Is as follows: 

Accumulated Cost on Contracts 
Estlmated Gross Profit Recognized 

Less: Related Accumulated Billing 

$ 4,327,411 
1,098,792 
5,426,203 

(3,868,246) 

$ 1,557,957 

These amounts are included In the· accompanying balance sheet under the 
following captfons: 

Cost and Estimated Earnings In Excess of 
Billings on Uncompleted Contracts 

Billings in Excess of Cost and Estimated Earnings 

$ 1,620,679 

on Uncompleted Contracts (62,722) 

$ 1,557,957 

7) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Corporation buys commercial insurance for certain insurable, risks such as genera\ 
liability, directors and officers, prc:5Ilerty damage and· ·workers' compensatlon. The 
Corporation's risk in each of these insured risk categories is limited to deductible amounts 
for each category, both individually and in aggregate. 

8) · LINE OF CREDIT 

The Corporation has a $2,000,000 line of credit wfth Level One Bank at current Interest 
rate of 7,25% and matures on demand. This line of credlt is secl1red by personal guarantee 
and all personal property, except certain Bxoeptlons as listed in the related agreement, of 
the owners. At December 31, 2018, the outstanding balance on the line of credit was 
$1,261,000, 

9) SURETY BONDS 

The Corporations, as a condition for entering into certain construction contracts, have 
--~------nutstandlng·s11rety-bonds.-The·bonds-are.-collatera!ized•by-oontracts--receivable-and are-~---, 

personally guaranteed by the shareholders. The Corporation has bonding capacity of $15 
million as of December 31, 2018. 

.,..,....,~_.,....,,.--i,..,., __ _ --------- - ,._~_,_, .. ,,. ------
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 

d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION~ INC. 
;;;;>£ 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 3-1, 2018 

10) NOTES PAYABLE 

Notes Payable of the Corporation consist of the following: 

Installment agreement, dated July 24, 2015, repayable !11 47 
payments of $1,425.00, at a rate of 3.040% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last installment Is due on June 24, 2019. 

lnstalfment agreement, dated July 24, 2015, repayable in 47 
payments of $730.00, at a rate of 3.040% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last Jnstallment Is due on June 24, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated September 30, 2015, repayable ln 
48 payments of $1,113.13, at a rate of 4.45% per year, secured 
by equipment. The last installment Is due on August 30, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated October 2, 2015, repayable in 47 
payments of $900.00, at a rate of 4.45% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last installment is due on September 2, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated May 18, 2016, repayable In 36 
payments of $2,143.01, at a rate of 4.30% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last fnstallment is due on May 18, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated May 18., 2016, repayable In 36 
payments of $5,761.69, at a rate of 4,30% per year, secured by 
equlpm ent. The last installment is due on May 18, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated June 28, 2016, repayable ln 36 
payments of $1,436.11, at a rate of 4.30% per year, secured by 
equipment. The last Installment is due on June 28, 2019. 

Installment agreement, dated June 16, 2016, repayable In 36 
payments of $1,259.04, at a rate of 1.90% per year, secured by 
automobile. The last installment Is due on May 16, 2019. 

Total 

Less: Current Portion 

Note& Payable w Net of Current Portion 

12 

$ 8,390 

4,338 

8,731 

6,724 

10,610 

28,528 

12,164 

7,500 

86,985 

86,985 

$ 



DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

11) RELATED J0\3 COSTS 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
December 31, 2018 

The job related direct cost consists of the followlng at December 31, 2018: 

Description 

Sub-Contract Expenses 
Direct Labor 
Project Supplies 
Equipment Repairs 
Licenses & Perm !ts 
Consulting Fees 
Other Direct Project Expenses 

Total 

12) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Amount 

$ 3,398,919 
1,Zi 1,546 

481,257 
475,677 
381 ;204 
110,107 
213A58 

$ 6,272,168 

YMC Consultants, Inc. has been identified as a related party for the Corporation that 
provides trucking services to the Corporation. The Corporation has recorded s loan 
receivable balance of $48,943 and an accounts payable balance of $27,180 to YMC 
Consultants, Inc, for the year ended December 31, 2018, The Corporation had a total 

· transaction of $192,130 with YMC Consultants during the year. 

13} UPCOMING STANDARDS 

ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) 

ASU 2014~09 is a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that will supersede 
most existing revenue recognition guidance under GAAP. The standard's core prlnclple is 
that an entity should recognize revenue when It transfers promised goods or services to 
customers in an amount that reflects the conslderatlon to which the entity expects to be 
entitled In exchange for those goods or services. ASU 2014"09 prescribes a five-step 
process to accomplish this core principle, including: · 

., Identification of the contract with the customer; 

., lqentification of the performance obligat1on{s) under the contract; 
~~------·•--Determlnation-oftheiransaction·-price;-----.--------~------~~--1 

o Allocation of the transaction price to the identified performance obligation{s): and 
• Recognition of revenue as (or when) an entity satisfies the identified performance 

obllgation(s). 

Thls-frameworkwili'"require entities·t; make great~r u;e of jucigmenls.and estimates than 
previously required under GMP. ASU 2014-09 also prescribes additional disclosures and 
flnanclal statement presentations. 

13 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC. 
d/b/a. DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

13) UPCOMING STANDARDS (Continued) 

ASU 2016- 02, Leases aopic 842) 

L ;;,.id 1 %iUiQJiS#iifQi¥¥4Af\/S&l'iii¢e1?hVV Vt&Rl/!mi 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
Oecember31,2018 

ASU 2016"02 substantially changes current GAAP regarding tease accounting and offers 
specific accounting guidance for lessees, lessors and sare-leaseback transactions. 

ASU 2016~02 establishes a rlght~of-use ("ROU") model that requfres lessees to record a 
ROU asset and a lease liability In the statement of financial position for all leases with 
terms longer than 12 months (the standard may optionally be applled to leases with terms 
of 12 months or less). Leases will be classtfled as either finance leases or operattng leases 
depending on the character!stlcs of the lease; consistent with current GAAP; the 
recognition, measurement and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from the 
lease will depend on the lease classiflcatlon, 

ASU 2016-02 requires lessors to classify leases as sales-type, direct financing or 
operating. A lease wHI be treated as a sales-type lease if it transfers all of the risks and 
rewards, as well as control of the underlying asset, to the lessee. If risks and rewards are 
conveyed without the transfer of control, the lease is treated as a direct financing lease, If 
the lessor does not convey risks and rewards or control, the lease is considered an 
operating lease. 

This update also requires specific quantitative and qualitative disclosures about leasing 
arrangements to enable financial statements users to assess the amount, timing and 
uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases, 

The effective date of this standard Is FY 2020. Early adoption is permitted. 

14) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Corporation has evaluated all subseque11t events through May 3, 2019, the date the 
financial statements were avallable to be Issued. No significant subsequent event was 
noted that required adjustment or disclosure ln the financial statements. 

"~' ,-, .--- ·····-~-~-----··-··--·---,..._-, 
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DMC CONSULTANTS, INC • 
. d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Schedule I " Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 
Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Description 

Automobile Expenses 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Insurance 
Legal & Professional 
Marketing and Advertisement Expenses 
Miscellaneous 
Office Expenses 
Postage 
Payroll 
Rent 
Reparr and Maintenance 
Security Charges 
Taxes 
Telephone and Website 
Training 
Travel 
Utilities 

$ 

.$ 

Amount 

3,300 
3,578 

238,681 
86,547 
8,940 
5,314 

19,728 
536 

479,509 
66,528 
11,042 
30,676 

205,575 
13,491 
5,294 

42,076 
'17,994 

·1,238,815 

••'"'"' •••• -----L" -~~--~ ·••-••••-••-••=• =• --

See Independent accountant's review report 
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OMC CONSUL TANTSr INC. 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTION, INC, 

Schedule 11 - Construction Contracts tn Progress 

Total 
Job C-Onttaoi 

City of Hamttornc~ $ 23,0M 
Clly of Oelro~ -1121-2010 849,362 
CII\I of Detro a -11$5-2018 272.213 
Cl(yof De~olt-1141 •2D18 620.747 
Cl!),ofDelroit-1142•2018 521l,s83 
Cltyof• etroit• 1143-201~ 1$&!,000 
CfyofPetroit• 1166..:0018 701,724 
Ganl011 City· 1112-2018 11,320 
Clear Corp -1140-;,1)18 42,966 
rneer COIJl ·110D,:1ina a1,a13 
ClearCol)?-1164•2018 71.444 
Cle;ir Corp -11"6-2018 17,283 
Clt>orCorp, 1187-2018 36,TI9 
C\ol\fC"'\l - I 171-2018 10,184 
Oloaroorp • 1172-2018 18,628 
OleorOO<p, 1174-2018 86,li85 
Delroll--HRP.,EMCJ.102fl.2il17 - 18,07-5 
Delro!H-!Rb-l;MG,1069--2018 ~1.310 
De!roJ!-HR!).EMG-iD0~-2018 Zil4,S44 
Oatroi!+,RQ-eMGJ.10W.-2018 20,435 
Oecroll·HRD•EMG-1176·W18 27,7'20 
Petrolt.Jii'<O":;MG-1176-2010 16,850 
Delro!t•KRD·EMG-1170·201 B 49,800 
D<lr<>i\-~RD>-EM<M175•2018 53,000 
O<,l/o;l-Hf1.0-EMG-1180-2!l18 66,300 
De!ml1,11RD-EM0-11S1-2016 20,735 
PQ~olt-HRD-EMG-1183-2018 21,600 
Patroll·HRD-EMG-1184•.'<018 27,(!26 
Det!Qlt·HRD·EMG-1186·~018 62,260 
Detrolt-HRD-iamg-1186•~018 a3,6D0 
Oelroit,HRD•Emo•1187»:/01S IJ,!!60 

at,bt,:,t.al 4,696,909 

C"'1t:i Emlrnatl!d 
Esttm.ifttci t!l;Jffmated 1nourrvd to Cost to Gtooo f'rpflt 

$ 

Coat P.rofll -~q~ CO!!J11ete }i!i!.-atlzed 

19,600 $ 3,4114 i 9,000 $ 10,510 i,602 
584,4{)0 64,982 10,(;20 073,860 1,Hl!l 
244,992 27,221 29,628 215,454 ~1281 

- 400,000 Zl0,747 380,958 ~9.042 19\l,201 
47i,3SS 5Z!l98 300,770 172,607 3'.l,42() 
684,800 103/tOO 7,170 677,630 1,2eo 
673,00D 118,724 mi 672,421 102 

6,600 2,820 7,Qll9 611 2,850 
34,400 8,666 11)4 34,216 4l'l 
25,050 8,26:'i 2,276 22,774 MS 
61,~,. 16,4til 1,699 60,215$ 426 
1M26 3,41>7 1,433 12,ass 35U 
~.420 7,300 16,465 t~g55 4,116 

~.147 Z0~7 2,58() o,!167 645 
1S,3CO il,02') ~$ 13,244 14 
(19,300 17,2BQ- GS $~.2$4 16 
16,,\QQ 2,675 6,10• $,300 '{1060 
30,000 21,310 2!.l,951 49 ·21,275 

196,DOO 69,3'14 181,;)86 13,~5 64,502 
16.400 2,035 9,199 &.~1 1,017 
22,178 6,644 14,522 7,654 3,631 
1?,480 3,3"/Q 11,SH 1,963 '2,679 
39j840 9,960 23,671 16,DB\l 6,1)68 
42,400 10,600 15,027 27,~7, '3,7157 
4~,040 11.2eo 12,005 'lS,036 3,001 
16,668 41147 4,267 12,821 1,007 
17,280 4t320 1,318 16,482 1155 
21,900 o,425 2,501 19,399 620 
4&.600 11,450 5,8® 4$,000 1,463 
26,900 ~,7CO 10,()1;) 16,ll88 2,568 
64,700 7.260 9,zgs __ 61J!Zg_ 1.092 

l,862,979 83Z,930 1,089,424 2?731555 36'3,236 

See Independent accountan/1$ review report 
17 

Year Ende<! December :31, 2018 

co,tPlus llllllnQ• ltl 
~tttlmatod E>WUJi1:i of 

Contract earnings In Ct:island 

R-aventhl E:xCOti::J <>1 ~•tlmoted 
ERl'nfld Blllocl aU!tn!J~ EMntngs 

$ 10,61)?. 11,845 $ (1,163) 
11,689 11,689 
32,809 28,2$1 4,618 

560,159 $07,BSo (47.738) 
334,1,00 1;22,615 111,66:l 

8,4~ o,435 
G81 6/l1 

10,839 1D,B39 
.2BO ZlO 

2,846 '2,845 
2,124 2,124 
1,791 1,791 

20,563 20,583 
8,225 3,:1.w 

70 70 
82 5,600 [5,418) 

7,160 1M75 8,415) 
61.226 50,110 1,116 

245,867 246,603 284 
1o,21e 10.216 
18,163 1B,15:l 
14$6 14,$9$ 
29,639 29,83~ 
18,784 18,784 
10,006 16,008 
5,334 6,834 
2121$ 21213 
3,1i1 3,121 
7,313 7,313 

w.a,o 12,8(10 
10Jl20 10,820 

1,452,<i60 1,187,134 t27,S4e (62,722) 

ii 
1.: 

ii 
·:; 

I' 



OMC CONSULTANTS, INC, 
d/b/a DMC CONSTRUCTiON, INC. 

Total 
,lob Cootraot. 

OL~A•Derno,1011-2017 S27,S75 
DL~A•Demo•1012-2017 398,2~ 
DLBA•DomQ•1 OZl-2017 357,427 
DL~A-Oemo-1066-2017 127,ll16 
DLSA-0"'7\0-1110-2018 889,876 
DLaA-Oelrio-,1116-2018 703,,:69 
OlBMierno-1123-2018 453,682 
DU'lA-Pemo-1124-2018 642,112 
DWM--Pemo-1125s2018 Wll,6:lo 
DLBA-Oerno--1126-21}18 449,sae 
OLl3A-Oemo-111.l2~ITT8 734,239 
bLaA-Dema-1100•2018 1.09-3,308 
WMhfenaw my, 1000.201a ~.865 
Wa\'n• caunty-1114·2 6,004 
Wa'irlo c;ounly-1114•6 .(,T,,O 
W•1<1b Ck>unty-1146-3' 20,493 
Wa)lle County-1145--5 H,551 
Wll\'18 Couoty-1148./l 17,042 
W!l\'le County -1148•9 9,446 
W,ryns CO\ll1ly • 1146-11 io,eoa 
W:,yna County· 114$-16 12,158 
We:;~e Matro• 1160-2018 86,Q81 
D<lfmll RevllalzaUon (PDll<O) Coool 
Joos-927 21.165 

Total 112, 168,899 

Schedule II" Constnu:;tlon Contracts In Progress (Continued) 
Year Ended Decamber 31, 201& 

Cosls l:011m~tM 
t!•Umared Eotlmal<><l Incurred fo Cost ta Gross Prom 

Cost Profit o,te Co!I!Elota Rnaltz:od 

4')6,000 132,~75 487,932 1,008- 13'.l,971.\ 
300,600 97,670 262.668 35,032 85,821 
20$,200 141,227 19a,086 12,214 139,673 

60,679 37,238 78,7112 16,787 30,335 
620,000 68,876 50\,620 119,060 65.747 
832,950 70,319 606,002 12$,800 58,:/22 
308,200 140,382 267,684 40,618 126,223 
577:X,O tl4,212 338,545 239,355 37,017 
879,000 97,030 367,298 511,701 40,'196 
404,400 44,969 83,004 s20.ne 9,297 
687,400 146,839 8,032 57\l,368 2,008 
9.!14,0CJO 109,306 10,616 873,Dl\4 1,17l) 

3,~85 500 163 3,132 27 
6,670 1,394 4,632 8:Jfl 1,169 

, 3,025. 1,713 1,227 1,7f1Jl 695 
16,400 4,il93 9,96() 8,-140 2AM 
101500 4,051 4,148 8,,52 1,000 
12,110 4,072 5,8S2 6,2811 2,355 
a,aco 646 7,60B 1,29< 551 

16,61:() 4,161.1 8.413 10,237 1,!.'02 
16,588 (4,410) 16,568 (4,410) 
73,g'.J4 1~047 67,881 0,073 11,976 

16 900 4 2(15 ~--·"•~--~ 
i 10,138,910 S 2,031,989 ~ 4,327;411 $ M09,4S9 $ 1,0!Jll,792 

See fltdependenf aoc;oUntanfs review report 
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Co•t Pluo Bllll111JS In 
.estims.ted l=X.U81-$ of 

conb'aal Earnlna•ln Costand 
ft'1v~nll8 E'x:otts.a of Eollm,lnd 
Earrn1d Slll•d Billrnga Earnfngn 

61M10 673.416 46,495 
347,6(\9 $46,137 1,752 
336,559 317,102 19,4,1 
104,127 100,760 3,377 
567,567 4!!5,151 72,416 
662,284 185,891 398,393 
3S3,8ll7 137,434 25B,:l73 
a1a, 1s2 136,333 239,829 
408,095 270,091 1:)8,004 
92,901 76,787 16,144 
10,040 10,0~0 
11,795 11,7\l& 

180 160 
5,781 5,791 
1,922 1,022 

12,446 12,448 
5,748 fl,746 
8;237 B,237 
81)59 8,009 
8,016 a,o-1a-

12,16ll 12, 11;8 
79,836 62,626 17,210 

11 015 9125 1 t1.9n 

$ 6,428,203 $ 3,1)68,246 ~~ 1,620,2 ..1 !GJ!.722) 

----------------·- ,.,. , .... -· -·-···· .. ---~---~--- -------"'··-··""" ........... -----~----



DMCGROUP 
DMC CONSULTANTS, JNC, 

List of Employees 

---.- -------·--··----~-, 
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Bidor 
Pcropos!IJ. 
_.Bond: 

···P,,,.:;.·' 

Westfield. insurance Company 
yVestn,~d lii.sriiah~® l ~ark C~ile, ~-:o !3ox $~1; · . . .. 
Wei!tfield Centci'; Ohio 44251-5001 Toll F:ree B00~'.243..021 o. 

KJ10W ALL_ :&iEffaY·tEESEJJRESE!fIS, thllt_vr~_~D_M-'c_eo~·. _nsul:tln_ ........ &u...Tn_c_. __________ _ 

,_l3_5_00_F_· ol~ey-.... ,"-· n_·euo_i""'t,'Ml'._· _4_821.7_' _: _________________ ~___,. as Principal, and 

Center, Qhfu~as Sur-eiy, are heliJ an<l'fin.iify bound unto ·""',C""ityL.::.ofo.=P-=•on=til!C"-". ""'•------------~ 

_4_74__,?_0_.W.;..,· ood-' __ w_ar_· _d_A_:ilyI1.......,~...,,;_.Ji-'o.a.;..tl_ac,..;;:.;..W"'-. -.4_834'_......2_ . .......,------------,-~---',r,; ovl;gee, in 

Ii.le penal ~ :0£.f!YE PERCENT OF,:aro AMout-rr (5¾) DOLLARS 
' ,1 •• 7 

fawful moo.ey of ilie Unltiod States· of Am.e.rk;:i, fo.t ilie payment -0f whicll, weil and:truJy to be mad~, we bind 

·pres_euts. 

w:rnmEAS 'the said ~al .is hen;wifu 11ubn:iitting ~.blq.or ~rqposru fcir-};#xRalt Windo,i; f½placetn~.rit lUJii: ... 

Installation 

NOW TIIEREFORE; the condilion·of; the above .·.obll~ou Is such. tha'f if llie said Principal illillll e,cecufe· a 

1.:·~ !fu4 gi;vc bond foc t,he ±n;th:ful p¢rf¢naiice ther~f;i.( ieqimed. l,Jy; tlie_(fohfra~ oi:. it the Prlnc.ijia{ <ii-,S-qr.ety'· 

shall·~r ·1ru: Ob.ligee .lite. rli:ffi:renc:e,.rn:it e:i:ceeding the penal ~um hetwf, between. llie amounf ()fthe contract tn1ered 

iuto,fu iood. faith to p_momJ..tlie w<;!J'.kfo, whicli. .the bid or prop()$l!l relates anrl the. amount bid or propose1H?y the 

_Rri~ipal, ihe:llthis obligation ~hal.lbe,vpid; pth~i~~half:r~iil fufl:J;o~~ {llid_effect . 

. 2020 • 

., 

' i 
I 
L 



mis POWl:R OF A'n'OftNEV SUJlERCEll!:S ANY PRWIOUS POWSll 8!:ARING THlS !!AMI: 
l>OWER # AND IS$USI) PRlOR TO 12114/1\t, f'OR ANY PERSON OR PERSON$ NAMED BELOW, 

General 
Power 
of Attorney 

CEiRTIFIED COPY 

POWER NO, 2141882 09 

Westfield Insurance Co. 
Westfield National Insurance Co. 

Ohio Farmers Insurance Co. 
· Westfield Center, Ohio 

.Know Alf Men by fMsll PrllS¢f1tlJ, That WESTFl~LD INSURANCE COMPANY, WESTFIELD NATIONAL INSURANCS COMPAl't'Y iind OHIO 
FARMERS INSURANCE COMPANY, oorpora!lOl'Js, henilnalter. referred to Individually as a 'Compahy" and collaotlvely es 'Companies,• duly 
organli:e:11;:l and existing under the Jaws of the stiite of Ohio, -ant:I hi!!V!O\l Its prlnclpal ·om Cl) In Westfield Cenl'llr, Medina county, Ohio, do by theBe 
presents rnake, oonstltut("l and appoint 
GUS I:, ZERVOS, ANGELO o, Z~RVOS, OONA.I.I) W. BURDEN, nellHEU M. ZliRVOS, MlCHJ\!.:L G. ZERVOS, JOHHLY OR 
SEVEiRAU.V . 

of SOUTHFIELD and Btate ol Ml Its true and lawrul Attorney(s)-ln-feot, with fUII power and authority 11er.,by conterrfid In lls narna, 
place and stead, to exe,;;ute, a<:;khowtedge nn d deliver lltlY und alt lroncta, reoognlzanoos, unctei•tltklt'l9s, or other l»struments or conlrncl$ of 
:iuraty611Jp, , •• - • • • • • • • • • • •••••••••••••• _ •••••• ~ • • • • • • • __ • _ • _ • • • • • • , ••• _ • , 

LIMlTATIO~: "'!'HIS POWEn OF AT'rORNEY CANNOT BE USED TO llXEO\JTE NOTE GIJARANTEJ:i, MOlt.TGMll PliFIOIENOY, MORTGAGE 
O"OARAtlTE~, PR BJ\llf( oepOSITORV BONDS • 
.ind to bind any or tha Companies thereby as fully and to tha same extent as If e.Uch bonds-were slgnod DY the l'rasldant, sealed with the corporate 
seal or the l'!pplloable compimy l1nd duly attestfld by Its eecre~ry, hereby ratllylng im~ confirming an !hat 111e said Attorney(s-)-l11•Fact may do ln 
the premJses. Said appointment Is tiW1de under 11nd b\' authority ot the follo'Nlng resolution ar\Opted by the Soarcl of Directors or eaeh of tha 
WESTFIELD INSU.RAt-lCE COMPAMY, WESTFJEl,.D NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY and OHIO FARMERS INSURANCE COMPANY: 

'/;le lt R<JSD/Ved, that the President, ~ny Senior EXecutlve, any Seore\ary or any Ff'1ellty & surety OperalioM E.~eculive or o\her Executive shall 
be and rs hereby ve::iled with IUII l)ower an<:! .iulhorlly to appr,,!nl any one or more sulta!lla pll.fsons as Atlorney(s)-ln-Faot to represent llnd act 1or 
and on behalf of the Company S\1/:ilect to the rollowJng provisions: 

The Attam11y•ln•Faot. may be (ilvM full power and .autl1orl ty for end In the nam,:i of 11nd on behalf or tM Col"J\pany, to execute, ~oknowledge ~nct 
deliver, any and Elli bohds, recounizances, corrtrams, agreement$ of Indemnity and oth<:tr GC;lndltlonal or obllumtory unctertaklogs1 at)rj any anct au 
noUces and documents canc;ellng or ti,rm!n.itlng the COm))!lny':1 llablllty thereunder, and any such l~!ruments so exwileci by any 51Jch . 
Attorney•[n"f"<tct .shillf be all blh<'.IIJ'lg upon the Company as If 1slgnetl by thr; !'resident and sMl'lcJ ~nd i;\tealed by tha Corporate Secrernry.' 

~aa rt Further Rssoivllr:i, tl1at th,:i slgnal.ul"$ or any sudh d"s!gnated penion and th1:1 saal of the Company heretofore or llereafh,r <lfflXed to :my 
pmveror attorney or any oertlllCillll relating thereto by f\lC$lmlle, ahd ~ny power of attomayor cartlifoatebear1ng facslmllo slgn~tures or !aoslmila 
sell! 1,/Jl'lll be v<1lld ~nd bltidl11g upon the company wlth respect to any bond or undertaking to whlcll It Is ~ttaohad;' (i;act, adopted at a meattng 
held on Febru.iry 8, 2000). · . 

fn Wltn~ss Wbt>roof, WESTFIE!..D INSURANC5 COMPANY, WfSTFIEI.P NATIONAL lt-lSURAMCE COMPANY ancl OHIO FARMERS INSURANCE 
COMPANY MV~ caused these pre,i:mts to till sJgne<:i by their Natlonal Surely Leader atl(j $enlor Executive and tllelr corporate seals to i:Je hereto 
affixed th(~ 14ih day or DSCEMlllffi A.D,i ~Ola • 

corpcraf.e ~~'tiu¾lt,,. < '-'''1 \•oHAZ_11 '',,i> 
Si?clls l."'~~ ...... ,ec~\ /~:X·"'"••~i•,, 

Al'lll<l!ll~y/' """' "\ ,;'!" .l q,• '•.~• ~l ,-Q \ ~itf.r \i" 
. . R{ Sr!!L JJ :1!( SEAL )~} 

~ ..... .-;ir\?Jl"r' \~,. /8.l 
'""•...-.._~~ "'i;.,.,., "'1 

.... '1, .. " .. ., 1u-1 1,.J- ..,,~..,., 

,e.,,_ ,,,t, " ,\, .. 
stata of Ohio --rfllJ.U ' 1f1H.(11)tlll,'I 

county ot Medln!l $$~ 

WESTFIELD INSURANCE COMMNY 
WESTFIELD NA1lOWAL INSURANCE COMPAtN 

::,~?~~ 
Dennis P, Baua, NRtlonal Surely L~ar:/er 11nd 

Senior ExPCUtfve 

on this 1.1116 day or OEC'™8Elt A.O., ::!018 , before me peroonlitly came Dannis J>. 13aus 1o me known, Who, belnq by l'()e duly sworn, did 
depose and say, that he res)des In Wo-0ster, Ohio; that he Is Nation-al Surety Leadar and Senior E:xacutlve oFWE5iF1EW IN6URMIC!< 
COMPANY, WESTFlELP NATIONAL INSURANCE: COMPANY and OHIO FARM~RS INSIJRAHCE COMPANY, t!l(;I. IXlfnPanles described In and whlvh 
eireouled 1he above Instrument; tnat he knows the $1/,~I~ of aeld eomp111nles; thal tha sei'IJ$ ;:iftlxad to said lnstrwnant .ir!l suoh oorpornte seals, that 
they were eo ~mxad by order of the aoards of Dlreotorn of snld Con'lp~nles; ,and that he signed his name lhereto by If Ke order. 

Nolartal 
Saal 

Afflxad 

State o1 Ohio 
county of Medina 

BPOACi (c«irflp!ned) (lll;-02) 
'•t' 

.,. 
·--•~- • 

~d/4 
David A, Ko.tnlk, Attorney at .Lew, Notary Publ/o 
My Cornmlaslon Dees Not flXpfre (Si,<:. 147,03 Ohlo Revised Code") 

~ 
f'lrank A, c~rrlnu, Secretary 



DMCGROUP 
DMC CONSULTAN'fS, INC, 

pst of Legal Proceedings/Claims against DMC for the Past 5 Years 

1 J MIOSHA v /s DMC ·consultants, lnc: 

DMC was contracted for non-environmental interior demolition by a General Contractor. 
However the drywall had some positive joi11.t compound, which was not revealed to DMC. The 
environmental work on this project was contracted to another contractor, and DMC was only 
performingnon~environmental work MIOSHA had fined DMC for $265,000 for willful H&S 
(asbestos) violation. DMC has protested the violatfon. Recently a judgment was r€leased by a Judge 
that the violation was not willful and the fines were reduced to $3,400. 

2) gandard Guarantee Insurance Company v /s D.MC Consultants, Inc./Lakeshore Global/PLBA 

DMC had demolished a property contracted by DLBA and inspected by Lakesbore Global. The property 
knocked down was located at 21233 Margareta, Detroit DMC was not at fault as it has demolished the 
property under contract. Claim is settled by Insurance Company. 

3) Douglas Evans v /s DMC Consultants, Inc. 

Douglas Evans had filed a iawsuit against DMC claiming that he was injured at a DMC site. Douglas 
was not a DMC employee and the incident was a nuisance claim. The case was dismissed in the Court. 

4) Dalon McCUnton v /s DMC Consultants, Inc. 

Dal on had claimed that he was injured by slipping into an open hole next to his house where DMC was 
performing Demolition. Dalon claimed the site had no fence and the earth gave away while he was 
chasing his dog. DMC has the site secured and has provided all pictures. The case was settled by 
the Insurance Company. 

5) Connie Evwaraye v /s DMC Consultants, Inc. 

This was an Auto Insurance Claim. Connie's vehicle was hit by DMC's Truck The case is settled by 
Insurance Company. 

6) H&H Metals d/b/a Metro Waste 'V Ls DMC Consultants, Inc, 

H&H Metals had filed a lawsuit for non-payment for services provided on a DLBA project. They 
assumed J)MC was the GC on the project. DMC did riot work on the project. The case was dismissed. 

Consulting • Construction • Environmental a Demolition 
Corporate Office 13500 Foley Stroot Detroit, Ml 48227 P 313. 491, 18i5 F 313. 491. 1820 Web www.dmcgroup1.1sa.com 

---·--~-----------------------.......C,.---------------------i 



DMCGROUP 
. DMC CONlllJLTANTS, INC, 

7) Jasso Brothers v /s DMC Consultants, lnc. 

Jasso Brothers was a concrete contractor doing side-walks on DMC Demoliti.on sites. DMC had 
paid around $280,000 in 2017. He had also provided services in 2018 close to around $180,000. 
DMC had paid almost $40,000 to him on the contract. DMC's account department questioned his 
Invoice, and asked an engineer to verify the quantities claimed by Jasso, Upon verification the 
engineer reported a lot of discrepancies between actual concrete poured and billed by the 
subcontractor. DMC has rusputed his invoices; 

DMC is fiUng a counter lawsuit against fasso Brothers for fraud for over it1voicing for the year 
2017. Upon inspection DMC realized that f asso Brother cheated DMC and over invoiced and got 
paid from DMC for the work performed in 2017. The case was withdrawn and the matter was 
settled between parties. 

-----------~--~-------------------- --- •"••w-

Consuftfng • Construction • Environmental m Demolition 
Corporate Offlca 13600 r9ley Street, Petroi1, Ml 48227 P 313. 491. 1815 F 313. 49i. 1620 Web www.drncgroupusa.com 
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SrA 18 o~ MfCHWA/.1 
OSPARTMEN"'f OF UGE;f\JSfNO 
AND REGUlATORYAPFA/RS 
P,O, SOX 30Ei10 
LANSING, Ml 46909 . 

Plaase tall us about your l!c,n~ing 
experign~e by complating owr 
anonymous customer survay at1 
www~michigan,gov/larasurvey 

DMC CONSULiAWfS !NC 
DSA/ l>MC CNfSTi\U('f't•N INC 
JJ3SOO fOLEY 

l 

~l2104D3 001 R ~D18E 

Q,0,- MAHISH SUR~NDRA CHAUDHARY 
DH, CDNSULTANTS INC 
OBA/ OMC: co·Nrnwcr !• It !N'( 
1i:1sao F'Ol.EY · •· 
OtiR•lT ·M! 48~~? 

I L!C.:~~. no, .~iiRHWI ,M.f~ • ,unr ,ii , 

vi 2102181340 OS/H/2020 .3·J;486&~ J 
il ..... ~. ··•~-,. •'"1. ,.. •• ~··· ··•H•~·--··-·-·-•.-•---~, ......... ~•·,..,-.,.~ .... ,, .. __ ~------H~----~·•··~·---; 

:so, 

1>nRCJ:t Hi ~8Ba7 Campla\n~ !nfor~~l:{on 
Tn1 l~i~•n~i Qf bhl~ lL,1n1~ ar p~rnib ~hq~L~ nah ha 
~OIT!!~~u;t! ~~ a ~etiv,u, or disnihsal af ~"Y ~o,npllinis or 

lt1ql.(!rl~sRe£Ja.rdlng thfa Lloense vlo15Hon.s,pijrtd{ng e~.iLna~ ~hQ lic,rnsa~, it! a1~n~~, 
Pfe.ttSe provlc/e your !laans,a number ott «11 cmresiponctanca, Ql!pt~yags ~~ qu~ttrying O ffH-ar, 
ar1ct wh1c1n 00111:llesl!ng th(! Depo(rtrn,;int, 

W'NW,mfchlgan.r;;ov/bp! 

S ure.1t1 or Profes$lona I Llc·anslrrg 
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DMC Consultants, Inc, 
13500 Foley Street 
Detroit, Ml 48227 

The Michigan Depattment of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA) has reviewed and approved your application 
for a Michigan Asbestos Abatement Contractors License. The Licens(;l Certificate is valid for a period of one year. 

The Department is requiring each licensed asbestos abatement contractor to notify the Department of any asbestos 
abatement project exceeding 10 linear feet or 15 square feet of friable asbestos containing matedat This notl:fication 
must reach the office of the Asbestos Program at least 10 days before the beginning of each project. lf fot an.y reason 
there are revisions or modifications to a 11otification. your company must notify LARA by FAX (51.7.284.7700)1 telc­
phone1 or email (asbestos@michlgan.gov). If the revision is via telephone, your company must follow-up with a for­
mal written revision. 

Please be advised, your company must cont[nue to maintain records of post-abatement air mon.itOTing results. LARA 
can and may request these post asbestos abatement monitoring results periodically. Please be reminded that any addi­
tional or new employees must be accredited before they engage in any asbestos abatement actlvltles. 

To apply for renewal of thls lic~nse, please· submit ·an: app1i.cadon no soo:oer than 90 days and no later t1lan 30 days ... - --­
··-.. before the lii;;ense expires. The Department must also be notified-of-any addtess or ownership changes. Project noti-

fications and questions regarding your license should be directed to the Michigan Depm'tmen.t of Licensing and Regu-
latory Affairs1 MlOSHA Asbestos Program, P.O. Box 30671, Lansing, Ml<:higan 48909, 517,284.7698. 

~-;,,J.;,~~-
.·, l~~ I'#~~: 

Michael T. '.Mason 
Indu:,trial Hygiene Manager 
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rTTV OF 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

Honorable Judge Cynthia Walker, Lynnette Ward, Court Administrator, Ashley 
Johnson, Managed Assigned Counsel Executive, Danielle Kelley, Plante 
Moran, Kiearha Davidson, HR Manager 

January 28, 2020 

Agenda Item: Michigan Indigent Defense Commission Fiscal Year 2020 

Grant Contract 

As discussed at the January 28, 2020 Law/50th District Court Subcommittee meeting, the 
City has been awarded a total authorized Budget of $1,052,015.00 for the MIDC Fiscal Year 
(FY20) which runs October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020. The State FY20 MIDC Grant 
Contribution is $594,911.22, the Local Share Contribution is $18,022.97, and the FY19 Prior 
Year Unspent Funds is $439,080.81. 

At this time we are seeking formal approval of the MIDC FY20 Grant Contract and budget. 
Attached to this memo and resolution is exhibit A, Fiscal Year 2020 Grant Contract. 

The 50th District Court Administrator, the Chief Judge, the Executive Staff, the City Council 
Law/50th District Court Subcommittee, and the MIDC based on the 50th District Court needs, 
have reviewed the MIDC FY20 Grant Contract. This grant contract only utilizes the funds 
provided under the grant. 

As such, the following resolution is respectfully recommended for City Council 
consideration: 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

The Michigan Indigent Defense Commission (MIDC) has the City of 
Pontiac grant funding in the amount of $594,911.22 for the period of 
October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020. 

The total program budget is $1,052,015.00, which includes the 
required local share contribution by the City of Pontiac in the amount 
of $18,022.97 and FY19 Prior Year Unspent Fund in the amount of 
$439,080.8. 

The FY2020 grant award is $1,052,015.00, more than the 
previous year's award. 

The award provides funding to the 50th District Court for the purpose 
of continuing to bring indigent defense systems into compliance with 



WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

the first four minimum indigent defense standards, MCL 780.993(6); 
and 
The· Michigan Indigent Defense Commission Act (MIDC Act), MCL 
780.981, et al., requires local funding units to take over the delivery 
of indigent defense systems, MCL 780.983(g) and MCL 780.993(10) 
as specified in standards 1 - 4. 

The City of Pontiac is the local funding unit for the 50th District 
Court. 

The MIDC Act requires the City of Pontiac to create an annual 
compliance plan and cost analysis required to deliver indigent 
defense services in compliance with the approved MIDC 
standards, MCL 780.993(3. 

The MIDC Act requires the MIDC to appropriate funds and 
provide grant monies to local funding units for the costs in excess 
of the local share to continue to provide indigent defense 
services that are in compliance with the minimum standards 
established by the MIDC, MCL 780.993(6). 

The grant award funds the following positions within 50th District 
Court: pne (1) MIDC Executive position, one (1) Contract MIDC 
Attorney Coordinator position, and two (2) part time MIDC Court 
Officers. 

The grant agreement has completed the grant review process in 
accordance with the Pontiac City Council Procedures. 

BE IT RESOLVED, The City Council approve·s the MIDC FY 2020 Grant Contract with an 
authorized total budget of $1,052,015.00. 



MICHIGAN INDIGENT 
DEFENSE COMMl IOf\l 

Dear Grantee: 

Attached is the fiscal year 2020 indigent defense grant contract for your local funding unit. If you 
are receiving this letter, the lviichigan Indigent Defense Commission (MIDC) has approved your 
plan and cost analysis for compliance with approved MIDC Standards. 

Fiscal Year 2020 Grant Contract 

Please read the grant contract carefully and share it with any person in your funding unit that may 
be responsible for implementation, compliance reporting, or financial reporting related to the grant. 
The grant contract contains important infonnation and dates regarding distribution of grant funds, 
compliance, and requirements for reporting. 

Once the grant contract is signed by the authorized signatory for the funding unit, please return the 
signed contract by email to LARA-I\HDC-Info@michigan.gov. You should include your 
Regional Manager on this email. The contract will be signed by MIDC and LARA and then 
entered into SIGMA for payment. You will receive a fully executed copy of the contract by email. 

Once the contract has been fully executed, the initial state grant disbursement will be processed 
for advance payment The state grant disbursement will be reduced by any reported FY 19 
unexpended state grant funds. 

This contract covers any spending occurring between October 1, 2019 and September 30, 2020 
that has been approved as part of the cost analysis. Please see Attachment B to the contract for the 
funding unit's approved budget. 

Grant Reporting and \Vebinars 

The first quarterly compliance and financial reports vvill be due .January 31, 2020. This report 
should reflect compliance and financial information for the period of October 1, 2019 through 
December 31, 2019. Please note that budget adjustment and substantial plan change requests 
should only he submilled with the quarterly reports. If you have questions about this, please 
contact your Regional Manager. 

The MIDC staff will host informational webinars regarding first quarter reporting in January 2020. 
Additional infonnation on the upcoming webinars will be available soon. 

Upcoming Commission Meetings 

The Commission's final meeting of the year will be December 17, 2019 at 200 N. Washington 
Square in downtown Lansing. The agenda and meeting packet will be posted on the Commission's 
website, www.michiganidc.gov, in advance of the meeting. We welcome you to attend the 

200 N. Washington Square, 3"' Floor, Lansing, ivlichigJn 48913 • www.michiganidc.gov • 517--657-3066 



meeting, which will begin at 11 :00 a.m. The Commission will publish the schedule for 2020 
meetings in December. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any feedback, or your Regional Manager if you 
have questions about implementation under the grant contract. We encourage you to continue to 
check our website, \VW\V.rnichimrnidc.Lrnv/grants, .. where you can find information regarding the 
time and location of the Commission's meetings, as well as other updated information. 

Sincerely, 

s/Loren Khogali 

Loren Khogali, Executive Director 
Michigan Indigent Defense Commission 
Phone: (517) 275-2845/Email: kho2alil(i2.imichi2aru23w 

200 N. Washington Square, J'd Floor, Lansing, Michigan 43913 • www.michiganidc.gov • 517-657-3066 



GRANT NO. 2020-15 

GRANT BETWEEN 
THE STATE OF MICHIGAN 

MICHIGAN INDIGENT DEFENSE COMMISSION (MIDC) 
DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS (LARA) 

AND 

GRANTEE/ADDRESS: 

Jane Bias-DiSessa 
Deputy Mayor/Finance Director 
47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiac, MI 48342 
248-758-3322 

GRANTOR/ADDRESS: 

City of Pontiac 

Michigan Indigent Defense Commission 
Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
200 N. Washington Square 
Lansing, MI 48933 
517-657-3060 
866-291-0874 

GRANT PERIOD: 

From October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020 

TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET: 

FY 20 State Grant Contribution: 
FY 20 Local Share Contribution: 
FY 19 Prior Year Unspent Funds: 

$1,052,015.00 

$594,911.22 
$18,022.97 
$439,080.81 

ACCOUNTING DETAIL: Accounting Template No.: 6411 l 13T032 

SIGMA Vendor Code: 0048137 

Rev. 10.15.19 1 



GRANT 

This is Grant # 2020-15 between the Michigan Indigent Defense Commission (MIDC) 
(Grantor), and the City of Pontiac (Grantee), subject to terms and conditions of this grant 
agreement (Agreement). 

1.0 Statement of Purpose 

The purpose of this Grant is to provide funding to assist the Grantee to comply with the 
Compliance Plan and Cost Analysis approved by the MIDC for the provision of indigent 
criminal defense services through the Standards approved by LARA on May 22, 2017, 
and the process described in the Michigan Indigent Defense Act.. The funding for this 
grant is contingent upon an appropriation by the legislature that is signed by the 
Governor. In the event a budget is not enacted by the effective date of the grant, the grant 
agreement will not be executed. 

1.1 Definitions 

A. Budget means a detailed statement of estimated costs consistent with the Grantee's 
approved Cost Analysis and required to implement the Compliance Plan. 

B. Budget Category means the aggregate of all funds in each of the high-level categories 
within Attachment B to the funding unit's grant budget. 

C. Compliance Plan is the plan submitted by the local funding unit and approved by the 
MIDC that specifically addresses how the Grantee shall meet the approved minimum 
standards established by the MIDC. 

D. Cost Analysis is a statement of the types of expenditures and funding necessary to bring 
Grantee's indigent defense system into compliance with the approved minimum 
standards established by the MIDC, including a statement of the funds in excess of the 
Grantee's local share as defined under the MIDC Act and as outlined in the Compliance 
Plan. 

E. MIDC Act means the Michigan Indigent Defense Commission Act, Public Act 93 of 
2013, MCL 780.991 et seq as amended, enacted for the purpose of creating the Michigan 
Indigent Defense Commission and creating minimum standards for the local delivery of 
indigent criminal defense services that meet the constitutional requirements for the 
effective assistance of counsel. 

F. MIDC means the Michigan Indigent Defense Commission. 

G. Subgrantee means a governmental agency or other legal entity to which an MIDC 
subgrant is awarded by the Grantee. Attorneys representing indigent defendants, 
including both public defenders and attorneys contracted to represent indigent 
defendants, public defender office employees, judges, magistrates, court personnel, and 
professional service contract vendors shall not be considered subgrantees. 

Rev. 10.15.19 2 



H. "Substantial Change" to a Compliance Plan is a change to the plan or cost analysis that 
alters the method of meeting the objectives of the standard(s) in the approved plan. 

1.2 Statement of Work 

The Grantee agrees to undertake, perform and complete the services described in its 
approved Compliance Plan and in accordance with the Michigan Indigent Defense Act, 
MCL 780.991et seq, specifically Standards 1 through 4. The Parties to this Agreement 
enter info this Agreement to facilitate the process described in the MIDC Act, which 
controls or supersedes any terms of this Agreement. Consistent with the Act and when 
applicable, an indigent criminal defense system shall comply with the terms of the grant 
in bringing its system into compliance with the minimum standards established by the 
MIDC within 180 days after receiving funds from the MIDC. Grantee may exceed 180 
days for compliance with a specific item needed to meet minimum standards as set forth 
in the Act. Grantee's Compliance Plan, as submitted and approved by the MIDC 
(Attachment A), addresses the prescribed methods the grantee has chosen to provide 
indigent criminal defense services pursuant to MCL 780.993(3). Any substantial changes 
to the work described in t4e Compliance Plan must be submitted to the MIDC for 
approval as set forth in this Agreement prior to any changes being implemented. All 
provisions and requirements of this Agreement shall apply to any agreements the Grantee 
may enter into in furtherance of its obligations under this Agreement and Grantee shall be 
responsible for the performance of any Subgrantee work, as defined in subsection I .1. 

1.3 Detailed Budget 

A This Agreement does not commit the State of Michigan (State) or the Department 
of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA) to approve requests for additional 
funds at any time. 

B. If applicable, travel expenses will not be reimbursed at rates greater than the State 
Travel Rates, Attachment C, without the prior written consent of the MIDC. 

C. Attachment B is the Budget. The Grantee agrees that all funds are to be spent as 
detailed in the Budget, unless a budget adjustment request is approved, in 
accordance with section 1.3(E). 

D. Grantee will maintain a restricted fund within their Local Chart of Accounts for 
the sole purpose of accounting for the expenses and revenue sources for operation 
of this grant and the local adult indigent defense system. 

E. All requests for a budget adjustment or substantial changes to the Grantee's 
Compliance Plan will be submitted quarterly with the Grantee's quarterly report. 
MIDC staff shall respond to a request in writing within 30 days of receipt. 

1) Budget adjustments less than or equal to 5% of the Budget Category total, 
including adjustments between Budget Categories, do not require approval 
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by MIDC staff, but must be reported quarterly in the next financial status 
report. 

2) A Budget adjustment involving greater than 5% of the aggregate of all 
funding within a Budget Category requires prior written approval by 
MIDC Staff and must be reported to the MIDC as soon after the Grantee is 
aware of the necessity of the Budget adjustment and reported in the 
Grantee's quarterly report. 

3) Any substantial change to a Compliance Plan requires prior approval by 
MIDC staff and MIDC Commission. 

1.4 Payment Schedule 

The maximum amount of grant assistance approved is $1,033,992.03. 

The Grantee must report and certify to Grantor by October 31st of each year the balance 
of any unexpended indigent defense grant funds from the prior fiscal year grant plus any interest 
earned on the advancement of the state grant funds in the previous fiscal year. Any funds from 
the previous fiscal year contained in an approved extension of the previous fiscal year's grant for 
projects that will be completed after September 30, 2019 will be carried over into the current 
fiscal year and shall not be considered unexpended funds, nor be included in the balance of 
unexpended funds. The current fiscal year indigent defense grant funds advanced will be reduced 
by the amount of unexpended funds from the prior fiscal year's grant. 

An initial advance of 50% of the State Grant shall be made to the Grantee upon receipt by 
the Grantor of a signed Agreement. The Granter shall make subsequent disbursements of 25% up 
to the total state grant amount in accordance with the following schedule: 

Initial Advance of 50% of the state grant - Within 15 days of receipt of executed 
agreement 
25% disbursement- May 15, 2020 
25% disbursement- August 14, 2020 (final payment). 

The above schedule of disbursement of funds is contingent after receipt of quarterly 
reporting as addressed in this section and section 1.5 of this document. The financial status report 
(FSR) report must be submitted on the form provided by the MIDC/LARA and indicate: 

Grant funds received to date; 
Expenditures for the reporting period by budget category; 
Cumulative expenditures to date by budget category; 

The quarterly FSR must be supported and accompanied by documentation of those grant 
funded expenditures incurred for the reporting period, including but not limited to: 

• The general ledger for the restricted local indigent defense fund, including a 
detailed expenditure report with all expenditure detail within the budget 
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categories, which must include documentation of payments to contract attorneys 
either by individual invoice or by report of payments made, by attorney; 

• All invoices related to experts and investigators; 
• All invoices related to construction; 
• Personnel detail including full-time equivalency of any grant funded positions, 

including total compensation for that position; 

Upon request, the Grantee shall provide the MIDC with additional 
documentation/verification of expenditures under the grant within 30 days of the making of the 
request. Documentation of expenditures shall be maintained according to record retention 
policies for audit purposes in order to comply with this Agreement. Grantee will be held to the 
full contribution of the Local Share within the original one-year grant period. 

The quarterly FSR as provided in Attachment D and standards compliance report as 
addressed in Section 1.5, .shall be provided in accordance with the following schedule: 

Initial FSR and compliance report for 10/1/19-12/31/19 - - January 31, 2020 
2nd FSR and compliance report for 1/1/20-3/31/20 -April 30, 2020 
3rd FSR and compliance report for 4/1/20-6/30/20 - July 31, 2020 
Final FSR and compliance report for 7 /1/20-9/30/20 - October 31,2020 

1.5 Monitoring and Reporting Program Performance 

A. Monitoring. The Grantee shall monitor performance to assure that time 
schedules are being met and projected work is being accomplished. 

B. Quarterly Reports. The Grantee shall submit to the Grantor quarterly progress 
reports on compliance with the Standards and participate in follow up and evaluation 
activities. Compliance reports include narrative responses containing a description of the 
Grantee's compliance with standards 1-4, identifying problems or delays, actual, real or 
anticipated and any significant deviation from the approved Compliance Plan. The 
grantee will use its best efforts to provide data relevant to assessing compliance as 
contained in the compliance reporting template requested by MIDC. · If Grantee is unable 
to provide the information requested on the template, Grantee will demonstrate in writing 
the steps taken to assess what information is currently available and how to retrieve 
it. Grantee also agrees to work with MIDC Research staff to seek additional options or 
ideas for the collection and retrieval of this information. 
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PART II - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2.1 Project Changes 

Grantee must obtain prior written approval for substantial changes to the compliance plan 
from the Grantor. 

2.2 Delegation 

Grantee must notify the MIDC at least 90 calendar days before the proposed delegation 
with reasonable detail of subgrantee and the nature and scope of the activities delegated. If any 
obligations under this grant are delegated, Grantee must: (a) be the sole point of contact 
regarding all contractual project matters, including payment and charges for all Grant activities; 
(b) make all payments to the sub grantee; and ( c) incorporate the terms and conditions contained 
in this Grant in any subgrant with a subgrantee. Grantee remains responsible for the completion 
of the Grant activities and compliance with the terms of this Grant. 

2.3 Program Income 

To the extent that it can be determined that interest was earned on advances of funds, such 
interest shall be recorded in the Grantee's restricted Indigent Defense fund and included in the quarterly 
FSRs. The grant award shall not be increased by the amount of interest earned. Any grant funds 
attributable to interest and not spent at the end of the grant period shall be returned to the State or 
included in future grant awards from the MIDC consistent with MCL 780.993(15), as amended 
12/23/18. 

2.4 Share-in-savings 

The Gran tor expects to share in any cost savings realized by the Grantee in proportion of the 
grant funds to the local share. 

2.5 Purchase of Equipment 

The purchase of equipment must be made pursuant to the Grantee's established purchasing 
policy and if not specifically listed in the Budget, Attachment B, must have prior written approval 
of the Grantor. Equipment is defined as non-expendable personal property having a useful life of 
more than one year. Such equipment shall be retained by the Grantee unless otherwise specified 
at the time of approval. 

2.6 Accounting 

The Grantee must establish and maintain a restricted indigent defense fund in their local 
chart of accounts to record all transactions related to the indigent defense grant. The restricted 
fund will not lapse to the local general fund at the close of the Grantee's fiscal year. The Grantee 
shall adhere to the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and shall maintain records which 
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will allow, at a minimum, for the comparison of actual outlays with budgeted amounts. The 
Grantee's overall financial management system must ensure effective control over and 
accountability for all indigent defense funds received. Accounting records must be supported by 
source documentation of expenditures including, but not limited to, balance sheets, general 
ledgers, payroll documents, time sheets and invoices. The expenditure of state funds shall be 
reported by line item and compared to the Budget. 

2. 7 Records Maintenance, Inspection, Examination, and Audit 

The State or its designee may audit the Grantee and the restricted indigent defense fund 
account to verify compliance with this Grant. Grantee must retain, and provide to the State or its 
designee upon request, all financial and accounting records related to the Grant through the term 
of the Grant and for 7 years after the latter of termination, expiration, or final payment under this 
Grant or any extension ("Audit Period"). If an audit, litigation, or other action involving the 
records is initiated before the end of the Audit Period, Grantee must retain the records until all 
issues are resolved. 

Within 10 calendar days of providing notice, the State and its authorized representatives or 
designees have the right to enter and inspect Grantee's premises or any other places where Grant 
activities are being performed, and examine, copy, and audit all records related to this Grant. 
Grantee must co·operate and provide reasonable assistance. If any financial errors have occurred, 
the amount in error must be reflected as a credit or debit on subsequent disbursements until the 
amount is paid or refunded. Any remaining balance must be reported by the Grantee to the 
Grantor by October 31 of each year as required under the MIDC Act. 

This Section applies to Grantee, any parent, affiliate, or subsidiary organization of Grantee, and 
any subgrantee that performs Grant activities in connection with this Grant. 

If the Grantee is a governmental or non~profit organization and expends the minimum level 
specified in 0MB Uniform Guidance ($750,000 as of December 26, 2013) or more in total 
federal funds in its fiscal year, then Grantee is required to submit an Audit Report to the Federal 
Audit Clearinghouse (F AC) as required in 200.36. 

2.8 Competitive Bidding 

The Grantee agrees that all procurement transactions involving the use of state funds 
shall be conducted in a manner that provides maximum open and free competition, consistent 
with Grantee's purchasing policies. Sole source contracts should be negotiated to the extent that 
such negotiation is possible. Attorney contracts, including managed assigned counsel contracts 
for representation of indigent or partially indigent defendants, are exempt from a competitive bid 
process, but must meet standard internal procurement policies, as applicable. 
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3.0 Liability 

The State is not liable for any costs incurred by the Grantee before the start date or after 
the end date of this Agreement. Liability of the State is limited to the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement and the total grant amount. 

3.1 Safety 

The Grantee, and all subgrantees are responsible for ensuring that all precautions are 
exercised at all times for the protection of persons and property. Safety provisions of all 
Applicable Laws and building and construction codes shall be observed. The Grantee, and every 
subgrantee are responsible for compliance with all federal, state and local laws and regulations in 
any manner affecting the work or performance of this Agreement and shall at all times carefully 
observe and comply with all rules, ordinances, and regulations. The Grantee, and all subgrantees 
shall secure all necessary certificates and permits from municipal or other public authorities as 
may be required in connection with the performance of this Agreement. 

3.2 Indemnification 

Each party to this grant must seek its own legal representation and bear its own legal 
costs; including judgments, in any litigation which may arise from the performance of this Grant 
and/or Agreement. It is specifically understood and agreed that neither party will indemnify the 
other party in any such litigation. 

3.3 Failure to Comply and Termination 

A. Failure to comply with duties and obligations under the grant program as set forth 
in Public Act 93 of 2013, as amended, is subject to the procedures contained in 
sections 15 and 17 of said Act. 

B. Termination for Convenience 

Rev. 10.15.19 

The State may immediately terminate this Grant in whole or in part without 
penalty and for any reason, including but not limited to, appropriation or budget 
shortfalls. If the State terminates this Grant for convenience, the State will pay all 
reasonable costs, for State approved Grant responsibilities. If parties cannot agree 
to the cost to be paid by the State, the parties shall attempt to resolve the dispute 
by mediation pursuant to MCL 780.995. The Grantee's duty to comply with 
MIDC standards is limited to funding covering the cost of compliance as set forth 
in section 17 of Public Act 93 of 2013, as amended. 
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3.4 Conflicts and Ethics 

Grantee will uphold high ethical standards and is prohibited from: (a) holding or 
acquiring an interest that would conflict with this Grant; (b) doing anything that creates an 
appearance of impropriety with respect to the award or performance of the Grant; ( c) attempting 
to influence or appearing to influence any State employee by the direct or indirect offer of 
anything of value; or ( d) paying or agreeing to pay any person, other than employees and 
consultants working for Grantee, any consideration contingent upon the award of the Grant. 
Grantee must immediately notify the State of any violation or potential violation of this Section. 
This Section applies to Grantee, any parent, affiliate, or subsidiary organization of Grantee, and 
any subgrantee that performs Grant activities in connection with this Grant. 

3.5 Non-Discrimination 

Under the Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 453, MCL 37.2101 to 37.2804, and 
the Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 220, MCL 37.1101, et seq., Grantee and 
its subgrantees agree not to discriminate against an employee or applicant for employment with 
respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or 
indirectly related to employment, because ofrace, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, 
weight, marital status, partisan considerations, or a disability or genetic information that is 
unrelated to the person's ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position. Breach of 
this covenant is a material breach of this Grant. 

3.6 Unfair Labor Practices 

Under MCL 423.324, the State may void any Grant with a Grantee or subgrantee who 
appears on the Unfair Labor Practice register compiled under MCL 423.322. 

3. 7 Force Majeure 

Neither party will be in breach of this Grant because of any failure arising from any 
disaster or acts of god that are beyond their control and without their fault or negligence. Each 
party will use commercially reasonable efforts to resume performance. Grantee will not be 
relieved of a breach or delay caused by its subgrantees except where the Commission determines 
that an unforeseeable condition prohibits timely compliance pursuant to MCL 780.993, Sec. 
13(11). 

4.0 Certification Regarding Debarment 

The Grantee certifies, by signature to this Agreement, that neither it nor its principals are 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this Agreement by any federal or State department or agency. If 
the Grantee is unable to certify to any portion of this statement, the Grantee shall attach an 
explanation to this Agreement. 
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4.1 Illegal Influence 

The Grantee certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that: 

A. No federal appropriated funds have been paid nor will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the Grantee, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of 
any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal 
contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement. 

B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a member of Congress in connection with this grant, the Grantee 
shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 

C. the Grantee shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 
award documents for all grants or subcontracts and that all subrecipients shall 
certify and disclose accordingly. 

The State has relied upon this certification as a material representation. Submission of this 
certification is a prerequisite for entering into this Agreement imposed by 31 USC § 1352. Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

The Grantee certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that no state funds have been 
paid nor will be paid, by or on behalf of the Grantee, to any person for influencing or attempting 
to influence an officer or employee of any State agency, a member of the Legislature, or an 
employee of a member of the Legislature in connection with the awarding of any state contract, 
the making of any state grant, the making of any state loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any state 
contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement. 

4.2 Governing Law 

This Grant is governed, construed, and enforced in accordance with Michigan law, 
excluding choice-of-law principles, and all claims relating to or arising out of this Grant are 
governed by Michigan law, excluding choice-of-law principles. Any dispute arising from this 
Grant must be resolved as outlined in Sec. 15 of P A93 of 2013, as amended. 
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4.3 Disclosure of Litigation, or Other Proceeding 

Grantee must notify the State within 14 calendar days of receiving notice of any 
litigation, investigation, arbitration, or other proceeding (collectively, "Proceeding") that arises 
during the term of the Grant against a public defender office, an attorney employed by a public 
defender office, or an attorney contracted to perform indigent defense :functions funded by the 
Grantee that involves: (a) a criminal Proceeding; (b) a civil Proceeding involving a claim that, 
after consideration of Grantee's insurance coverages, would adversely affect Grantee's viability; 
(c) a civil Proceeding involving a governmental or public entity's claim or written allegation of 
fraud related to performance of the Grant; or ( d) a Proceeding challenging any license that an 
attorney practicing on behalf of a public defender office or an attorney practicing pursuant to a 
contract to perform indigent defense functions for the Grantee is required to possess in order to 
perform under this Grant. 

4.4 As~ignment 

. Grantee may not assign this Grant to any other party without the prior approval of the 
State. Upon notice to Grantee, the State, in its sole discretion, may assign in whole or in part, its 
rights or responsibilities under this Grant to any other party. If the State determines that a 
novation of the Grant to a third party is necessary, Grantee will agree to the novation, provide all 
necessary documentation and signatures, and continue to perform, with the third party, its 
obligations under the Grant. 

4.5 Entire Grant and Modification 

This Grant is the entire agreement and replaces all previous agreements between the 
parties for the Grant activities. Pursuant to the MIDC Act, the MIDC shall promulgate policies 
necessary to carry out its powers and duties. The MIDC may also provide guides, instructions, 
informational pamphlets for the purpose of providing guidance and information with regard to 
the Grant and MIDC policies. This Grant Agreement supersedes all terms of MIDC policies, 
guides, instructions, informational pamphlets and any other explanatory material that is in 
conflict with the Grant Agreement. This Grant may not be amended except by a signed written 
agreement between the parties. 

4.6 Grantee Relationship 

Grantee assumes all rights, obligations and liabilities set forth in this Grant. Grantee, its 
employees, and agents will not be considered employees of the State. No partnership or joint 
venture relationship is created by virtue of this Grant. Grantee, and not the State, is responsible 
for the payment of wages, benefits and taxes of Grantee's employees. Prior performance does not 
modify Grantee's status as an independent Grantee. 

4. 7 Dispute Resolution 

The parties will endeavor to resolve any Grant dispute in accordance with section 15 of 
Public Act 93 of 2013. The dispute will be referred to the parties' respective representatives or 
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program managers. Such referral must include a description of the issues and all supporting 
documentation. The parties will continue performing while a dispute is being resolved, unless the 
dispute precludes performance or performance would require Grantee to spend in excess of its 
local share as defined by MCL 780.983(h). 

5.0 Severability 

If any part of this Grant is held invalid or unenforceable, by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, that part will be deemed deleted from this Grant and the severed part will be 
replaced by agreed upon language that achieves the same or similar objectives. The remaining 
Grant will continue in full force and effect. 

5.1 Signatories 

The signatories warrant that they are empowered to enter into this Agreement and agree 
to be bound by it. 

LeAnn Droste, Director 
Bureau of Finance and Administrative Services 
Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
State of Michigan 

Loren Khogali, Executive Director 
Michigan Indigent Defense Commission 
Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
State of Michigan 

Jane Bias-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor/Finance Director 
City of Pontiac 

GRANT NO. 2020-15 

Rev.10.15.19 

Date 

Date 

Date 
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MIDC FY20 COMPLIANCE PLAN AND COST ANALYSIS RENEWAL 

An Indigent crlmlnal defense system may submit to the MIDC an estimate of the cost of developing a plan and cost analysis 
for implementing the plan under MCL 780.993(2). Please attach documentation of planning time for FY20, if seeking 
reimbursement under this provision. · 

Are you submitting a worksheet for planning costs? • Yes I X No 

If yes, do you have receipts showing that non-funding unit employees have been paid? 

• Yes ID No 

Funding Unit/System Name: 

050 Pontiac 

Submitted By (include name, title, email address and phone number): 

Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor, ibais-disessa@pontiac.mi.us, 248-758-3322 

Please Note: Per MCL 780.983(i}, the Local Share for your indigent defense system for FY .,.. 

2020 will be indexed by 3% or the recent Urban Consumer Price Index (CPI), whichever is 
less. CPI for the most recent period is 2.2%; FY2020 ·requests should include Local Share 
funding enhanced by this factor. 

Any change or corrections to your baseline local share calculation from FY19? 

X Yes I • No 

If yes, please explain: 

Local Share amount was increased based on the CPI index as suggested by MIDC 

Please submit all documents via email to lnfo@mlchlganldc.gov no later than April 30, 2019 
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MIOC FY20 COMPLIANCE PLAN AND COST ANALYSIS RENEWAL 

✓ Have you attached your FY20 cost analysis? X Yes I • No 

✓ Did you submit a list of the attorneys p~oviding services? X Yes I D No 

✓ If applicable, did you attach documentation supporting reimbursement for 

compliance planning? • Yes I X No 

✓ Have you attached your revised local share certification (with CPI increase)? 

D Yes IX No 

✓ If you have developed any local policies for implementing the MIDC's Standards, 

. please attach to this application. 

Training of Attorneys 

Number of attorneys as of October 1, 2019---'3=5'---------------

Number of attorneys with less than 2 years of Michigan criminal defense experience as 
of October 1, 2019 ____ 5 ________________ _ 

Any changes in your training plan from FY19? • Yes I • No 

If yes, please describe: 

Each attorney must attend a mandatory training session put on by the MACC and MACE 

that details the new standards as well as teaching what is required and expected. 

Any changes in your funding needs.from FY19 for this standard? D Yes I X No 

If yes, please describe: 

Page 2 
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MIDC FV20 COMPLIANCE PLAN AND COST ANALYSIS RENEWAL 

Initial Attorney meetings 

How and when are defense attorneys notified of new assignments? 

Defense attorneys are notified o·f new assignments by the MACC or the MAC Executive. 

We provide the attorney with the defendants contact information via email or 

phone. We also fax or email the defense attorney a copy of the request. From that 

document the attorneys have the case number and contact information so that they can 

meet/speak to the defendant prior to court. 

How are you verifying that in-custody attorney visits occur within three business days? 

Defense attorneys are required to submit invoices that detail there communications and 

for inwcustody defendants we require a stamped jail card with the date and time of their 

visit. 

How are you verifying introductory communicatio.ns from the attorney with defendants 
who are not in custody? 

Attorneys are required to submit invoices that document all·of their communications 

with defendants. From there we are able to verify introductory communications. 

How are you compensating attorneys for this standard? Please provide details: 

Attorneys are compensated at $80 hour, $40 for initial Interview, $75 for jail visits. 

Page3 
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MIDC FY20 COMPLIANCE PLAN ANO COST ANALYSIS RENEWAL 

Any change in the initial interview.procedure from your FY19 plan? D Yes I X No 

If yes, please explain: 

Any change from your FY19 funding needs for initial interviews? D Yes I X No 

If yes, please explain: 

Confidential Meeting Spaces 

Are there confidential meeting spaces in the jail? X Yes I D No 

Please explain or describe: 

Yes, there are confidential meeting spaces at the Oakland County jail. 

Are there confidential meeting spaces in the courthouse for in-custody and out-of-court 
clients? X Yes I D No 

Please explain or describe: 

Construction has not yet begun, but we have temporary confidential meeting spaces for 

both in-custody and out of custody clients equipped with safety modifications and white 

noise machines. 

Any change from the FY19 plan for meeting spaces? D Yes IX No 

Please explain or describe: 

Please submit all documents via em all to lnfo@mlchlganldc.gov no later than Aprli' 30, 2019 
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MIOC FY20 COMPLIANCE PLAN AND COST ANALYSIS RENEWAL 

Any change in FY19 funding needs for meeting spaces? X Yes I ·• No 

Please explain or describe: 

We are planning to add sound proofing to two of the consultation rooms on the second 

floor, This was not in our original scope. The additional dollars needed are between 

$15,000 and $20,000. 

If you had construction for meeting spaces in your FY19 plan, please provide an update 
on the construction project: 

·' 

The construction project was bid in April of 2019 and we are currently reviewing bids. 
Construction is set to start in mid to late May.. 

Experts and Investigators 

Do you have a written policy for requesting experts or investigators? • Yes I X N0 

If yes, please explain or attach: 

In the mandatory training session we advised about the availability of experts or 

investigators we detailed the process of contacting the MACC when a case arises where 

the defense would benefit from the use of an expert or investigator. We have a working 

list that we can offer if the attorney needs some direction .. 

Any change In the process from FY19? • Yes I X No 

If yes, please explain: 

Please submit all documents via em.all to lnfo@mlchlganldc.gov no later than April 30, 2019 
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MIDC FY20 COMPLIANCE-PLAN AND COST ANALYSIS RENEWAL 

Any change in your funding needs for Standard 3 from FY19? • Yes.I X No 

If yes, please explain: 

Counsel at First Appearance and Other Critical Stages 

How are you providing counsel at first appearance and other critical stages? Please 
provide details-: 

We have established a sign up through sign up genius. From there, attorneys are able to 

choose either house counsel or arraignment counsel slots for the morning and 

afternoon. We ensure that we have house counsel and arraignment attorney's for each 

docket based around the judge's schedule. 

Are there any misdemeanor cases where your court accepts pleas without the 
defendant appearing before a magistrate or a judge? For example, pleas by mail, over 
the counter pleas, etc. • Yes I X No 

If yes, please provide details: 

How are you calculating compensation for this standard? Please provide details: 

The attorneys are compensated at a rate of $80 per hour with each attorney averaging· 

three hours per docket. 

Will there be any change in this process from FY19? • Yes I X No 

If yes, _please explain:. 

Please submit all documents via emall to lnfo@mlchlganldc.gov no later than April 30, 2019 
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MIDC FY20 COMPLIANCE PLAN AND COST ANALYSIS RENEWAL 

Any change in how you are paying attorneys for this standard from FY19? 0 Yes I X No 

If yes, please explain: 

Will there be any change in your funding needs for this standard from FY19? 
X Yes I D No 

If yes, please explain: 

Yes, in our b.udget for 2020 we have requested an increase of pay for attorneys at $~00 

per hour in replace of the $80 per hour. We have increased our funding need for our 

Oakland County Jail arraignments based on ·Malcolm Browns projections. The charge for 

each arraignment being imposed by Oakland County will be $77,00 per arraignment. 

Please see attached Exhibit A, a spreadsheet showing the calculation of the per 

arraignment costs for the video arraignments from the Oakland County Jail. Also set 

forth on the spreadsheet is the number of Oakland County Jail arraignments the 50th 

District Court had in 2018. 

Any personnel positions/hours eliminated or reduced from FY19? X Yes I D No 

If yes, please explain: 

The Clerk position was r~moved and replaced with the following changes The Managed 

Assigned Counsel would be an independent contractor to be paid $62.50 per hour for no 

less than 15 hours per week, for a total of $45,000/year. The Managed Assigned Counsel 

Executive Assistant would be deemed a City of Pontiac employee housed at the 50th 

District Court to be paid $33,33/ hour for 40 hours per week, for a total of $65,000/year. 

The two part-time Court Officers are to be paid $18.02/ for up to 1500 hours per year, 

for a total of up to $27,174.16/year. In our qriginal plan the court.officers were full time. 
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MIDC FY20 COMPLIANCE PLAN AND COST ANALYSIS RENEWAL 

Any additional positions/hours ·requested from FY19? D Yes I X No 

If yes, please explain: 

Should we discuss any overtime? 

Any change in fringe benefits from FY19? X Yes I • No 

If yes, please explain: 

All of the fringe benefits were removed. The MAC Executive waived the fringe benefits 

and the court officers are both part time positions. 

Please list any supplies or equipment requested, and a brief explanation of need or use 

in FY20. 

Computer and fax machine/printer/scanner for the Managed Assigned Counsel 

Executive As.sistances office. Laptop, remote hard drive, and scanner/printer for the 

Managed Assigned Counsel Coordinator. 
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Indigent Defense System Cost Analysis 
Grant Year October 1, 2019 - September 2020 

Funding Unit Name (s) 

Personnel 

John,or., Ashley G, 

Vacam 
Vilca.nt 

cat(!gory Summary 

Manaccd Assigned Coun::.el Executive 

MtDC CotJrt Of:fk:¢r 1 

MIDC Coort Officer 2 

Calculation hours and rate 

20SO hours. 

1300 hou-rs {SlS.02 x 25 hc.;rs p,c: week} 

1300 hours (SlS.02 x: 25 hours p(!.rwecl<) 

Total 

€5,000,00 

111,S52,00 

State Grant 

46,977,03 

23/U6.CO 

23,426-CO 

93,829,03 

Local Share 

18,022,97 

18,022.97 

r>cr.s:onnd Jusifico:ticn ~ list all positions to be fun-Ced by the g.r.ir.t budget { state g:nw:t/!ocal sh.ire). Please• highlieht all po:sltlcns ~hat arc nev.i p~rs.onnel teq:wcsts for FY2020and provide justifrc;;i.tlon for r,ecd. 

Number based on 1300 hours per year (for court <:1fficers} 

Fringe Benefits 

John$on, Ashley G. 
Vacant 

Viltar,t 

C>tegory Summary 

Fringe Bencfo:s Justification 

Contractual 

Percentage 

Manar,e:d Assigned Coun:s.et Executive 
MIDCCouitOfficerl 

MH)C Ccurt Cfficer 2 

0.00% 

catcufatlon hours and rate 

Amount 

10,133.SO 

3,652,11 

3,652,11 

17.438,00 

Total 

State Grant 

10,133,SO 

3,652.":.1 

3.€52.11 

17,438.00 

State Grant 

Local Share 

0,00 

Local Share 

other Funding 
sources 

0,00 

Sources 

0,00 

Other Funding 
Souices 

Total 

65,000,00 

23,426.00 

23,426.CO 

0.00 

111,SS2,00 

Total 

10,133,50 

3)i52.11 

3,652.:.1 

17,438,00 

Total 



C.tegorySommary 

Ci\C: Rotation Standard 4: CAFA 

Initial Oicnt Vls.lts. (400visi!s per yr) 

CAC: Other Critical Stages. 1250 

House counsel 

Current System Costs 

11 attorneys "' $300 ... 52 wk/}'r 

1:250 total hrs"" $100/hr 

11 nttorncys .... $lG0/.:itty'"3"' 52 w't./yr 

171,6CO.CD 

40,C0:l.CO 

:2s,oc::>.oo 
171,6CO.CO 

40,CC·J.CO 

54S~200.00 

171,€CD.OO 

<o.roo.co ~0,0~0.0~ 
125,C00.03 125,000.00 
171,600.00 

40,CCO.OD 40,000,CO 

S4S,200,00 0.00 0.00 $4.8,200.00 

ConnactAttornl:!'{ Justific:ation ~ list all possible rate !.cer:adcdor attomev contracts that .:tpply {Le. hoi..rlt', c:v1:mt ba$cd, annual ::ontract. paid monthly} and thl'.! type work whether r:,-er,eraH~· ltd.Igent defon:.e or specific like counsel at first ;ipp.c3ranc~. Please• 
higMight rates or 4ttorney l!ne- requests that are a ::hang,e from your FY19 approved contract and contract rates. 

Contmctsfor Experts and 
Investigators 

Category Summaty 

. Services Provided 

Experts @ MiDC rates 
lnvc-stigators 

Calculation hours and rate 

This h at MIOC rates 

$75/hr:x30hrs 

Total 

:,.coo.co 
2,250.00 

1$,250.CO 

State Grant 

13,CCO.C:J 

2,250,00 

15,250.CO 

Local Share 

o.oo 

Other Funding 
Sources 

0.00 

Total 

13,000.C'O 

15,250.00 

Experts it.nd lnvcst!cators.Justifk.ition- Prcvicie-explanatlon-and ju.stifk:3tloo if there am chane;e:o; to th~ requested .amountt for experts and invc.s.tig,1tors from the FYlS .-pproved contr.act alco.c with an t!xptanation if requesting to adjust the rutes from your FY19's; 
.approved contract rates. 

Contracts fotC:oilstructlon 
Projects 

Categ:of'/ S~mmary 

Se.rvices Provided Calculation Total 

0.00 

State Grant Local Share 

0.00 0.00 

0the~ Funding 
Sources Total 

O.Cll 

Construction Project Ju!itif.c:atkm #Provide.as mueh (fot<1il .as possible forthe requested c:ontructicn ptoject !dcnt1f-,,ir:g the need forth<? constr<Jctio.r. project, the componen! i.:c,s::s if possfl':,lc, wh~ther Jn esttm,He or if you \Vere provided a documented .quote. Att:aeh 
a separ.:ite <:locumcnt if needed. Pleaso attach the quote to the submission of the ap;::dlc.ation. 

Other Funding 
Contracts Other Services Provided Calulation Total State Grant Local Share Sources Total 

00 .Jrr:iig:nm(U1ts 312,775.00 312,775J)O 312,775,CO 
Subccnua,:c.d mana_ged .assiv~eti ecuncH $100 hr .:s,coo.oo ,s,c:c.oo 45,0~0.00 

category Sum~ty 357.77S.OO 357,775.00 0.00 0.00 $57,775.00 

Contr:a-ct.S Other Justlfit..)tion • Provide just-ification for :ii!I other contract costs .assoi::li'!tcri with the local indigent defense :s:vstcm with a• hr,ehlight to new request for fY20. 



Calculation Total State Grant 

Category Summary 0.00 0.00 

Calculation Total State Grant 

Oakbnd County pfa.i 

category Summary 0.00 0.00 

Sul)plies/Services Vendor Calculation Total State Grant 

Offic.e Supplies 1,500.00 1,500.00 

Category Summary 1,500,00 jpOO.CO 

Supplicj Junlftcatfon ~ ?rc>vicle justification for supplies: requests ~nd •hfghlig;ht ne:w or changed rr.:!qucst.s fer FY20. 

Sudg(!tTOt,jf 1,052,015.00 1,033,992.03 

Local Share 

0.00 

Local Share 

0,00 

Local Share 

0.00 

lS,0'2.97 

Other J=uridiilg 
sources 

0.00 

Other Funding 
Sources 

0.00 

Other F'tmdlng 
Sources 

0.00 

o.oo 

Total 

0.00 

0.00 

Total 

0.00 

Total 

1,500.CC 

1,500,00 

1,052,01$,00 



DEPARTMENT OF TECHNOLOGY. MANAGEMENT & BUDGET 
VEHICLE AND TRAVEL SERVICES (VTS) 

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL RA TES FOR CLASSIFIED AND UNCLASSIFIED 
EMPLOYEES 

Effective October 1, 2019 

Lodging** 
Breakfast 
Lunch 
Dinner 

Individual 
$85.00 
$10.25 
$10.25 
$24.25 

MICHIGAN IN-STATE ALL OTHER 

Lodging** 
Individual 

$85.00 
Breakfast 
Lunch 
Dinner 
Per Diem 

Lodging 
Breakfast 
Lunch 
Dinner 

$ 8.50 
$ 8.50 
$19.00 

$87.00 
$51.00 
$ 8.50 
$ 8.50 
$19.00 

OUT-QF-SJATE SELECTCITlES * 

Lodging** 
Breakfast 
Lunch 
Dinner 

OUT-OF-STATE ALL OTHER 

Individual 
Contact Conlin Travel 

$13.00 
$13.00 
$25.25 

Individual 
Lodging** Contact Conlin Travel 
Breakfast $10.25 
Lunch $10.25 
Dinner $23.50 
Per Diem $97 .00 

Lodging $51.00 
Breakfast $10.25 
Lunch $10.25 
Dinner $23.50 

Incidental Costs (per overnight stay) $5.00 

Group Meeting pre-arranged and. approved 
$85.00 
$13.25 
$13.25 
$27.25 

Group Meeting pre-arranged and approved 
$85.00 
$11.50 
$11.50 
$22.00 

Group Meeting pro-arranged and approved 
Contact Conlin Travel 

$16.00 
$16.00 
$28.25 

Group Meeting pro-arranged and approved 
Contact Conlin Travel 

$13.25 
$13.25 
$26.50 

Mileage Rates 
Premium Rate 
Standard Rate 

$0.580 per mile 
$0.340 per mile 

*See Select High Cost City Listing 
**Lodging available at State Rate, or call Conlin Travel at 877-654-2179 or www.somtravel.com 



DEPARTMENT OF TECHNOLOGY, MANAGEMENT & BUDGET 
VEHICLE AND TRAVEL SERVICES (VTS) 

SELECT HIGH COST CITY LIST 
TRAVEL RATE REIMBURSEMENT FOR CLASSIFIED and UNCLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES EFFECTIVE 

October 1, 2019 

Michigan Select Cities / Counties 
Cities Counties 

Ann Arbor, Auburn Hills, Detroit, Grand Rapids, Grand Traverse 
Holland, Leland, Mackinac Island, Petoskey, Oakland 
Pontiac, South Haven, Traverse City Wayne 

Out of State Select Cities / Counties 

State City / County State City/ County 

Arizona Phoenix, Scottsdale, Sedona Maryland Baltimore City, Ocean City (Counties of 
Montgomery & Prince Georges) 

California Los Angeles (Counties Los Angeles, 
Orange, Mendocino & Ventura) Massachusetts-Boston (Suffolk County), Burlington 
Edwards AFB, Arcata, Cambridge, Woodburn Martha's 
McKinleyville, Mammoth Lakes, Vineyard 
Mill Valley, San Rafael, Novato, 
Monterey, Palm Springs, San Diego, Minnesota Duluth, Minneapolis/St. Paul (Hennepin 
San Francisco, Santa Barbara, Santa and Ramsey Counties) 
Monica, South Lake Tahoe, 
Truckee, Yosemite National Park Nevada Las Vegas 

Colorado Aspen, Breckenridge, Grand Lake, New Mexico Santa Fe 
Silverthorne, Steamboat Springs, 
Telluride, Vail New York Lake Placid, Manhattan (boroughs of 

Manhattan, Brooklyn, Bronx, Queens 
Connecticut Bridgeport, Danbury and Staten Island), Melville, New 

Rochelle, Riverhead, (Suffolk County), 
DC Washington DC, Alexandria, Falls Ronkonkoma, Tarrytown, White Plaines 

Church, Fairfax (Counties of 
Arlington & Fairfax in Virginia) Ohio Cincinnati 
(Counties of Montgomery & Prince 
George's in Maryland) Pennsylvania (Bucks County) Pittsburgh 

Florida Boca Raton, Delray Beach, Fort Rhode Island Bristol, Jamestown, Middletown, 
Lauderdale, Jupiter, Key West Newport (Newport County), Providence 

Georgia Brunswick, Jekyll Island Texas Austin, Dallas, Houston, LB Johnson 
Space Center 

Idaho Ketchum, Sun Valley 
Utah Park City (Summit County) 

Illinois Chicago (Cook & Lake Counties) 
Vermont Manchester, Montpelier, Stowe 

Kentucky Kenton (Lamoile County) 

Louisiana New Orleans Virginia Alexandria, Falls Church, Fairfax 

Maine Bar Harbor, Kennebunk, Kittery, Washington Port Angeles, Port Townsend, Seattle 
Rockport, Sanford 

Wyoming Jackson, Pinedale 



1. Name and Address of Grantee 

8. Cost Categories 

a. Exoendltures this Reoort Period 
b. Local Share 

c. State Grant 

d. Total Exoendltures to date 
e. Local Share Exoenditures to date 

f State Grant Expenditures to date 

9. State Grant Advancements 

a. Received this reoortino oeriod 
b. Received to date 

Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
Michigan Indigent Defense Commission 

FINANCIAL STATUS REPORT 

2. Funding Unit(s) 3. Grant Number 

5. Current Report Period 6. Final Report 
From: To: YES 

Contracts · 

Salaries Contract !Experts 
Fringes Attorneys Investigators Construction 

so.co: $0.001 $0.001 $0.001 
0.001 0.001 o.oo: 0.001 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

' ' ' i l ' ' ' ' 
0.001 o.oo: o.oo: 0.00 
o.oo! 0.00: o.ooi o.oo! 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

10. Remarks 11. Certification: I certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief this report is 
correct and complete and that all expenditures are for the purposes set forth in the 
approved compliance plan and consistent with the grant contract and attachments. 

authorizing signature date 

position email/phone contact 

4. Grant/Contract Period 

From: To: 

7. Total Grant Amount 
NO State Grant 

Local Share 

Other Equipment 
!Travel 
Training 

'Supplies 
Services !Total 

$0.001 $0.001 $0.001 $0.00: 0.00 
o.oo: 0.001 o.oo: o.oo: 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

' ' ! ' ' ' I ' ' o.oo: o.oo: o.oo: o.oo: 0.00 
o.oo! o.oo! o.oo! o.oo: 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1_2. MIDC Approval -- .. 
- . - .. 

--
Grant Mahager'i(Sigliature , · - · · Date 1.,:•.•' .. , .. _ 

_ .... , .. .,_ 

' ' ' ~ . --
- -· 

- ' 
- --. - --

State· Office Admin .. Signature Date --. . . . ·. . .. 
- - -- --





INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

This Agreement (the "Agreement") is made on March 25th, 2020, by and between the City of 
Pontiac (the "City"), loc~ted at 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac Michigan 48342 in the County 
of Oakland and Paulette Michel Loftin, (the "Independent Contractor" or "Contractor") located at 
1735 E. Highwood, Pontiac Michigan 48340. 

RECITALS 
The Independent Contractor is being secured to provide services as described below at the 50th 
District Court located at 70 North Saginaw, Pontiac Michigan 48342, from the Contractor's 
principal place of business or such other place as Contractor deems appropriate. The Independent 
Contractor represents that she has complied with all Federal, State and local laws regarding 
business pennits, licenses, reporting requirements, tax withholding requirements, and other legal 
requirements of any kind that may he required to carry out said business and the Scope of Work 
which is to be perfonned as an Independent Contractor pursuant to this Agreement, consistent 
with the City of Pontiac and the 50th District Court approved "Compliance Plan for Indigent 
Defense" which shall be incorporated by reference into this Agreement and if requested shall 
provide her Employer Tax ID Number to the City. 

The Independent Contractor holds herself out to the public to be a separate business entity and 
shall not be considered an employee or agent of the City. 

The City desires to hire and contract the services of the Independent Contractor to perform those 
tasks as set forth herein. The Independent Contractor assents to this Agreement and to act and 
perfonn as an Independent Contractor for the aforementioned City and is willing to do so on the 
tenns and conditions as set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of the above recitals and the mutual promises and 
conditions contained within this Agreement, the Paiiies agree as follows: 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATION 
The implementation of this Agreement does not constitute a hiring by either party, It is the 
intention of the parties that the Independent Contractor shall maintain an independent contractor 
status and shall not be considered an employee for any purposes, including but not limited to, the 
application of the Federal Insurance Contribution Act, Social Security Act, Federal 
Unemployment Tax Act, provisions of the Federal Internal Revenue Code, State Revenue and 
Taxations Code relating to income tax withholding, Workers' Compensation Insurance and other 
benefit payments and third party liability claims. 

Therefore, staying with the Scope of Work, the Independent Contractor shall retain sole absolute 
discretion in the manner and means for carrying out of her activities and responsibilities 
contained herein this Agreement. This Agreement shall not be construed or considered to be a 
partnership or joint venture, and the City shall not be held liable for any obligations incurred by 
the Independent Contractor, unless otherwise specifically authorized as such in writing. The 



Independent Contractor shall not act as an agent or representative of the City, superficially or 
otherwise, nor bind the City in any manner, unless specifically authorized to do so in writing. 

RESPONSIBILITIES, DUTIES AND SCOPE OF WORK 
The Independent Contractor agrees to devote the necessary amount of time, energy and attention 
required to satisfactorily complete, conclude and/or achieve the following duties/responsibilities: 

The Managed Assigned Counsel Coordinator shall be responsible for coordination of the 50th 
District Courts indigent criminal defense program pursuant to the rules and regulations of the 
Michigan Indigent Defense Commission and consistent with the City of Pontiac approved 
"Compliance Plan for Indigent Defense" which shall be incorporated by reference into this 
agreement. 

This agreement shall continue for a period of one year. Upon expiration thereof, this agreement 
will continue in full force and effect until either party notifies the other party in writing of its 
intent to terminate the agreement. 

The Independent Contractor shall perform any and all responsibilities and duties that may be 
associated within the Scope of Work set above, including but not limited to, work which may 
already be in progress or any related change orders. The Independent Contractor shall have full 
discretion within the Scope of Work but shall not engage in any activity which is not expressly 
set forth by this Agreement without first obtaining prior written authorization. 

DOCUMENT ATS, RECORDS OR BOOKS 
Any and all documents, records or books which may be related to the Scope of Work, as set forth 
herein this Agreement shall be maintained by the Independent Contractor and open to inspection 
by the City during regular working business hours. The documents, records and/or books to 
which the City shall be entitled to insect and receive copies of include but are not limited to, any 
and all contract documents, orders, work product and other documents prepared in performance 
of the Scope of Work. 

WORK SCHEDULE, EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 
The Independent Contractor shall report to requests for information and shall be available to 
meet, as requested by the Deputy Mayor or City Manager. However, the Independent Contractor 
shall not be required to follow or establish a regular daily work schedule. 

The City shall provide up to $1,500 dollar for the term stated for necessary equipment, materials 
and supplies needed to complete the agreed upon scope of work. Independent Contractor shall 
supply any additional equipment, materials and supplies needed to complete the agreed upon 
Scope of Work. 

COMPENSATION 
The Independent Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for the performance of those tasks, 
responsibilities and/or duties related to the Scope of Work as follows: 



Compensation Tenns: Managed Assigned Counsel Coordinator shall submit invoices bi-monthly 
to the 50th District Court, Court Administrator who shall forward the invoice to the City of 
Pontiac Finance Depatiment for payment. 
Total Annual Compensation Amount: $45,000 (April 16, 2019 to April 15, 2020) 
Monthly Compensation Amount: $3,750 

Said compensation shall become due and payable to the Independent Contractor upon receipt of 
an invoice by the City and payable pursuant to the following schedule and method: 

Compensation Schedule: bi-monthly 

TAX WITHHOLDING 
Independent Contractor acknowledges and recognizes that it shall complete and return to the 
City and IRS form 1099 and related tax statements, and shall be required by law to file corporate 
or individual tax returns and to pay said taxes pursuant to all provisions of applicable Federal, 
State and Local laws. The Independent Contractor agrees to indemnify the City for any damages 
or expenses including and relating to the attorney's fees and legal expenses incurred by the City 
as a result of Independent Contractor's failure to make such required payments. Upon the City's 
reasonable request, the Independent Contractor shall provide proof of required tax payments. 

BENEFIT RIGHTS W AIYER 
The Independent Contractor waives and foregoes any and all right to receive any benefits that 
may provided by the City to its regular employees, including but not limited to, health benefits, 
vacation, retirement, profit sharing plans, sick leave and any retirement plans. The Independent 
Contractor acknowledges and agrees that if any government agency or court of law claims that 
the Independent Contractor is an employee, she agrees to waive coverage under these plans. This 
waiver is applicable to all non-salary benefits which might otherwise be found to accrue to the 
Independent Contractor by virtue of her agreement with the City. This waiver is effective 
independently of the Independent Contractor's employment status as adjudicated for taxation 
purposes or for any other purposes. 

NON-PARTNERSHIP OR OWNERSHIP CAUSE 
Neither the Independent Contractor nor any of her representatives, agents or principals shall 
become or be considered an owner, partner, joint venture with or agent of the City or any of its 
subsidiaries, affiliates or related companies or businesses by reason of this Agreement or their 
relationship with the City unless otherwise declared or stipulated in an separate written 
agreement that has been signed and dated by all parties. Neither the City, Independent Contractor 
nor any representative, agent, principal, officer or anyone who may be retained by the 
Independent Contractor shall have any authority to bind the City in any respect unless otherwise 
set forth in a separate written agreement which has been signed and dated by all parties. 

RETURN OF CITY PROPERTY 
Upon the termination of this Agreement, or at the request of either party, each party shall 
promptly and immediately deliver to the other party any and all property in its possession or 
under its control belonging to the other party, including but not limited to, proprietary 
information, trade secrets, intellectual property, computers, equipment, pass keys, City 



Identification, documents, plans, recordings, software and all related records and/or 
accounting/financial infonnation. 

EXPENSES 
Both Independent Contractor and City agre~ to maintain separate financial accounts with regards 
to all expenses related to performing the Scope of Work. The Independent Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for payment of all her out of pocket expenses incurred pursuant to this 
Agreement unless otherwise provided in writing by the City. The Independent Contractor agrees 
to execute and deliver any agreements and documents prepared by the City and to do all other 
lawful acts required to establish, document such rights. 

WORK PRODUCT - WORK. FOR HIRE 
The Independent Contractor acknowledges and agrees that all work of authorship perfonned for 
the City shall be subject to the City's discretion and control and that such work constitute Work 
for Hire, Work Product pursuant to United States Code Title 17 - Chapter 2 - Section 201 & 202 
Ownership of Copyright & Mate1ial. Any and all property and/or work created, developed, 
invented, devised, conceived or discovered by the Independent Contractor shall be subject to 
current copyright and/or other protections and are explicitly considered by the v and the City to 
be "works made for hire" work product and thus shall be considered the sole property of the City. 
The City, hereinafter, shall be considered the Author of Program pursuant to the U.S. Copyright 
laws. Any and all works for hire shall be the sole exclusive property of the City. Furthermore, 
consistent with the Independent Contractor's recognition of the City's sole and complete 
ownership rights in the materials, the Independent Contractor agrees to not make use of said 
proprietary information or any part thereof for the benefit of any party other than the City. 

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT FOR CAUSE 
If at any time the City believes that the Independent Contractor may not be adequately 
performing their obligations under this Agreement or may be likely to fail to complete their 
work/services on time as required by this Agreement or may be likely to fail to complete their 
work/services on time as required by this Agreement, then the City may request from the 
Independent Contractor written assurances or performance and a written pan to correct observed 
deficiencies in the Independent Contractor's performance. Any failure to provide such written 
assurances constitutes grounds to declare a default under this Agreement. 

The Independent Contractor, at such time, shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement and 
the City may, in addition to any other legal or equitable remedies available to the City, tenninate 
the Independent Contractor's right to proceed under this Agreement for cause, should the 
Independent Contractor commit a breach of this Agreement and not cure said breach within ten 
business days of the date of notice from the City demanding such cure; or if such failure is 
curable but not within the en day period required, within such period of tiine as is reasonably 
necessary to accomplish such cure. In addition, in order for the Independent Contractor to avail 
itself of this time period in excess of ten business days from the date of the notice, the 
Independent Contractor must provide the City a written plan acceptable to and by the City to 
cure said breach, and then diligently commence and continue such cure in accordance to the 
written plan provided. 



In the event a te1mination for cause is dete1mined to have been made wrongfully or without 
cause, the te1mination shall be treated as a Tennination for Convenience, and the Independent 
Contractor shall have no greater rights than it would have had if the teimination for convenience 
has been effected in the first instance. No other loss, cost, damage, expense or liability may be 
claimed, requested or recovered. 

TERMINATION OF CONVENIENCE 
The City or Independent Contractor may terminate the Independent Contractor's work and/or 
services under this Agreement pursuant to this paragraph, whenever the City or Independent 
Contractor shall determine that termination is in their respective best interest. Tennination shall 
be effected by delivery of a written notice to the other paiiy of tennination of this Agreement, 
and the date upon which tennination shall become effective, which shall be no less than twenty­
one business days from the date the notice of te1mination is delivered. The Independent 
Contractor shall be entitled to recover costs for services provided or expanded up to that point of 
termination, but not other loss, damage, expense of liability may be claimed, expanded or 
recovered by either Party. 

Except as provided in this Agreement, in no event shall the City be liable for any costs incurred 
by or on behalf of the Independent Contractor after the effective date of the te1mination. The 
termination pursuant to the provisions contained within this paragraph shall not be construed as a 
waiver of any right or remedy otherwise available to the City or the Independent Contractor. 

PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT 
The Independent Contractor shall be required to treat all City employees, defendants, staff, 
witnesses, experts, others and other affiliates with respect and responsibility. The Independent 
Contractor shall be required to comply with all laws or regulations that will permit them to 
complete the Scope of Work. 

GENERAL LIABILITY AND WORKERS' COMPENSATION COVERAGE 
The Independent Contractor herein agrees to promptly provide to the City proof of General 
Liability Insurance, upon request of the City, and Workers' Compensation Coverage where 
required by law. 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEES 
All persons which have been hired by the Independent Contractor to assist in the performance of 
the duties, tasks and responsibilities that are necessary to complete the Scope of Work, shall be 
considered the employees of the Independent Contractor, unless otherwise specifically noted in 
an agreement signed by all parties. The Independent Contractor shall immediately provide proof 
of Workers' Compensation insurance and General Liability insurance on said employees, upon 
request of the City. 

MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION 
In the event that a controversy should arise between the parties to this Agreement which would 
involve the construction or application of any of the terms, provisions or conditions of this 
Agreement, a written request of either party served on the other, shall be submitted first to 
mediation and if the issue cannot be resolved, it shall then proceed to binding arbitration. 



Mediation or binding arbitration proceeding shall comply with and be governed by the 
provisions o the American Arbitration Association for Commercial Dispute, unless said Parties 
stipulate otherwise, or in such proportions as the arbitrator shall decide. 

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 
The Independent Contractor herein acknowledges (1) the unique nature of the protections and 
provisions established and contained within this Agreement, (2) that the City shall suffer 
irreparable harm if the Independent Contractor should breach any of said protections or 
provisions, and (3) the monetary damages would be inadequate to compensate the City for said 
breach. Therefore, should the Independent Contractor cause a breach of any of the provisions 
contained within this Agreement, and then the City shall be entitled to injunctive relief, in 
addition to any other remedies at law or equity, to enforce such provisions. 

INDEMNIFICATION 
The Independent Contractor shall defend, indemnify, hold harmless and insure the City from any 
and all potential damages, expenses or liabilities which may result from or arise out of any 
negligence or misconduct on the part of the Independent Contractor, or from any breach or 
default of this Agreement which may be caused or occasioned by the acts of the Independent 
Contractor. 

ENITRE AGREEMENT 
This Agreement shall be considered a separate and independent document of which it shall 
supersede any and all other Agreements, either oral or written between the parties. 

REPRESENTATION 
All parties to this Agreement herein acknowledges that no representation, inducements, promises 
or other agreements orally or otherwise have been made by any party hereto or by any action on 
behalf of any party hereto, which are not included herein, and that no other agreement, statement 
or promise not contained within this Agreement shall be valid or binding. Any alteration or 
modification of this Agreement shall be effective only when done so in writing, signed and dated 
by all parties hereto. 

COUNTERPARTS 
This Agreement, at the discretion of the parties herein, may be executed in counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute a single integrated 
document. 

SEVERABILITY 
In the event that any provision, clause, sentence, section or other part of the Contract is held to 
be invalid, illegal, inapplicable, unconstitutional, contrary to public policy, void or unenforceable 
in law to any person or circumstance, the balance of the Agreement will nevertheless remain in 
full force and effect so long as the Purpose of the Agreement is not affected in any manner 
adverse to either party. 



WAIVER 
If either party fails to enforce any provisions contained within this Agreement, it shall not be 
construed as a waiver or limitation of that party's right to subsequently enforce and compel strict 
compliance with every provision of this Agreement. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
This Agreement is to be construed to the current laws of the State of Michigan and venue for any 
claim arising out of this Agreement shall be made in the State of Michigan, in the County of 
Oakland. 

COPIES 
Both the Independent Contractor and the City acknowledges that they have received a signed 
copy of this Agreement. 

THE UNDERSIGNED HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND AND ACCEPT THIS AGREEMENT, 
and by signing this Agreement, acknowledge that they have authority to execute the Agreement, 
and all parties agree to all of the aforementioned tenns and conditions. 

Date City of Pontiac 

Date Paulette Michel Loftin 
Managed Assigned Counsel Coordinator 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor, at the request of 
Dan Ringo, Interim Director of Public Works 

February 11 th 2020 

Resolution to Approve Detroit Regional Convention Authority to operate 

and maintain the Phoenix Center Parking Deck Operations in an amount 

not exceed $19,000.00 

The Department of Public Works is requesting that the City of Pontiac enter an agreement 
with the Detroit Regional Convention Authority to operate the Phoenix Center Parking 
Deck Operations. 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE 
IT RESOLVED, 

dr 

Attachments. 

The Department of Public Works have met with officials of the 
DRCA and found their organization to have the organizational 
knowledge and experience to operate the parking deck for the 
Phoenix Center until a permanent solution can be determined 
through a full RFP process. 

The Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor to enter into 
an agreement with Detroit Regional Convention Authority for 
the amount of $19,000 for operating the Parking Deck of the 
Phoenix Center commencing March 1st 2020. 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND AGREEMENT 
FOR MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION OF 

PHOENIX CENTER PARKING 

This Memorandum of Understanding and Agreement for Management and Operation 
of the Phoenix Center Parking ("Memorandum of Understanding"), dated this 1st Day of 
December, 2019, is by and between the Detroit Regional Convention Facility Authority, One 
Washington Blvd, Detroit, Michigan 48226 ("Auth01ity") and the City of Pontiac, 450 E. 
Wide Track Drive, Pontiac, Michigan 48342 ("City"). 

IT IS HEREBY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that the Authority is a municipal 
public body corporate and politic and a metropolitan authority established by Act 554, 
Michigan Public Acts, 2008, as amended. 

IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that the City is a municipal 
corporation operating under a City Charter pursuant to the Home Rule City Act, Act 279 of 
1909, as amended. 

IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that the City is the owner of the 
Phoenix Center Parking Pontiac, MI 48342 ("Parking Deck"). 

IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that the Authority has extensive 
experience and expertise in the operation and management of parking operations for the TCF 
Convention Center located in Detroit, Michigan (fonnerly COBO Center). 

IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that on February 11 th 2020, the 
City approved the selection of the Authority to manage and operate the Phoenix Center 
Parking Deck upon reaching mutually agreeable operating guidelines, terms and conditions. 

IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that the Auth01ity and the City 
desire to enter into and be legally bound by this Memorandum of Understanding and 
Agreement for Management and Operation of the Phoenix Center Parking Deck. 

NOW THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound hereby, in consideration of the 
premises and mutual agreements hereinafter set forth, and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereto further understand and agree as follows: 

1. Appointment. The City hereby appoints the Authority to manage and supervise, 
directly or indirectly, where applicable, the ongoing business operations of the 
Phoenix Parking Deck, and agrees that during the term of this Memorandum of 
Understanding, the Authority may take such actions as it deems reasonably necessary 
to render such management services to the City. The City shall provide capital 
improvements to the Parking Deck and sufficient funds for the Authority to perform 
the Management Services as set forth in this Memorandum of Understanding. 

2. Acceptance. The Authority hereby accepts such appointment by the City and agrees 
to act in accordance with the duties and responsibilities set forth in this Memorandum 
of Understanding and to take such actions as may reasonably be required to discharge 
such duties and responsibilities. 



3. Term. This Memorandum of Understanding shall become effective March 1, 2020 
and shall expire on November 30, 2020. The Paiiies may mutually agree to extend 
the Term, with extension terms as mutually agreed upon, by either paiiy providing 
written notice of intent to exercise extension option on or before June 1, 2020. Any 
extensions of the stated term of this Memorandum of Understanding must be made 
expressly, in writing, and executed by both parties. 

4. City Obligations. The City sh0ll comply with the following obligations under this 
Memorandum of Understanding: 

(a) The City shall make all necessary structural repairs required to bring the Parking 
Deck into compliance with applicable local, state and federal health and safety 
regulations as set forth in Exhibit B, including, but not limited to repairs to the 
foundation, concrete, electrical systems, lighting, circuits, gates, stairs and 
elevators. It is expressly understood and agreed that the City and Authority will 
collaborate on construction schedules in an effort to continue efficient operation 
of the Parking Deck throughout the Term of this Memorandum of Understanding; 

(b) The City shall grant the Authority access and use of any existing management, 
financial and/or accounting system(s) used to operate the Parking Deck. If such 
systems do not exist, the Authority will obtain such systems as it deems 
appropriate to operate the Parking Deck. Any systems obtained by the Authority 
will remain the prope1iy of the Authority throughout the Tenn of this 
Memorandum of Understanding; 

(c) The City shall provide adequate security for the Facility as determined by the 
Authority, including, but not limited to, mobile patrol by the Oakland County 
Sheriff; and 

( d) The City shall provide ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) in up front working 
capital for the Authority to initiate the duties as set forth in this Memorandum of 
Understanding and pay expenses associated with operation of the Parking Deck, 
including maintenance fees and supplies/incidentals as set forth in Exhibits A and 
B. The working capital will remain the property of the City and shall be returned 
to the City at the conclusion of the Term of this Memorandum of Understanding. 
It is expressly understood and agreed that the City shall remain solely responsible 
for paying all utility expenses associated with operation of the Facility during the 
Term of this Memorandum of Understanding. 

5. Parking Deck Management Services. The Authority shall provide all labor personnel 
necessary to manage and operate the Parking Deck, including a parking manager, 
parking attendant(s) and maintenance staff. The Authority shall also provide general 
management advice with respect to the following: 

(a) Financial matters including, cash flow management, accounting and data 
processing systems and procedures, budgeting, equipment purchases, 
business forecasts, capital expenditures and annual budgets and projections; 

(b) Administration and operation matters including research, marketing and 
promotion; 

(c) Management of Authority personnel assigned to the Parking Deck; and 



( d) Design and implementation of Parking Deck renovations and construction of 
capital improvements. 

6. Insurance and Indemnification. 
(a) The City shall be responsible for maintaining insurance to cover the real property 

and structure of the Parking Deck, as well as all fixtures belonging to the City. 
The City shall name the Authority as an additional insured on all applicable 
policies that the City maintains relative to the Parking Deck. 

(b) The Authority shall be responsible for maintaining insurance to cover all business 
personal property belonging to, procured by, and/or leased by the Authority, and 
the Authority shall also be responsible for maintaining worker's compensation 
insurance for Authority employees assigned to the Parking Deck. 

(c) The City shall, at its own expense, secure and deliver to the Authority, and shall 
keep in force at all times during the Tenn, the following insurance policies which 
shall name the Authority as an additional insured, in form acceptable to the 
Authority. The City's insurance policies shall be primary over any policies the 
Authority may have. 

6.1 

6.2 

Types of Insurance. 

6.1.1 Commercial general liability insurance policy in an amount of not less 
than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence for bodily 
mJury arrd property damage. Coverage should include 
premises/operation, products/completed operation, personal and 
advertising injury, contractual liability and fire damage legal liability. 

6.1.2 Excess liability insurance in an amount not less than Ten Million 
Dollars ($10,000,000) for each occurrence; this coverage is to provide 
excess limits over the commercial general liability, commercial 
automobile liability, workers compensation, and employers' liability. 

6.1.3 Comprehensive automotive bodily injury and property damage 
insurance covering all vehicles whether owned or non-owned by City 
or operated by Authority's Employees or on behalf of the City in the 
performance of the Services, with a combined single limit of not less 
than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000). 

6.1.4 Employers' liability insurance in an amount not less than Five 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) for each accident. 

6.1.5 Workers compensation insurance for City Employees assigned to the 
Parking Deck, as required by all applicable laws; 

General Insurance Requirements. All of the foregoing policies of insurance 
shall provide and/or include the following terms, requirements and 
provisions: 



6.2.1 A valid provision or endorsement stating, "This policy will not be 
canceled or materially changed or altered without first giving thiiiy 
(30) days' advance written notice thereof to the Authority." 

6.2.2 Not less than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any insurance 
policy dming the Tenn, the City shall provide the Authority a 
certificate and/or policy evidencing the renewal of such policy or 
policies. 

6.2.3 The coverage shall be occurrence-based, not claims made unless 
approved by the Authmity. 

6.2.4 The insurance described shall be obtained from one or more insurance 
companies duly authorized to issue such policies in the State of 
Michigan and carry an AM. Best rating of at least "A XI" or a 
successor or substitute rating service acceptable to the Authority. 

6.3 Minimum Requirements. The City hereby acknowledges that the insurance 
policy tenns, limits and conditions set forth herein, constitute Minimum 
Insurance Requirements and shall in no way be interpreted to limit or restrict 
the amount of insurance that the City should secure. Nor shall the foregoing 
Minimum Insurance Requirements limit the liabilities or obligations of the 
City under this Memorandum of Understanding, including without limitation, 
the City's indemnification obligations set fo1ih herein. 

6.4 City Subcontractors. Any Subcontractor hired by the City shall include the 
Authority and its Directors, Officers and Employees as additional insureds 
under its policies in a form acceptable to the Authority. All insurance 
requirements set forth herein, including minimum requirements and terms 
related to cancellation and/or modification of insurance, shall apply to all City 
Subcontractors, to the fullest extent applicable to the portion of the services 
they provide at the Parking Deck. It is expressly understood and agreed that 
the requirements of Section 6.4 do not apply to the Authority as an 
Independent Contractor hired by the City. 

6.5 Suspension of Services due to Lack of Insurance. The Authority shall notify 
the City whenever it has a reasonable belief that the City has failed to secure 
or maintain insurance as required by this Memorandum of Understanding. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Memorandum of Understanding, 
after its receipt of any such notice, the Authority and Authority Employees 
shall not enter the Parking Deck until the City has secured and is maintaining 
insurance as required by this Memorandum of Understanding. It is expressly 
understood and agreed that the Authority has no duty to perform or continue 
management services if there is a lapse in insurance as required by this 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

(d) Indemnification. To the greatest extent permissible by law, the City shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Authority, its Directors, Officers and 
Employees from and against any and all losses, claims, damages and expenses 
(including reasonable costs of investigation and attorneys' fees) ( collectively, the 
"Losses") arising from (i) City's failure to comply with any and all federal, state, 
foreign, local, and/or municipal regulations, ordinances, statutes, rules, laws, 



and/or constitutional prov1s10ns ( collectively the "Laws") applicable to 
perfonnance under this Memorandum of Understanding, (ii) any unlawful acts 
on the part of City, City Employees and/or City Subcontractors, (iii) personal or 
bodily injury to or death of persons or damage to the Parking Deck and/or 
property of the Authority which has been alleged to have been caused by the 
negligent and/or intentional acts, en-ors, and/or omissions, or the willful 
misconduct of City, City Employees and/or City Subcontractors, (iv) City's 
failure to pay any wages, invoices, taxes, and/or other amounts to be paid by City 
as and when they are due, and/or (v) the material breach or default by City, City 
Employees and/or City Subcontractors of any provisions of this Memorandum of 
Understanding, including, but not limited to the acts and/or failures to act of City, 
its Employees, and/or City Subcontractors in completing capital improvements, 
and any and all liability, statutory, or otherwise, alleged to arise from operation 
of the Parking Deck. To the greatest extent permissible by law, the Authority 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City against and from any and all 
liabilities, obligations, damages, penalties, claims, costs, charges, losses and 
expenses which may be imposed upon, incurred by or asse1ied against the City 
where a loss is alleged to have been caused by the gross negligence and/or willful 
or wanton misconduct of the Authority and/or its Employees in performing 
Services pursuant to this Memorandum of Understanding. 

( e) Survival of Indemnity. The indemnity provisions set f01ih in this paragraph shall 
survive the te1mination of this Memorandum of Understanding. 

(f) Authority Not Responsible. The Authority shall not be responsible for any 
goods, merchandise, inventory or equipment owned or leased by the City and 
used, maintained or stored at the Parking Deck. Nor will the Authority be 
responsible for any damage resulting from a power failure, flood, fire, explosion, 
vandalism, theft, and or other causes. 

7. Compensation. In consideration for the Management Services rendered by the 
Authority as provided in this Memorandum of Understanding, the City agrees to 
compensate and pay the Authority as follows: 

(a) The City shall pay the Authority an annual Management Fee of $9,000, 
payable in 9 equal monthly installments of $1,000, within 30 days 
submission of an invoice by the Authority; and 

(b) Any profit derived from the Parking Deck during the Term of this 
Memorandum of Understanding shall be split 50% between the Authority 
and the City. The Profit shall be calculated based on net Parking Deck 
revenue less any costs incun-ed by the Authority for performance of the 
Management Services. 

8. Status as Independent Contractor. The Authority recognizes that it is being engaged 
as an independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of City. The Authority 
acknowledges that as an independent contractor it is undertaking certain risks ofloss 
not associated with an employment relationship. Under no circumstances is the 
Authority considered to be the agent of the City. Except as authorized under the terms 
of this Memorandum of Understanding, the Authority shall have no authority to act 
in City's name or on its behalf or to enter into any contract or agreement on behalf 



of City or to bind or obligate City in any manner whatsoever. The Authority shall be 
solely liable and responsible for paying its own employees, subcontractors, and 
agents, if any, and for paying all taxes imposed, levied or assessed by any 
governmental agency, as applicable, on the compensation it receives from City. 

9. Subordination. This Memorandum of Understanding shall be subordinate to the 
Settlement Agreement and Release dated November 1, 2018, ("Release") attached as 
Exhibit B. It is expressly understood and agreed that any conflicting obligations of 
the Parties set fmih in this Memorandum of Understanding are superseded by the 
terms of the Release. 

10. Communications and Notices. The Authority and City shall each designate in 
writing a person to be advised as to any and all matters under this Memorandum of 
Understanding. Any notices to be given hereunder by any party to any other party 
may be affected by personal delivery, in writing, or by mail, registered or certified, 
postage prepaid with return receipt requested. Mailed notices shall be addressed to 
the parties at the addresses appearing below, but each pa1iy may change its address 
by written notice to. the other party in accordance with this Paragraph 9. Notices 
delivered personally shall be deemed communicated as of actual receipt; mailed 
notices shall be deemed communicated as of five (5) days after mailing. 

To the Authmity: 

To the City: 

Detroit Regional Convention Facility Authority 
One Washington Blvd 
Detroit, Michigan 48226 
Attn: Patrick S. Bero, CEO/CFO 
With Copy to: 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Attn: 
With Copy to: 

11. Default. If City neglects or fails to perform its obligation to make all necessary 
structural repairs to the Parking Deck, reimburse the Authority or pay compensation 
or fees when due; if City neglects or fails to perform any other covenants or 
obligations set forth in this Memorandum of Understanding to be observed and 
performed on its part for 10 days after written notice by Authority of the default; if 
City makes any assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver or Emergency 
Manager is appointed for City or its property; or if any proceedings are instituted by 
or against City in bankruptcy (including reorganization) or under any insolvency 
laws, the Authority may cease Services and terminate this Memorandum of 
Understanding. 

12. No Waiver of Rights. All waivers hereunder must be made in writing and failure by 
any party at any time to require any other party's performance of any obligation under 
this Memorandum of Understanding shall not affect the right subsequently to require 
performance of that obligation. Any waiver of any breach of any provision of this 
Memorandum of Understanding shall not be construed as a waiver of any continuing 
or succeeding breach of such provision or a waiver or modification of the provision. 



13. Assignment. Neither party shall assign or attempt to assign any of its rights or 
obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party. 

14. Amendment and Modification. No amendment or modification of this Memorandum 
of Understanding shall be binding unless executed in writing by the party to be bound 
thereby. 

15. Entire Agreement. This Memorandum of Understanding, constitutes the complete 
and exclusive statement o,f this Agreement between the parties and supersedes all 
prior representations, understandings, and communications, oral and written, 
between the parties relating to the subject matter thereof. 

16. Severability. The patiies expressly agree and contract that it is not the intention of 
either of them to violate any public policy, statutory or common laws, rules, 
regulations, treaties or decisions of any government or agency thereof. If any 
paragraph, sentence, clause, word or combination thereof in this Memorandum of 
Understanding is judicially or administratively interpreted or construed as being in 
violation of any such provision of any jurisdiction, such paragraph, sentence, word, 
clause or combination thereof shall be inoperative in each such jurisdiction and the 
remainder of this Agreement shall remain binding upon the parties and the 
Agreement as a whole shall be unaffected elsewhere. 

17. Exclusive. This Memorandum of Understanding and Agreement for Management 
and Operation of Phoenix Center Parking Deck is exclusive. The City may not hire 
other entities to provide similar Services as being provided by the Authority 
hereunder. 

This Memorandum of Understanding and Agreement is recognized and accepted by the 
undersigned as a contractual agreement and obligation bound upon the consideration of 
services and/or monies as described herein. The obligation of this Memorandum of 
Understanding and Agreement shall be perfonned by the undersigned or those lawfully 
acting on their behalf in conjunction with the completion and fulfillment of the terms, 
conditions and provisions as set forth, and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Michigan. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Memorandum of 
Understanding and AgTeement for Management and Operation of Phoenix Center Parking 
Deckto be signed by their duly authorized officers and representatives: 

Detroit Regional Convention Facility Authority: 

By _____________ _ 

Date 

Witness Date 



City of Pontiac: 

By _____________ _ 

Date 

Witness Date 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Planning Division 
47450 Woodward Ave" Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-2800 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: 

FROM: 

HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON - PLANNING MANAGER 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

DONOVAN SMITH -CITY PLANNER 
THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR, JANE BAIS-DISESSA 

THE PLATT PONTIAC'S LITTLE ART THEATRE - RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL OF 
REDEVELOPMENT LIQUOR 'BISTRO' LICENSE - RLL 20-02 
PIN: 64-14-29-433-017 

February 6, 2020 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application RLL 20-02 for a Redevelopment Liquor License petition for 

the establishment of Bistro Liquor Licensing at the proposed location, 47 N. Saginaw, on behalf ofThe Plat 

Pontiac's Little Art Theatre. The City of Pontiac, City Council adopted resolution 19-401 on August 6, 2019 

to permit the operation and issuance of Redevelopment "Bistro" Liquor Licenses in the C-2 Downtown 

zoning district. The implementation of the Bistro Redevelopment Liquor License program supports 

business located in designated TIFA Districts to be granted "Bistro" Liquor Licenses. These licenses are 

created from Public Act 501 of 2006, establishing Redevelopment Liquor Licenses and encouraging 

businesses who desire to locate in cities with limited or no liquor licenses available to redevelopment 

areas within the city. The Bistro Liquor License will benefit those businesses downtown who engage in 

dining, entertainment, or recreation as a primary use, while the sale of alcohol for on-site consumption 

will be a secondary use. The issuance of Bistro Licenses will serve as an Economic Development tool, 

increasing vehicular and pedestrian foot traffic in the Downtown area, while also increasing services to 

local business and their patrons. The granting of Bistro Licenses will require the submission of a Bistro 

License Application provided by the city, Planning Comn1ission Special Exemption Permit review, and City 

Council approval is required for the initial issuance, reissuance, and transfer of Bistro Licenses. 

Per the City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance for the issuance of Redevelopment Liquor Licenses and the 

Conditions for Issuance and Operations, and the Michigan Liquor Control Code. All establishments who 

wish to operate Redevelopment "Bistro" Liquor Licenses must meet the following criteria for eligibility. 

1. The liquor license must be a redevelopment district or development district license, as defined 

in the Michigan Liquor Control Code, MCLA § 436.1101 et seq., as amended, the City of Pontiac 

C-2 Downtown Commercial Zoning District. 

2. Interior seating (including bar seating) can be no less than 50 people and no greater than 150 

people. 

3. Bar seating shall be limited to 25% or less of the interior seating. 



4. The establishment shall close no later than 12:00AM. With the prior approval of City Council, an 

establishment may remain open to offer food service. 

5. Sales of food shall total not less than 50% of the total revenue of the establishment. 

6. The licensee must otherwise comply with all requirements of the City Code. 

7. Personal Investment in the property must be greater than $75,000 

The petition for a Redevelopment "Bistro" Liquor License RLL 20-02, as submitted by the applicant, 

does meet the requirements of the Michigan Liquor Control Code and Bistro Ordinance licensing 

requirements, in addition to the seven approval criteria of Section 6.303 of the Pontiac Zoning 

Ordinance. In consideration of the Bistro License requirements, observance of the Special Exemption 

Permit approval criteria, the information provided by the applicant, and the findings of fact outlined 

above, we recommend the Pontiac City Council approve the applicant's petition for the "Bistro" Liquor 

License, RLL 20-02 for The Plat Pontiac's Little Art Theatre, 4 7 N Saginaw, Parcel 64-14-29-433-017. 



Whereas, the City of Pontiac City Council chooses to engage in PA 58, 1998, MCL 436.1521a(1)(b) 

for the issuance of New On-Premises Development District License and establishment of 

Redevelopment Liquor Licenses in the Tax Increment Finance Authority Act {TIFA) District under 

Part 3 of Public Act 57 of 2018. 

Whereas, The Platt Pontiac's Little Art Theatre, Parcel 64-14-29-433-017, 47 N. Saginaw St., has 

made petition for a Specially Designated Distributer (SDD) and Specially Designated Merchant 

(SDM), 'Bistro' License, and whom meets eligibility requirements for licensure issuance under the 

MCL 436.1521a(1)(b), 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac Planning Commission unanimously approved a recommendation at 

the February 5, 2020 meeting, that the Bistro Liquor License for The Platt Pontiac's Little Art 

Theatre, at 47 N. Saginaw, be approved for license issuance to the Pontiac City Council, 

Whereas, The Platt Pontiac's Little Art Theatre, 47 N Saginaw St, shall comply with the City of 

Pontiac Ordinance 2366 to Allow for Redevelopment Liquor Licenses and Conditions for Issuance 

and Operations of the petitioned Specially Designated Distributer (SDD) and Specially Designated 

Merchant (SDM) 'Bistro' License and the MCL 436.1521a(1)(b), 

Therefore be it resolved, as recommended by the Planning Commission at the meeting held on 

February 5, 2020, recommendation for approval of the Specially Designated Distributer (SDD) 

and Specially Designated Merchant (SDM) 'Bistro' License on behalf of the petitioner, The Platt 

Pontiac's Little Art Theatre, 47 N. Saginaw St, and further recommends this application be 

considered for approval by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 



Hi::::develooment Liquor Liu::nse -~.....-..---™---Xs·,, _____ ! ___ ,.v, ______ y ·-• ---••- _ •-•••--•----."TA 

Planning Division Staff Review J\ssessrnent 

Application Review Date: Januacy 15, 2020 

Applicant: 47 North Inc 

Contact Person: Hobert l<arnzim Phone: 248-644-2110 I Email: 
Business \\lame: The Plat: Pontiac Little .~rt Theatre Address: 47 f\Jo1ih Saginaw, Pontiac, Mi 48342 

Type o'f Redevelopment License: • A-Hotel 
OB-Hotel 

[Z)ClassC 

• Tavern 
Description of Business: 

Cafe and attached Art Theatre. The full operation of 
the Green R.oorn Cafe and the concessions available 
during theatre events. 

Documentation Submission 

Proof Of Ownership 

l_yj Detail Breakdown of Personal Property Investment 

City of Pontiac New License Application 

·l City of Pontiac Questionnaire 

[ZJ Notarized Affidavit of Attempt to Securn Escrowed Ucense 

GZJ Submission of ,i\pplicatlon Fee 

Eligibility Requirem,ants 
Eligibility Requirements: !Zl Business is to be licensed with eligible license area, 

{All Boxes Must be check to be eligible) Applicant has expended over $75,000 over the preceding 

[Z] 5 years or committed to the expenditure before the 

license is issued. 

[Z] Business engages in dining, entertainment, or reci-eation 

with a seating capacity of more than 50 persons. 

[Z] More than 50% of Business revenue is generated from 

food and non-alcoholic sales. 

license • .md Property D_etails 

Types of Liquor Sales l ✓ I Beer l ✓ l Wine JZL. Spirits (Hard Liquor) 

New Constmction Building _D_Yes r7l No 

Facility Currently Occupied .JLj_ Yes _Q_ f\lo 

Is the facility planning a renovation? __lj_Yes l ✓ I No 

Detailed Breakdown of Personal J2]_ves r I No 

Investment Included: 

Value of Personal Investment: $245,648 

Assessors Assessment of Investment: $ 



Karen Jorgensen, OTR, CCM, CE.AC, CAP'.:; 
3S N. Saginaw, Pontiac, MI 4.S342 

FAX: 248.745.1004 ''' TEL: 248.644.2110 

Departrrn0nt of Planning Cormr1isslon-Hedeveloprnent Liquor License 

c:1·r· y t·"f 1:>0···1·"1·ar· •.. . .J l I. -· 

/i 7 L1 c;o \iVc r) ..J'"tar·cl 4vPn 1J0 iJr ,,.,.,.·,a· .. ~ j'\ 'l I Ll O ';)/I? '""'"ti .;-._... ,I ,..h. U"l't , I\ -~·-·'- i,.,.,l ,_,, ,t 1..~•, '../. 1·0-->·~·,_ 

Pecavr•be•" :n ?(i19 -✓ ----J ij -i _,_,, -- ,J. 

Dear City of Pontiac, f\.~ichigan Planning Cornrnissioners, 

I arn requesting consideration for a new redeveloprnent bistro license as ;:3dlotted 

by the City of Pontiac, Michigan for the Green Room Cafe (which is located at 47 r,L 

Saginaw Street in historic downtown Pontiac,. Michigan 48342 within Pontiac's 

Littl19 Art Theatre). 

I attempted to reach out to over 35 businesses on the Oakland County Michigan list 

of potential Class C liquor licenses several years ago and I was unsuccessful with 

locating a seller whom would be ,,villing to accept an offer within my budget. Many 

of the people/businesses listed would not return my phone calls, and/or the 

contact information on the list was found to be significantly outdated. At that time, 

of the persons whom \Nere kind enough to speak with me 1 their asking price ranged 

from as low as $120,000 and as high as $150,000. Therefore, l vvas very excited to 

learn about the potential opportunity to be considered by the City of Pontiac for a 

Redevelopment Liquor License. 
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that their asking price isn 1t within my financial rT1eEms at this time. Please note thai: 

I attached 21 letter frorn Pike .Street Properties dated December 16, 2019 with an 

asking price of $;7'S,000-.$125,000. As well as an email correspondence frorn Blah 

tv'lc:Gowan dated December 22, 2019, for the asking price of $80,000. 

As you are likely avvare, Hobert Karazirn and I have been very invested in the 

economic development ln our City. \Ne created the Canvas Pontiac art prograrn in 

2012. Three years following, we were honored to have the Detroit Institute of Arts 

(DIA) contact us to be a partner/sponsor to perpetuate this prograrn for the past 4 

years. Our involvement ln the growth of our clovvntown also includes being Board 

rnernbers o-f the former Pontiac Downtown Business Association {PDBA), Board 

Member in Main Street Pontiac, Pontiac Rotary. We have been actively involved in 

prograrns for Oakland Universitv· to lndude Grizz Night, and OU Initiatives; Art 

Crawl; Holiday Extravaganza, Hauntic, etc. 

\!Ve are proud of the PLA.T for all of the vast varjety' of performing Arts that we have 

been able to attract to Pontiac. The majoritv of our patrons have come as far as 

6rand Rapids to present a series of Short Films and we regu!arly draw people from 

Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills, Auburn Hills, White Lake, Rochester, Rochester Hills, 

Berkley, Royal Oak, Lake Orion .. etc. 

The positive economic impact upon having a liquor license for the Green Room Cafe 

will enable us to bring in more people into Pontiac, as well as encourage them to 

tell others about their pleasant experiences. Most importantly, it will enable the 

Green Room Cafe to afford to hire a nurnber of full time and part time staff. 

Presently, the majority of our staff reside in Pontiac. VVith the liquor license we 

anticipate doubling our number of employees. Anyone in the restaurant and/or 

entertainment industry is keenly aware that one is unable to make a sustainable 

profit without a liquor license. 
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Sincerely yours, 

Encl /)CLJrCH:' ,.,, ... ..._j, -._, •• } ~ 
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E3rt 

/\) Plays and rnusicais from: Lak<::land Players snd Pontiac Th1Jater !\/. 
1:3) Classic movies l'rorn 1:he'l930's to r::rnTent 
C) Partnersr1ip with OU: Siudent mm::,, l~connrnic DevehJprnFmt SFJrnlner, t:i .. 1ic Enciogen1Pnt Fi!nis, 

Grizz: nirit1t :::md :::tudent j::1zz ses:',ion,;. 
D) Pmtnership with OC: Comrriunity DevHl01J1nent and Historic S1:irnin,=1rs. 
E) Pctrlnership '\Nit'h CP;:. .. C:: Art Crawl, (:,i'izz i\!i!Jht, Hr:1un-/:i;:1c, plus cli3i:rici: le21cli=:w viden::·;. 

UpcorninrJ (::!Vent:3: 

·1) F;olyneslan Dancers of Michigan 
?) ~,r1ch1'n,:1r 1-'1istn···1·l-. Dt"e~•,:c.,··v•~--{'ir'I- 1\lfY'u1r·,»I( ·'1'1 'f"l"1 r::,1·,,:,x,•·· ,_ l'.l ~:)-.:,..:IJ ~ • ..... -1 ,! ..., .... ),~•I Qi1J1,., .. ,tvt•.~lf~-. ,,..~.di~-~1.__,,_,,,,, 

t.) .,. ,- orrnac nit1anve rr1ov13: e 1v1anc(1Lman ,.;anc 1c.::ri:i:;. 3) ,,,, I J/n ·. I ·v · · . ·I-h " ' ~ . ,,.. j' I . 

4) Will Smith film seriec:;. 
!5) Films frorn local filrn rnaif.E:;rs_ 

In general, vvo also off,~r rental spaos for: local dance groups, inspirational :3psa!<.er'5, E:mall rninority 
ownt:icl buGine:3s Emel intirn3t8 E.pace for parties find corporate events. 

The full operation if 1:he c;reen Hoorn Cafe and the concessions availc1ble clurin9 Hvsater events, 4 7 
l\Jor~h Inc., will be able to provide our patrons with a full choice, of food and drink. This \Nill drive morr• 
foot tn:;rfl'ic and economic growth to the downtown, 

When evaluating the application, please consid6r that vV!?J are the same group that developed the Arts 
community in Pontiac (20-J'l-present). Partners: R.obert Karazirn, Karen Jorgensen and Usa Mohler 
developed: The Al~T Revival, Canvas Pontiac (20'12-2018) CP partnership with the DIA, DIA. inside out 
program and currently are part of the coordinators and sponsors for: Art Crawl, H;:iuntiac and Grizz 
Night. 

.4? i\i 



·•·1 \ _('•,,..f:J, f"r•1•~1·1 ••· • .. •i·• Y' ,•••1:1 "I.,,•,,,,-,,-,\ 
.f t.1ct h7;:J a cl~.:7t:)~ \ _.t; LI I!~::.-) 

?') '"1•:11·.,,l ,::-1-R·rr'··· 1'?-il.'1 rlc11 11 fin-1c., __ V 1J •-- .,:;'.h,,...,, \ ... .__. J j \ ,~. ! ~ l-.,.1 

.,, \ C'r~·iJ 1< {~1·1111 f1rrc, \ ,)) .~., ,,. \ ~ .... 4',.,t 

;I' C'l·~c.---·11,rJ C•r"·' 1"· (') t)"''~,. ,.:.., .. le) ",'} _; !::icil I ';;;, ., t:ivv ,_,· .. 1 di L ll: f d 

5) Theater n1,:mager (full tirne) 
6) Sound and ikihtinn technician (r-iEirt tirne). V :::;} \..,.. I 

7) Projectionist (p::;1rt tirne) 
~.. \, I I • , ' ' ', ' t;) va ,:,., PflfVl'".C~ 1 t)<::i"I' nm~ 1 

;ld t ,;:. ,.✓ • l . ...-'-....... \:r 11;..-AJ .. ......~, 

9) Bartf:nder (full time) 

(-)11)" •-,,r1l·1rr:• ,of on,~·r•a·t·1nn ( 0

ll"'('i11('1irc t,'~ A 't'1'·1°:::rt,.::i··\ \,vil'1 t)!C;\ ·fl'f)ITI 'l n ':;·~n tn ?j '.)"1'/i 'yi\'{~} ,t·,~,. :,:, t'i 11 1 
. _, 1,,,_., .. ,, • ·'t"''O --- , J_, .. , J .. l\:J ,. L, \J,_, ,_,,, v ., 'C, • .., 1,,Jlt ... l~I''" V, C, ,,, .A .. ,, ! 

tim{:i cafe vvith .s: part time performane<~ art theater, \/Ve don't want to be consich::red ('j 

BAR. Currently, vvis utilize part time employees and volunteers durin9 a theater 
perforrnancr,. So by addjng the Bistro license WfJ will transition from part time to full 
time employees .. 

The Green Room Cafe is currently a licensed (Pontiac and Oakland County) cafe. Ifs 
only open during performanc,~s at the PLAT. Once a Bistro license is approved it wil! 
take 'l-2 weeks to add all of the dispensing equipment. This will enable the cafe will b(3 

open full time +, 

ThH Green Roorn Cafe is owned by 47 North, Inc .. 
The PLAT is a 50'J(c)(3) non profitArtTheater 

IV!lchl 



in::~;·:tru;Glj:c;,n:.~ tt) )App)jG1:1int3~ if yott an; :;1pf)~yino 'for ;J (;ity of {J(Jnti;J(; F?::~:~drsvaiuprnf:;11"!: LiqttOi' !,,icon:~(~~! vvithlrt thf; 
(>2 Dowrrto\J1tn ,c,r,3n thh form rnu::;i: bo (;l)mpiu1r-)d prior (O fii!inrJ out thi,) City CJf Pr>niiH<: H0,1h.:i,,;,.:ikiprrH,lili Liquor 
Uc~m~,o ,i\ppliuriicn Form. Tl1.e1 111:::iw applic.c1tio11 form wi!J not b,?. ;:icceµtoci wW;out ':l cumpk/Ad pro-applica1k,i, 
c1u,3(;Uonnt:tire1. f/~i,;~at~tj ~n,t:}r1rj,? hn1(~ pBr:YJi>nt~1i i.:l~ __ ;;r;ttJfie<:-r,~J.:.Jn. 

[)ovilntovv1··1 

47 Morth, Inc. 47 n st Pcntiac nH q3242 

>: Applicants for noc.kweloprnent Liquor licen::.;es, m1Jst dernonf.ltr:a-t(, ro Cii:y o'f Pontiac ,:111ei th13 Michi1]<:m 
Liquor Control Cornrnis:3ion (MLCC), at th:.:i time o'f investigation, th;;it t11E; r1mount expe11dic.:Jd for Uwi 
rehabilit21tio11 or restoration of the building that rKJUf;es tl1e licensed prernisl'JS ,;hall be noi: l::;ss than 
$75,000 ov,"ff £1 period of the preceding five years or :.:i cornrnitrn,=mt for a capH::11 inw.:strnent o'f at 1<2.asi: 
that cirnocmt ;n th8 buildin(J that houses tile licc• nsecl preirniser:;, \ivhicl·i mu::;t be e;q:iend,~d bE}i'ore the 
i,.;su,:mceof the licem;e. At the time of application, can your busi11esf:, demon;3trat-,':: iJ1it n::quirenv• nt? 
)',./,f,"f;; ; i>j•", tr:)'6,·~""·", -.:\t;;:,r·"l 'n IP'"l!)"''1··1·1·1('1· .,,,,,11·'1''1')1'.l"-,·11 ·1r'1'o"·r•1·,•:y'•c•··, -~(-,r Vf"I-WJ1·-:i·'1·'11·,11 l ,\L:::.~. · V ,,.,. ·-··~~-- 'l/ \, I f _,,.:-1.~.._)t....- .,.,, .t ..-\ ~~,•t ~..,,,,, r-'t· . l , ,:., , t;..,1 ,, r... I • J l 1,..,,l1 ·•' I i I .,h ·~• t I ,.,,,,v,, -.,,' • / 

4, Vi/ill i:he lkem,(• d busln1:;s:~ 1Jener21te 50% o: mr.m:: of its r<::Mr:::nue frorn food and non--cilcoholic drinl<: :3(11;:,~? 
G~S:"tr:•~; i l\ln 

6, P!eGse det-;crlbe (on an attached sheet) l1ow your business will clo the followinu, i'f ii;suecl ::1 !icAn::;te: 
L Prevent rfoterioration in t.he C-·2 Downtown district find prornot0 economic wowth by: 

EL creatin9 new employrn1:mt opportunities 
b, aclding nEl\/\J tax value through the purcf-1;;1:,e of rH:::\fi/ equipment ::lrl(j/or buildin(J improvements 

iL Represents a desirt:;d land use as cieterminecl by the City's :.1rna rri:asl:er plan and zoning 
requirements. 

iii., Contribute t1 the rni:c of djJ:.1ifig/~nking, (::mtert;.;iinment and recr(:iat.ional s)Xisting est;;-iblisl·ffn0,nts 
/' (desc · Jf'iique charcJJ2'1:!J§lJcs) · ,/ 

/ .I ,·i -A~. le,?.- ,, 
f ~:~:::_,,1 / 1 I f'l.J..{rt.~J 

/~ . Date · Pnnt.13d Name ·•·,,,• ( J 
lf';iny r:/f the ail;u:we questio 

1
~iee~ am:r:Nerref:1 NO, the applicant is not eligible to app!y for :✓~:,:~lo·~::;~nt District 

/License as designated under n State law (Public P.,ct so·1 of 2006). Applicants that cannot meet the minimum crit(,,ria 
wm not be considered by the City of Pontiac. Do NOT fill out an application. 
ff ;;if! of t/u., above questions hcwe b0:fJn &iW!5Wered YES, the applicant is eligible to apply for a Redevelopment Liquor 
License. The next step in the application process is to fill out the City of Pontiac application form. Attach this completed form 
1o the application and submit with tlJiD app!icatlo11 foe to th~ P,:mti21c PlaMirig Divisio,11,, 47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, 
M! 48342. Phom0 No. - 248-758-2300. P, $6(1(! license fee is dw,) J.Ji;ton &1£Hp::rval. 
To inquire about other licensing opportunities, including transfers of existing Class C licenses, please contact the Michigan 
Liquor Contml Cornmission directly. AH transferred licenser, begin at the State !eve!. MLCC Ofr•Premises Licensing Division 
.. 517-·322-'1400, 



(~rr 't ()F r-;•<)t,rru~c; :\PF'L!(,:/.,TiCJr) \A~-<)(: 
Ft(:i)t-~\/CJJ)P}\fif}{C (JC)()1 )F< L !f.':r~i\i~~;c~'.'j 

ht:~Yi.ftfJ))Jr~n:2,: Yhfrt t'.:tppl1(,:a{it)U Yi''.iOS~,;t tH::.' i';(HY!p(1:;"i:~d nru.A t~~1:tn'n,a,d lMhh a m 1 Gi.!1 ;JppUr~rx(h:,n f\::G "for {~ac~l U,J:~:?.fi)?,-,;t br:ii(>{G 
h: r;a~r1 bH consith::!rerL /4.U ;2:1nsVVf1f3 rntH::i't bd typt.:K.i or printed, ~:;iqn ifh? curnpfo:yiJ:d fnrrn in ink and teturn to 1J10 (~ii.\/ C~jr3rk 1 

,ff4SO Wondward P,ve., Pt>11ti:,1c:, iVlichig,,\O 43::;,1.;;:, 

lVl/\!<E ALL CHECKS 01:, MONE''( OF:Dl:::l•<::3 PA'OV3U: ro THf:: ClTY OF P(Ji,r(iAC, iVIICi·HGAH. 

N21me of individunl, partn<':!rship, corp<Jration OI' 
limited liability company v1ho \Nill hold thE; license: 

ti? I\Jorlh Inc 

Business Street Address: Sr:re0-st Adclr'{-:ls:;: 
47 i\! Saginaw St 35 I\J Saginaw st 

,__ ______________ --~---- vrv--•--•~••- ••~•-•-----••---•-~• 
City/Stace/Zip Code: City/Stcite/Zip Codo: 

Pontiac Michiqan 433£!2 Pontil?.c Michig,,n 4834:2 

Tovvnship: t:'.',,h{( Busirtt'JSS Phono No, 
0.s klancl (248) 644-211 O 

Home Phom,, No. (:.~qfj 
(2413) 703-1304 

~---------~---J----~- ···---------------------------~ 
4. !3ri,3f!1/ d,3,,erib0 the !::11.1:.;ine:;m, for example-· Dining, Recreatioiii.J::ntertainrnenr etc. __ ~~-----

' Caf,? wit!, attaci1ecl /,st Tr1c• ~:1ter 



i, n,L, 
D i\Jlc1 t,:, i:hf:1 indivkinal 01Nr1r-,1 ,,• CIK: nrmk,d co1po1,c1liori c; rhr, ncvrw,d iiaUii:'/ 1:oi,q,:J11y 

·n1,: fo!h)1Ning p111 lners (indic::Jto iin1ii:"d pnrtne1s 1Nit!1 fln "L'' r)Bfor:c, H1dir nrnrie) • i 

-r~~~~H<~,~-~:~~-~~~~i~;~::~:1:)~l~l~f l :_ Gi_t!~~f~ ~~~cl i;.'.~,l~~ c~:'.~~~~H:::.'~~:~Sicl(~L . -.... ':':J :1~-f ~~~~~-;,;'~(;1,~~~-;:1;:r.1 Ii.'.:!=~·=:~=·~ .. 

304 

'' All pr11inr• rs rnay 01;, n?.quired to complete and sutlrnil: 8dditional infoiTnatirn1 as pmi: of the applicrd:ion review proces:.,, hy 
complE:,ting this ,:1ppiicz1Uon applicant ag1·0ss k1 comply with any such request,. 

G, P.i,rsonal lnforrm,rl:ion -·· lrn:lhtid1,ii1i Applit;.an•:s and P2irkrn11rship f1/lerob,,;,rs Only 
Date of Birth •. Q~::~2:Jf:.l{5!L .... (required 1o confirm ·3pplicant is over :.t! years of aqe) 

ii' you eire not a US Citizen~·· Are you a reoistarf:K1 alien? o Yes o No Or, do you havo a Visa? • YE,:3 c 0lc 
Fu!J narne of 

Have you ever !eqal!y chan!JtJd your narne7 c Y0s .l;l No lfYos, fr orc1. _____ ._ 
Hgv{:-; vou be0tn krh)\Nr1 by otht~r nan1<:;:s? • ··fas )hi l\~o List i"~fjrnes: _____________ _ 

Hfwe you ever ber~n con\!icted of a cl'irnina! off(:,nse, inciuclin9 1c1lcohol rdatecl infr.s,ctions (1:i;,clucle ti-affic 
citGtionc )? 
• Yl?.S XJ No If Y1:,s, please list charge, dal:e of conv;cdon, location and disposition beiow. 
(Use 1:1clditionai sheet ifnecz':;ssrny) 
CHARGE DATE PLACE DESCR!PTlOM 

List your k,rnicH" ,o .. ::cupations for th0 past 3 y~~.;irs: 
DATE (to/from) OCCUPATION 
__ 2.ili12:J:~Uin=mi: Ml~DJ;lQ.f:lL ___ ,, __ .,._, __ -___ -------~---~-------,--------~-,,, 

I or my spous,• pnwiously held or now hold interest in the following licenses for sale of alcoholic hc110•-""·'"'"' as 
sole licensee, partner or corpora1ion: 

NAME OF UGENSE TYPE OF LICEMSE LOCATlON DAfE 

Do you or your spouse hold any k:iw enforcement powers including powers of arrest? c Yes l& No 



O -rh<; n1:)tY13d ~j ll<> nili1"1i:£l li:;j_)iHt:/ ,·::t,rt1p:_Jfi 

Ti,,? followin9 pa1 tners (indicatr:, Iii ni,e,1 p:c,dne1·s vvir.h an "i, )J lli')k,r,? Hv,ir 
- f.~/~1t\~n:1·i•'-~~:;!·i~p✓~ ~n~;f)~-·~ f~d~j(;; n ~ ( attach 2<.i~H Uunal \?;hz:;e-t 1-~ ~-·ie::~:~f)SS~~H ~~ )",-.,.~~----

N<Jrne of Partnf:1\::; 1---lorn}~ /\dclre::;s 

1'l :3,'::lf:}irti::l\N ;:·oritk,r: 
".dic:hiu:.:~1n L!-~3~3lf.2 

~--------------~--------------------~------------------' 

, .. All pari:r1ers may b& rl:!quireli to coniptat;:) ancl ~:utirr1it 8(!ditioiw! inforrnetion m" ptlrl cf the appiiracion rnvis:~w pn)<::(0ss, b·,; 
cornpletin~J this appiicaiion applicant agr:::-e:-; to cornply with any ,3uch i-equesb. 

r----------------------------------------------------•---•·· 
ii P•1rS,)il,'1i in1'on11,filon .-a h1\)lividrn:11 /~ppli..:;ants ;,,nd P,'l!1i:m,1rship i\//(m1th;ffs Oniy 
DaiG of Bin'.h __ ;,).::J!2::f.5_ti_ __________ (required tn confirm applic:cint is over 2 l yt,ars of age) 

Jf you c::1n• not a lJS C:itlzsn "~- I\ra yc:.u 21 regi:s"i:(:red a!ion? c Yi~!-'.) • J\tc C)t\ do y;)1J hav(:: ;·~ \/isE,? cJ \( er; u J\lo 

Full name of spou:,:;;:i:_. ..... -·-.. "··-··--·- -----.. -·--·--··-··---~-"··· ··----··· ··--··-••-•·-· 

Have you eve:- l::;;g;-:t!ly changed your nan-10? eJ Y,,v, o i'~o li'tei:, fr 
Have you iJe:~n know11 by other nm11ec:/? c Yf:,::' iii i\Jo List i'•lar:ri<• 3: __________ _ 

Have you ever beer, r,onvicted of a crirn1nal offerwe. including alcohol rel2'md infr;3ctions (exclude tr,Jfik 
ciialions )? 
c Ye::; f, No Ii' Yes, pieas1:J list charqe, dale o? conviction. locsdion anc'. di:;position below, 
(Use ,:• i:Jditionai she,"t if necessary,) 
CHARGE DATE FU-\CI:: Df::SCR!PT!OM 

UsJ: y,011ir fomi,,;( oc;:,,~up.atkms for the p;.;;1~,t :3 yi~ars: 
DATE (to/from) OCCUPATION EMPLOYER i"ll\ME ,/\!\ID.ADDRESS 
.. A- 'I 99Q-curreni• (}T. c.c::Nt ... _______ .... ' -Kz1ren ,Jor9ensen and l\ssociatE)S .... 

I or my spouse previously held or now hold interest in thG following licenses for sale of alcoholic IJe,;eragr,s a::; 
sole licensee, partner or corporation: 

f\lAME OF UCEMSE TYPE: OF UCEt-lSE D,A:TE 

Do you or your spouse hold any law enforcement powers including powers of arrest? o Yes 1\1 i\lo 



fl()() !\J Lahr? /\tl!Jf:i~.J~.~; FZt::1 
/l~ubt.-irn i···Hlk:; J,/t ! 4tL32f) 

'' /'.\II 1x1rlnern rrv1y bri i'-?c1q,1if::;,d to complete ,,md :mbrnit d<kliii,xk1i infonnation c1,:; p:Jrt of i:he, applie:alir:,n rnvi<'iw prr1c1• !,:o;, by 
cornpleting t;hlc; :.1pplicai:ion ;,:1pplic;:1nt agn:1z:':~ to cornply wilh any r0uch rE)(IUfa,i:::,. 

:~. f':;irrsonal lrdoi!'rm1i:k,1,a ··· lo·1dhrkluv1! ,!\,pplit;,;:,11-::J mnd Pad::w:rc',hip 1111~1·1,b,m" Onlv 
Dafi.? of Birlh,2::'.;i_S,~19'~~----------(required to confirn1 applicnni: is over 21 year:s o?aQ,9) 

l law:c you 1?v;;,,. !e9;:1!1y c1·1ann1,d your narno? rJ Yos 11 Ho HYes, from Wi1~7:'I'.(., _______ _.., ..... __ Jo~--~·-·-"-
Hcive you beer1 knovvn by othar n~urw;s'? u '{r!:3 tD i\!o List i\]~:ulw:is: ___ _ 

Havri vou ew::it been convided of a crirnir1al c,frenso, including alcohol reli,1ted infractions (0xch.1d0 1:raJlic 
citations)? 
u Yer, ,,i \\lo If please lk,t ch211[le, ciut6 of conviction, location 2rnd di:3pOc}ii:ion b11io1N. 
(Use additionDi shec2! if necisss::iry.) 
Cl-1/.iJ'I.GE DATE PLACE DESCH!PTIOf•.\ 

Usi: yo1.H· form0r 0,:;;i;;;Jpatit:n1s ror t!-,18 pa;;,,: -3 V·'.:lilr0: 
Dl\TE (to/frclrn) OCCUPAT!OM EMPLOYER N/\ME Ai\lDADDHESS 
·!2/2003 Currrmt Ufor, -Spaniola and Frost, 54-40 Corrorate Dr St,0 250 Troy Ml ,48098 

,~w-••n-••--•- ~,~.v.••• .~-... ~·~,---•~----A-• -~~ 

I or my spous,:,; previously held or now hold irri:,0res, in tlm following licem,;es for sale of E1icoholic beveraqeG as 
soil? licen:,ee, partner or corporation: 

TYPE OF UCHISE LOC/1,TION DATE 

Do you or your spouse hold any law enforcernen! powers including powers of arrest? • Ye.s a No 



a .. (:-CH'P(H"~t{) ~;, ljrnit~:1d L.L::1hEH:f (>on1panv l\J)f) l~c:rint:? ()fliy -, 
/\teach copy 'filed or p(opo9c~cl /\rt.iclt:~s of lncorporai.ion1 !ant 21rtnLH:"d rc,pori:/t:.~tat~'.)ffl~-3nt fHod Bi. attach copy ryf ~;h:ir.:=-:k 
option,, . 

...... ·-•-··---·---···----···-·-······----------,·------
C,,rporate/LLC 1·,1arnG: lncoi'poi-:::1tion/Org::miz:;,:1tion dah•: 

4l i\lurth inc p:·nh. 4, ?CViO 

lncorpon:lted/Organized in \Nh21t StDi:e? 

Miclii~;ian 

------·-----·-----------··--------"·"-. 
1'ifirne, Addres';, Phone Numb,·)!' of R,• sident /~Qf'Jni: 

i\/!i<::hiq,:in Aui:horization date: 

U:3::1 11J1oliler, ,1.7 f\J SnrJinaw St Poni:inc i\111 Ae:3.t? 

(Chi:3ck 0111':l of each) r:1 Prom or c Monpro,E 
1

1·~ Public ,.x D Ptiv::ii:H Gorpor;:1tion 
Corporation 

(:otpt.')rctte ()ffic2rs 

ecn N L:1ke ;.\noeius F:d, Auburn Hilts Ml 4832G 24H--7.22-0'l 74 

Treasurer 

~-------------------------------·---------------------·J 

9. Gorporatkms and Lirn!~ecl Uabilit.v Gomp:anias ... U::r,: ,ail p11rsow,, •r)omp,::minG cmd othef (JJ11:itk,:1,s th;xt hnkl 
or wm hoid st(icl!. iintGn:mf: or mGiltbersllitj in .:1pp!k:ant entity. 

Name 
·I ._Robert l<arazirn 

".> Lisa Mohler 
.. ~. --------
4. _____________ , ___ _ 

5, ____________ _ 

Addreiss 
35 f'.J Saginaw St Pontia<) Ml 48?42 

Phorw,, r1iun1LK,r 
248-703· 1304 

24f3-722-0 '17 4 

%1nten.:;st 
33.4 



Salford 

Do you m"ed to build a 
lf yes, do you have 
lf no, \Nhen do you 
lf yes, when do you 

!icensE, which 

or which will 

5'151 

lf yr>Js, vvhEm do you construction to b(• r 0
"-""

1'~'"''"•1' 

to 

Arnount 

230,0C-O 00 

o No 
o \(es o No 

!f w!v.?1t is the estirnaled cost of construction of $ _________________ _ 
occup2.mcy n;;,1·0 1nn,:;,n for business date? ________________ _ 

at this location ;f you do not a ilcense? 

occupied? Yes o No 
!f yes, do you intend to be licensed unclEff the·"""'"'"'"' 
If yes, do you intend to be !ici:lnsed under thi3 same 

c.1 Yes 

21 \/es 
cl Yes 

How has the =,,,,.,.,~,·, business be at the location?_3_ve_-a_rs ___________ _ 
Are you associated with the business 
!f yes, in wl1at """'""'''"" 
lf no, wm you be 

ti Yes 0 No 

• No 

0 No 
• No 



If yes 1 what is th{-? estirnE1tG(I c:ogt of thr;; n'.;;novati6n? 
If yes, when do you oxpc•ct cnn:;truc.i:inr1 will be(Ji11'i·······--··· ··-··-·----··-·. -•·-········ ....... ·······-········ .... _ ···-··--··-·-•·-··-··.,-.,.-----··-- ____ . 
If yes, when dn ynu i:he c,.ln:?trudi(H1 to he c:,xnpldic;-d? .. _______ _ 
When is you, :::Hrticip;:;tod occuprmcy dski/op1:in i'oi' bu,;ilin:.<> .:bte·;-____________ . -·--•-- .. •--·• _____________ _ 
Is the facilil:y c:urTGnUy occupied? fj Ye:; u No 
If yes, are you currer1li;i ;'in~,ociated vvilJ1 thB bu::lr1es:; op0,,,1tinri i-i11 :;ii:<-// 
If yes, in wl1i:1t (;apc'.\Ci(y 011"1,, you :,1:;sqcj:-)(ed? 100% cv:!.':'r/ ivianagernBnt 

WIii it be nPcassEHY lo i:on 1porarily cl1Js1,:i tlir;; i'acility k)I- rs,1ov2rion? 
If yes, how lonf) will the facility bi3 ck1:r;f-.,d?_~'':':'".':~-------------------------
Are you goi11g to renovate lhd f21cility if you do not get:;i licens,::,? 

·! '.3. l:::mploym<111i: .~ (Alf npplict:,Dttl mu,:;;: tompk:rb riHhw.- :\ .:J,· f3 :,c;E,,,:;fom) 
(l\.) ~::xi.sting 8USlint?fJ;,3 

How lama is thG cum.mt ,st:li'i"? (i.:.3. ·1 
Mmribet Fu!! · or 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Cl 

0 

i'uil-lil',i(3 btirtorKkir) 
F<::,, rHi iTl e 

){ 

0 

C2'1f1':l rnana:Jt~r/8arists 

ticket taker 

ProjG-ctionist 

janitor 

c\ No 

Will you be• r:-:;t,1ininq cuneni: sic1ffing !,web, .,3xp:;1nding (J_ffr:• nt staffing !e11,:1i,,, or decreasin(J curn:lnl sk1ffin9 l8v,3I:,, 
if you r~Dceiv~:: the jlcerV::?e? Explairt.!~.errc·:m~BWEI £dl0\Vthe bUSi!'iBS~ tq Oi)Bn tul! tlrne. The cafo. 1Nili.J1Jn,-~O 11our:~3;Jay 5 1-~aYS plus V/hat_, __ _ 

(i:3) !\ltilrv !;;11,i:sin,~,;;•3 
How large of 8 st0c1ff do you plan to have? (La. ·1 fu!l-tirm:: bartender) 
Numbr,,r Full or Part.time Posiiion 



\;it:t.:J!i-fi!t~H: i)lJt!~Hkl ,) 

, \H;Ji'J-

i5~ ""'""'"'cc-nvi<, ,,.~ (App m,;,m:1,ca ,rnus'i 
f'lease describe how !hi::; business will 0nhance the City of Pon1iac cormnuniiy. What ~,peci<:11 conskk?ra-liorm should 
\J<h1 tak,:; into ::;ccount ln r::!valualing your Gpplication? PU::t .. m:: LHVllT YOUH I\NS\Nf::Fs TO '.>.00 WORDS OH U~SS. 
Pleafli.:, :i.1Ht1ch a :;;ep::1r:,rt,;:; she,,d: of pripor if n0.,(x1ss,J;y, 

! have read ~ill of '!he abnvs answers and thoy 2ir,::: true. ! 8£/rE:Ks to provide all requested inforrnation :ancl to fully coop,"'racr, 
with all City ServicG !\ftc18s requesting any and all r:1ddition::1I information provided in this application or any Bttad1rnent 
thon• to. Any changf.m thot occur after th(• date of 'this applicEition, applic21nr wi!i notify the City Clerk, in writing, within 14· 
dayis o!' such change. ! umforst:~nd that the fa:lsiflcation of the inforrnation on l:llis, form Oi' any fals,• staternents rn21de durinf) 
investigations rne1y consl:iiut.e grounds for denial of a license, 

! warrant that ! d1T1 not di:scp,,1:,,11ifosd to receive c?\ liquor license under the ordirn"HlC(:?,S of the City of Ponfo::1c or th,? lawu of tht, 
::;::ate of Michigan. If granted a liquor :icense ! will not violate any federal or sL:ite laws 01· any ordinanco of tile Ci1y of Pontiac 
in lhe conduct of bm,,i11;3ss, 

Attested t.o: 

n 

J 

' 1' 

Name of person completing this 
form if not th1:1 applicant 


	agenda1
	agenda2
	agenda3
	agenda4
	agenda5
	agenda6
	agenda7



